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REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION OF FINAL ORDER

ThelcbmmiSsion_requeSts that the Court modify the Commission's

. Final Order to eliminate the exemption provided in Conclusioﬁ of

Law No. 6.




COUNTER-HISTORY OF THE CASE

This is aﬁ_appéal from an Order of the Appellee, Penhéylvania‘
Human Relétigns Commission (the COmmission) ordering Appellént
Pittsburgh Press {the Press)‘to immediately cease and desist from
publishing Féituationwwanted“ advertisements, the contents of whiéh
are prohibited by Section 5(g) of the Pennsylvania Humap RelationS
Act (the Aét) .(R.-76a)3 Only that part of any Il‘sit‘u‘atio_n—w‘a.nt'ed".
advertisemenﬁlwhich is prohibiﬁed by Section 5(g) is subject to this
Order; the Commiésion~didlnot order the Press the cease_and‘desist
from publishing all "situation-wanted" ads. The COmélaint arose from
a Commission-initiated complaint chargihg that the Press "maintains a
pattern_and @ractice of aiding and abetting the doing of .an unlawful
and discriﬁinatory act, prohibited bYVSection 5g of the Pénnsylvania
Human Relations Act that the Requndent'{the Press] prints in.its
"SituationQWantéd” column advertisements which specify or ekpréss the
race and/or sex of thé individual placing the advertisement" (R. 2a);
After an‘invésfigaﬁioﬁ by Commission étéff'probable céuse:to credit
the allegation was fouhd, én attemptkat cdnciliatioh was made and failed,
a public hearing was held and briefs by both-parties‘were submitted.
Upon.the recommendation of the Heariﬁg Panel, the full‘Commissibn
lssued thelfinai brder‘whiéh is now being appealed by the Préss.

The Press prigts a "Situation-Wanted" column composed of‘édve#tisef
‘ments for employment which individuals_have-paid the Press to publish.

{stipulation {i), R. 10a). ‘The Press prints the advertisements as




xthe,ipdividuals submit;ifhem {Stipulation fh), R. l0a}, even if the
aas cohtain‘ianéuage which i1s expressly prohibited by Section 5 (g)

- .of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act. Lafge numbers of tﬁe ads
insertéd‘into the‘record as-éxamples of the "Situafion—Wanted“_ads
published by the Press contain ' prohibited information_abéqﬁ the

- individual which is designed té appeal to the prejudiceé'offprospectiVé

employers (Exhibits A-1-A-27, R. 27a-53a).

Jitmdes e i T




SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The srtuatlon—wanted" advertisements publlshed by the

Plttsburgh Press frequently contain Jnformatlon prohlblted by

- §5{(g) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act. By appeallng to

the prejudices of‘prospeotive employers these ads‘encourage unlawfui
discrimination. These ads are prlme examples of ;urely commerc1al
'.speech and as such are not entitled to protection under the First
Amendment, espeCLally as they propose and make possible actions which
in and of themse lves are 1llega1 No unconstltutlonal prier restraint
off First Amendment freedoms is lnvolved since "81tuatlon—wanted" ads
are not protected speech and they do not involre speech which dis-
seﬁinates‘ideas, | |
Pittsburgh Press violates §5(e) of the PennsYlvenia Hﬁman
Relations Act by publishing the unlawful "51tuat10n-wanted" ads.
"Publlcqtlon of the ads alone is enough to constitute the aldlng or

‘abetting of an unlawful discriminatory act; no further action by the -
. N
Press. is necessary.

By prohibiting an individual from publishing fects about him

or herself which are designed to appeal to the prejudices of pIOSpective
emplojere, §5(g) furthers the purpose of the.Pennsylvania-Huﬁan Relations
Act to eliminate discriminaticn in employment.  As political candi&ates
cannot be considered to be seeking employment in the accepted use of

the term, §5(g) ig not unconstitutionally overbroad.

| Section 5(g) is rationaliy‘related to the Commonwealth's sub-
stanﬁial‘interest in eliminating discrimination. ‘It therefore does
not;violate the substantive due process guarantees of tﬂe Fourteenth

Amendment.




ARGUMENT

I. GSECTIONS 5(e) and 5(g) OF THE PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS
ACT DO NOT VIOLATE THE RIGHTS OF FREEDOM OF THE PRESS AND
FREE SPEECH GUARANTEED BY THE FIRST AMENDMENT OF THE UNITED
STATES CONSTITUTION. ' .o

A. "SITUATION-WANTED' ADVERTISEMENTS ARFE ‘A FORM OF
COMMERCIAL SPEECH WHICH DOES NOT FALIL UNDER THE
PROTECTION OF THE FIRST AMENDMENT. .

Section 5{e) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act provides that
it is an unlawful discriminatory practice:

"For any person, whether or not an employer,

" employment agency, labor organization or employe,

to aid, abet, incite, compel, or coerce the doing

of any act declared by this section to be an unlawful
discriminatory practice, or to obstruct or prevent
any person from complying with the provisions of this
act or any order issued thereunder, or to attempt,
directly or indirectly, to commit any act declared by
this section to be unlawful discriminatory practice.”

Section 5(g) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act provides that it is

.an unlawful discriminatory practice:

"For any individual seeking employment to publish

or cause toO be published any advertisement which
specifies or in any manner expresses his raceée, color,
religious creed, ancestry, age, sex or national origin,
or in any manner expresses a limitation or preference
as to the race, color, religious creed, ancestry, age,
sex or national origin of any prospective . employer."

The right of a newspaper to print and distribute the free-flow of

information and ideas to the public is'protected by the First Amendment

of the United Stateé,Constitution."The First Amendment doés'ﬁot,-how—

ever,'protect all forms of speech. In Valentine v. Chrestensen, 316

'U,S. 52 {(1942) the United States Supreme Court established the princi-
ple that the constitutional restraints of governmental regulations of
fraéspeaﬂz'hmxmesix)sudh restraints on government as respects purely

camercial advertising.”™ 316 U.S. at 54. The "situation-wanted"ads which




individuals pay to have printed in the Pittsburgh Press”constitute;‘

a classic example of "purely commercial advertising”.

In Chreénensen, a New York City ordinance which prohibiﬁed-tnel

, distribution of advertising manerial on the smxﬁﬁ was fqund to be a
vali& governmen£ regulation -and did not violate the.advertiSer's'
constitutional right of "fréedom of speech” and "freedom of the press",
The speech in question wads a hand bill advertising the-exhibiting of

a snbmarine to which had been added on the reVerse side a_nrotést'
against anraction of a New York Cify-offinial. The Cnurt detérmined
‘_tnat the proteét was merely a subterfuge to avoid therproviéions‘of‘
the ordinance and that the handbill was purely commercial épéech-and
.not entitied to constitutional protection. |

- Subsequent Supreme Court de;isions have modified Chrestensen and

have held that merely because épeech-is ébntainedlin a paid advertisement,
or is of a commercial nature, it is not autoﬁaﬁically.rende:ed purely
commercial anﬁ stripped‘of all constitutional protéction. However,

innall of these cases, the Supreme Count has been careful to'p?int out

'that the speech has involved issues of.general nublic interest, New

York Times v. Sullivan, 376 U.S. 254 (1964), Bigelow v. Virginia, 421

U.S. 809 (1975); potential destructicn of the opportunity or forums

- of speech by the regulation imposed, Murdock v. Pennsylvania, 319 U.S.

105 (1943), Grosjean v. Bmerican Press Co., 297 ﬁ.S. 233 (1936); or

a potential smothering of the communication of ideas, Smith v. Cali=-

fornia, 361 U.S. 147 (1959), Joseph Burstyn, Inc. v. Wilson, 343 U.S.

495 (1952), Thomas v. Collins, 323 U.S. 516 (1945). Tne Cou:t has taken

care to specify that the protection afforded commercial speech is not




provided if the tramsactions proposed in £he forbidden advertisements

are themselves illegal in any way. Virginia State Board of Pharmacy

v. Virginia Citizens Consumer Council, Inc., U.S. ., 98

S. Ct. 1817 (1976).

In New York Times v. Sullivan, 376 U.S. 254 (1964), the Times
published an "editorial" advertisement which cited grievances,
'protested claimed abuses and sought financial support for the Civil

rights movement. The Court did not reverse Chrestensen, rather it

based its decision on the difference between the content of advertisement:

"The publication here was not a 'commercial' advertisement in the
sense in which the word was used in Chrestensen. It
communicated information, expressed opinion, recited
grievance, protested claimed abuses and sought financial
support on behalf of a movement whose existence and
objective are matters of the highest public interest and
concern." 376 U.S. at 266 (emphasis added).

In Bigélow v. Virginia, 421 U.S. 809 (1975), a Virginia newspaper

published an adveftisement of a New York‘agency which announced that
the agency would arrange for a New Yorkraborfioh, the practice being
_légaluin New York. Virginia had a statute making itfa misdemeanor to
'by sale or circulation of any publication to encourage or prompt the
progessing of an abortion. The Court found that thélabortionladver—
ment . came within the First Amendment protection oflfrgedom,of-thé
press and freedom of speech becauselit-“cohtéined factual méteriai of,'
ciéar fpublic interest' ". 421 U.S. at 822. Again the Court ba;ed

- its decision on the kind and content of advertising presented by thé

case, rather than reverse Chrestensen. The "situation-wanted" ads

involved in the present casé certainly do not contain "matters" of the

highest public interest and concern” or even of "clear public interest."

-8-




Appellant cites Virginia State Board of Pharmacyrv. Virginia

Citizens Consumer Council, Inc. ' U.Ss. 96 8. Ct. 1817 (1976)
- for its indication of the trend away from the commercial speegh doc~

. trine. {Appellant's brief 11-12). But even Virginia State Board of'

Pharmacy v. Virginia Citizens;Consumer Council, Inc., whiéh prOVided
Pirst Amendment protéction to advertisements”of drug pricesf despite
.the.Stateisaattempt'to prohibit'such advertisements as a measure -to
guarantee and”protect the professionalism of pharmacists, did ﬁot
- state that.all commercial sﬁeech_felllunder thé protectioﬁ_of the

FirSt‘Amendment.'fThe Court stated that "[Wle of course do not héld
that [cqmmercial speech] can never be regulated‘in_any way. Some
forms of ccmﬁercial speech regulationrare surely permissible.” 96
S. Ct. at 1830..

ObViously;=the case closest to the preéeht case and‘£he one which

is dispositive of the issue of whether classified advertisements of

employment constitute pure commercial speech is Pittsburgh Press Co.

V. Pittsburgh Commission on Human Relations, 413 U.8. 376 (i973)«(§§§§§).
AIn;E£§§§ the type'of advértisement involved, "help*wanted" was |

the complement of the type presented here, "situatioh—wanﬁed“, The;

coﬁtext is identical, both cases deal witﬁ ads involving a proposition

of possible employmént, Pittsburgh Press was printing "help¥wanteaf.

- ads in sex designated columhs, the designation being either at the

'direction of the employer placing the ad, or if no direction was given,

where Pittéburgh Press determined it belonged. The Court found that




the advertlsements for employment were not of such public 1mport

as to be entitled to constltutlonal protectlon, stating:

"In the cricial respects, the advertisements in

the present record resemble the Chrestensen rather
than the Sullivan advertisements. None express a
‘position on whether, as a matter of social policy,
certain positions oucght to be filled by members of
one or the other sex, nor does any of them criticize
the ordinance or the Commission's enforcement prac-
tices. . Each is no more than a proposal of possible
employment. -The advertisements are thus classic
examples of commercial speech." 413 U.S. at 385.

The distinction between the advertisements found in the instant

Acase,]Press and Chrestensen, which are th protected, and those found

in Sullivan, which are protected, was reiterated in Bigelow v. Virginia,
42) U.5. 809 (1975)., As was stated above, the Court=followed.the
Sullivan rationale and'found that the abortion advertisement was not
merely a solicitation for a commercial transaction, but rather, con-
tained matters and information of public interest and concern and
for this reason the advertisement was afforded constitutional protection.
The Court stated:

”The-legitimacy of appellant‘s First Amendment

-claim in the present case is demonstrated by

the important differences bhetween the advertisement

presently at issue and those involved in Chrestensen

and in Pittsburgh Press. The advertisement published

"in appellant's newspaper did more than simply propose

a commercial transaction. It contained factual material
of clear 'public interest'". 421 U.S. at 821-822.

Even with the broadening of the protection of the First Amehdment

" to many areas of commercial speech, the "situation-wanted" ads in this

case would not be covered. The Supreme Court has a clearly-established
trend of refusing to extend First Amendment protection to commercial

speech: which involves ah'illegal‘commercial activity. 1In the Press

',_,A,_.,,:‘,,__A,.,,,,_, ,,_,,ﬁ.‘ 7- . . . —10_.




the Supreme Court stated:

"Whatever the merits of [abrdgating the distinction
between commercial and other speech] may be in other
contexts, it is impersuasive in this case. Discrimi-
nation .in employment is not only commercial activity,

it is illegal commercial activity under the Ordinance. . .
“We have no doubt that a newspaper constitutionally could
"be forbidden to publish a want ad proposing a sale of
"narcotics or soliciting prostitutes." 413 U.s. at 388
(emphasis in original). : '

The Court further found:

"Any First Amendment interest which might be served

by advertising an ordinary commercial proposal and
which might arguably outweigh the governmental interest
supporting the regulation is altogether absent when
the commercial activity itself is illegal and the re-
- striction on advertising is incidental to a wvalid
limitation on economic activity." 413 U.S. at 389.

More recently, the Supreme Court has upheld the distinction between
commercial speech which involves:® | legal activity and commercial

speech which dinvolves illegal activity. In Virginia‘state Board of

Pharmacy v. Virginia Citizens Consumer Council, Inc.,.the Supreme’

Court differentiated between a case where the commercial activity
' being advertised was legal and cases where it is illegal:

"Also, there is no c¢laim that the transactions
proposed in the forbidden advertisements are
themselves illegal in any way. Cf. Pittsburgh
Press v. Pittsburgh Human Relations Commission,
supra; [further cites ommitted]".

The “situation—wanted” ads which contain information prohibited
: by -Section 5(g) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act constitute a
commercial aétivity which is itself illegal. Such activity is a form

of commercial speech which ‘is not protected by the First Amendment.

-11i~-




. B. THE PROHIBITIONS * OF SECTIONS '5(e) AND 5(g)l DO NOT.CONSTITUTE
AN UNCONSTITUTIONAL PRIOR RESTRAINT OF THE FIRST AMENDMENT :
FREEDOMS OF THE PRESS AND SPEECH
.. Section 5(g) of the Pennsylvanla ‘Human ﬁelatlons Act prohlblts an
1ndlv1dual who is seeklng employment from publishing an advertisement
"which specifies or in any manner expresses ‘the 1nd1v1dual's race, color,
religious creed, ancestry, age, sex or national orlgln or which '
any manner expresses a llmltatlon of preference® as to a prospective
employer, VlS a-vis any of these categories. Section 5{e) of the Act
A prohlblts ‘aiding and abetting employment dlscrlmlnatlon. _Together
these sectlons prohibit the use of certain language in’ "51tuatlon—
-wanted“ ads. Because of the nature and content of the “51tuatlon—wanted“
ads ;- Sectlons 5 (e} and 5(g) do not constltute an unconstltutlonal prioxr
restralnt of ‘the First Amendment of the freedom of the press and speech
As was pomnted‘out-above, "situation-wanted" ads are the. complements
of “help—wanted" ads. ‘Their nature is the same and the effects of
placang antl dlscrlmlnatlon restralnts on ,both "help—wanted" and
"s1tuatlon—wanted" adS'are the same. In Press, the Supreme Court held
that a prohibition of sex-designated "help-wanted" ads did not violate
Pittéburgh Press's First Amendment rights and that the prohibition did
not constitute an unconstitutional prior restraint of speech; -The’@ourt
stated: | |
"The spec1al.v1ce of a prior restraint is that
communication will be suppressed either directly
or by inducing excessive caution in the speaker,

before an adequate determination that it is unpro=-
tected by the First Amendment.

-12-




“Theipreseﬁr order does not endanger arguably

protected speech. Because the order is based

on a continuing course of repetitive conduct,

this 1is not a case in which the Court is asked

speculate as to the effects of the publlcatlon.

413 U.5. at 390.

The ' 31tuatlon—wanted" ads of the present case are. as much a .

contlnulng course of repetltlve conduct as were the "helpuwanted"
ads. All that a "help—wanted" ad which has no unlawful discriminatory
‘ language addresses itself to is making knownjto a prospective employe
the‘existencé_of a job. Some ads have more “details some less. All
that a_"situatioh—wanted“.which has no unlawful discrimiﬁatory.language
addresses itself to is making known to prospective employers ﬁhat.the
individual desires a certain kind of job. Again, some'ads have more
details, sonie less. In no way do either ads address "matters of the
highest publlc interest and concern" or of "clear public irterest".
‘Thegdlrectloq.and purpose of s1tuatlon—wanted"eads,'1ike that.of
hhelpuwanted",ads will not change in the futﬁre. "Situation—wahted"
ads do not present new ideas er even discussion of old ones so that
each one could be said to have a different effect on the public; There~
fere, the Court is not.beinglasked to "speculate as to the effects of
-publicarion." free speech and freedom of the press are not endangered.
The cases where the Supreme Court has found an unconstitﬁtional,prior

restraint are all cases where the dissemination of ideas was endangered.

In Smith vs. California, 361 U.S. 147 (1959), a bookseller was

prosecuted under a statute which imposed criminal liability for
mere possession of an obscene book in his store, even though he had no

knowledge of the book's contents. In its rationale for the decision,




the Court expressed its concern that such a statute could result in
booksellers restricting the books in their shop to those that they
had actually read. It was the danger of ;estricting'the public's
access to reading matter that served as the basis for the Court'é
decision. | o

In Bigelow wvs. Virginia, supra, the Court struck down a statuﬁe

which»prohibitéd the sale or circulation of any.pubiicatioﬁ to en-
courage or prompt the.processing of an abortion. There,‘the Qourt
found that the advertisement "conveyed information of:potential
intérest‘and‘value to a diverse audiencel..". 421 U.S. at 822, It
CwWas thé restriction of information which was of importance to the public
that made ﬁhe Virginia statﬁte an unconstitutional priox réstraint.
"Situation-wanted" ads do not involve. a dissemination_of ideas.
The "special vice” of a prior restraint is'not—presenﬁ. Therefofe,

“situation—wanted"'ads'should not follow the line of cases exemplified

by Smith and Bigelow, but rather the precedent of Pittsburgh Press

Co. v. Pittsburgh Commission on Human Relations.

Appellant‘argues.that the scope of Sections 5{(e) and S(g) is tod
' broad and that the "situation-wanted" aas will be too,difficult_to'
séreenh ﬁhat this difficulty will result ih excess. caution and that
the scrgening Woﬁld be too expensive (Appellant*s brief, pp 15f18.)

| Both :seétions clearij spell out the unlawful references. -Appellant
afgues that eVeﬁ something as basis as an individual's naﬁe, address
or telgphohe nurber could result in sex or national origin, . for

“exanmple, being indicated. The Commission does not contend that the .

. .




indiVidﬁal placing the ad should be prohibited from'inserting informa-
tion that an employer would need to contact the individual. But what the

Comm1851on is contending is that extraneous information such as "LADY

- Desires Day Work" (Exhibit A~2, R. 28a) or "YOUNG MAN - Can. Do Many
| Types of Work"'(EXhibit A-4, R. 30a), which is designated to appeal |
to the.prejudices of prespective‘employers, be.prohibited Assuming
arguendo, the Press would take the most rigid pOSltlon and prohlblt
the use of names, addresses or telephone numbers for fear that they
would contaln such lnformatlon as would violate the Act and ‘the Final
 Ordex, the :esult would only he a ﬁiher restriction which coﬁld by no
‘means begin ﬁo be an unconstitutional restraint of speech. In the
ads subﬁitted into the record less than five percent;gavelany name,.
either first'or last. Many of . the ads‘gave a pest office box_number
rather than an address or telephone nﬁmber. _Thus even.if the Court
were Lo feqﬁire the strictest interpretation of Seetion‘S(e), Sectienb
S(Q}‘and the Final‘Order, there would be no uﬁconstitutional prior
restraint of the freedoms-of the press or Speechf

It is argued that if the Press accidentally publishes an ad which
_contains'lenguage whiChrit thm@mh neutral and which was. later aeeer—
- mined to be in violation of the PennsYivania Human Relations Act or
the Finel Order that the Press would be immediatelylsubject to contempt
'charges for violating the Commission's Final Order, It is impliedrthat
_theecontempt citation would beaeutdmatic‘and wiﬁhout aﬁy review of the_
situation. Therefore, the Press's fear of the citation would act as a

prior restraint and thus constitute'censorShip.' A reading of Section 10
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of . the Actl should immediately_dispel any concern about the
use of a contempt citation acting as a prior restraint. The
Commission‘does-not havelthe power to issue a contempt citation}
it‘would have to seek the imposition of a‘contempt citation io
-.Commonwealth Court or the Court of Common’Pleas of the eounty
Vwithin‘which the:hearing was held. The opportunity that the R
Court prov1des in such cases for an examination cf the 1ssues
w;ll more than adequately protect the Press from the fear of
the automatlc lmp081tlon‘of contempt chatges if it prints a
_seemihgiy—heutral ad which is later determined to. be wviolative
of the Act. | | -
Appellant tries to diStinguish the present case from
Press by elleging that whereas in Press the deletion of sex-

based headings cause no increase in expenditure, the present

l The relevant portions of Sectlon 10 read as follows:
"The oomplalnant the Attorney General or the Commission may
secure enforcement of the order of the Commission or other
appropriate relief by the Commonwealth Court, or by the court of
common pleas of the county within which the hearing was held.-
When the Commission has heard and decided any complaint brought
before it, enforcement of its order shall be initiated by the flllng
cf a petition in such court, together with a transcrlpt of the
record of the hearing before the Commission, and issuance and service
.of a copy of said petition as in proceedings in eguity. When en-
forcement of a Commission order is sought, the court may make and
enter, upon the-pleadings, testimony and proceedings set forth in
such transcript, an order or decree enforcing, modifying and
enforcing as so modified, or setting aside,” in whole or in part,
the order of the Commission, and the jurisdiction of the court
shall not be limited by acts pertalnlng to equity jurisdiction of
the court.  An appeal may be taken as in other civil actions.

Any failure to obey an order of the court may be punished by
said court as a contempt thereof." 43 P.s. §960.
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“éase would 1mpede the paper's abillty to publish by lmpOSlng
a - financial burden" ‘resulting from a "31gnlflcant and costly
edltorlal superv151on“ (Appellant's brief, ' P. 18). There is
nothing in the record to support this argument. In Wetzel v.

' Liberty Mutual Insurance Co.} 9 E.P.D. %9942 (23d. Cir.1975), the

_insurance company tried to justify its policy of'excluding
pregnancy benefits from its employes! - income protection plan
in large part by alleging that its plah did not violate Title
VII because of "the company's legitimate interest in maintaining
the financial integrity of the plan". 9 E.P.D. 49942 at 697L.
In response to this argument the Court stated:

'"Appellaﬁt has offered no statistical information

from which we could conclude that the increased.

‘cost for pregnancy benefits would be 'devastating'.

We do realize that there would be an increased

premium. However, we are not convinced that

[the] integrity of the plan would be jeopardized.

Giving our deference to the EEOC Guidelines, ‘

we agree that cost is no defense under Title VII-

to this particular issue. 29 C.F.R. §1604.9(e).

9 E.P.D. 99%42 at- 6971. '
In Wetzel, the Court upheld the civil rlghts statute while recog-
nizing that an increase in cost would result. 1In the present
case, Appellant has submitted no evidence of any'appreéiable7
increase in cost, far less a "devastating" increase which would
imperil the.Pressf ability to publish.

Section 5(e) and 5(g) dc not create an unConstitutibnal

‘prior restraint of Pittsburgh Press' First Amendment rights.

The doctrine of prior restraint has been developed to protect

the dissemination of ideas and matters of interest to the public.
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"Situation-wanted" ads neither disseminate ideas nor matters of

interest to the public, and there is no danger of the application

of either Section 5(e) or Section 5(g) expanding so'as to act

as a prior restraint at some future date".

II; THE PITTSBURGH PRESS AIDES AND ABETS., AN UNLAWFUL

DISCRIMINATORY PRACTICE IN VIOLATION OF SECTION 5 (e)
- OF THE PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS ACT BY PUBLISHING
"SITUATION WANTED" ADVERTISEMENTS WHICH CONTAIN INFOR-

- MATION THAT AN INDIVIDUAL SEEKING EMPLOYMENT IS PROHIBITED
FROM. PUBLISHING BY SECTION 5(qg).

Section S(g) of the Pennsylvanxa Human Relations Act states.

" that it is unlawful discriminatory practlce "For an 1nd1v1dual

_seeklng employment to publish or cause to be published any

-advertlsement which spec1f1es or in any manner expresses his race,

coiorj..f (emphasie added); Sectien 5(e) of the Act states that
it is an unlawful discriminetery practice for aﬁy person to aid'
or abet the doing of any act declared‘to.be an unlawful discrim-
inatory practice by Section 5 of the Act. 'Because it is unlawful

for an individual to publish or cause to be published an adver-

tisement specifying his or her race, color, et cetera, it is

~unlawful for any person to publish?Orcause to be published such

an advertisement.

Appellant argues that it does not aid or abet a diserimiﬁ—

atory act because the Press "only accepts and publishes the

data as submitted by the individual advertiser" ($tipulation

- {h), R.10&8) (emphasis_added) and does not take any affirmative

action to aid the advertisers. Section 5(e) prohibits the
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‘aiding ox abetting of publishing an advertisement with language

which violates Section 5(@). The Actrdoeé not reqﬁire ény ~
editing or editorial commen£ in- addition to the act of
publication. Pﬁbiication of the ad, without more, is in and

of itself aiding and abetting an 1ndlv1dual to v1olate Sectlon S(g)
of the Act and therefore: constltutes a v1olatlon of Section 5(e)

Plttsburgh Press has already stlpulated that it does publlsh ‘the

: ‘prohlblted ads.

The purpcse of Sectlon 5(g) is to prevent an lnd1v1dua1
from publlshlng information about him or herself which would
appeal to a prospective employer's prejudices and permit.the

employver to hire an individuai'on the basis of an unlawful,

idiscriminatory qualification. If the individual could not get
- the advertisement published there would-be nb discriminétory
appeal'to the employer and no discriminatory hiring arising
' from it. BSection 5(g) is immeasurably strengthehéd if_én in-
dividual cannot find anyone to publish an unlawful advertisement.
To prohibit both the individual from placing the ad and the
'jpublisher from publishing if, attécks the problem.from both

'eﬁds'and'provides the most effective means of dealing With-it._

The argument that the publisher'has to engage in some
sort-of affirmative action as regards the ad, above and beyond .
the act of publishing it, not only seriously undermines Section 5(g),

it results in an absurd interpretation of Sections S(e) and (g)

‘and'Pennsylvania law. directs that in interpreting the language
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of a stétute-"thé Legislature does not inﬁeﬁd a result that is
absurd, impossible.of execution or unreasonable“,r 1 Pa. C.S.A.
"§1922(1)

The - meanlng of ‘the word publlsh is clear. It dbes not
mean to edit or to_edltorlallze; it means to print. Pittsburgh
Press has already stipulated that it publishes the "siﬁuation

 wantéd" ads as it receives them (stiﬁulation (h), R.10a).
 Pittsburgh Press has already admittedrto a Violatipn of Section
Sfe) by. aiding and abetting a violation of Section 5{g).
IIr. SECTIQN 5(g) OF THE PENNSYL?ANIA HUMANVRELATIONS
' ) ACT FURTHERS .THE POLICIES OF THE PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN
RELATIONS ACT WITHOUT VIOLATING THE FIRST OR FOURTEENTH

AMENDMENTS OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

A. SECTION 5(g) FURTHEERS THE POLICIES OF THE_
" PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS ACT.

One purpose of the PennsyivaniafHUman'Relatibns'Act is
to eliminate discrimination in employment in Pennsylvania. Ih
its "Findings and Declaration of Poliecy"™, the Act declares:

- "(b) It is hereby declared to be the public policy
~of this Commonwealth, to foster thé employment of
- all individuals in accordance with their fullest _
. capacities regardless of their race, color, religious .
creed, ancestry, handicap or digability, use of a
guide dogs because of blindness of the user, age,
sex or national origin; and to safeguard their
.right to obtain and hold employment without such’
discrimination, to assure equal opportunity to -
all individuals..." 43 P.S. §952(b).

Section 5(g) was intended to further this policy by
preventlng 1nd1v1duals from advert151ng thelr race, color,

et cetera or from stlpulatlng that they were looking for employers
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of a paxticuler race, color;et cetera, ih_order;tO‘prevent a
'person'from gaining employment by eﬁpealing to a prospective
employer's prejudices. A refiew'0f4ﬁhe legislative history

of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act cleariy‘indicates the
‘;connection.thet the legislators thought existed between such
-_advertiseﬁents ana employment discrimination. The'folloWing
~comments of Mr. Readinger, Majority Leader of the House,.clearly
indicate the reason for the inclusion of Section 5(g):

- "You would have no right to profess it [a person's
religion] for the purpose of seeking employment,
because the very statement of your creed, your
color, and so forth, is specifying a part of you .
which is the basis for this discrimination which

- we are trying to eliminate. If you are going

. to stop employers from discriminating because

.of race, color.and creed, you have to stop the
people seeking employment from saying I want
enmployment because I am Wwhite, or because I am
€olored, or because T am a Jew, or a Catholic,
or something else. %You do not stop it at one
end, _you stop it at both ends.

* kX

.+.We are not telling anybody that he cannot
profess to be a Christian, or that he is a ,
Communist, or something of that kind; but when
it comes to advertising for employment we are
-saying, 'you can't do it,' because as long as you
do, you are going to foster and spawnh more dis-
‘crimination on the part of certain people who
are looking for an opportunity to discriminate
against a certain religlon person or a certain
color of person and so forth." Volume 1, House
Legislative History, February 21, 1955, pp 442-3
(emphasis added). '

By violating Section 5(e) of the Act and printing "situation
wanted" ads which viclate Section 5(g), Pittsbﬁrgh Press is

aiding those "who are looking for an opportunitylto discriminate”.
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In the Press, supra, the Supreﬁe,Court fouﬁd that

ibly lmplication at least, an advertiser whose [help] want[ed]
ad appears in the ”Jobs - Male - Interest" column is likely

to discriminate‘against women in his hiring decision.” 413 U.S.
at_3874388. It follows from thlS 1oglc that the employer who
responds to a "s1tuatlon—wanted" ad’ which 1nd1cates the race
ocr sex of an individual or whlch-lndlcates the race or sex

of employer that the lndividual desires to work for, is likely
"to discriminate.in his or her hiring declsions._'The active

- -enforcement of both state and federal civil rigﬁts laws in

the area of employment has changed the manner in which employers‘
‘dlscrlmlnate. Employers w1shlng to dlscrlmlnate ‘have become
far more subtle in their’ dlscrlmlnatory actlons ;The blatant
refusal to hlre an individual because " we don' t‘want any Blacks
here" has, for the most part, glven way to more sophlstlcated
methods of dlscrlmlnatlon, such as non-job related requirements
:which'though neutral on their face, are discriminatory because'
they will ellmlnate a dlsproportlonate number of persons in a

 protected classes.CE: Griggs v. Duke Power Co., 401 U.s. 424 (1971).

'As the courts recognlze the subtler forms of dlscrlmlnatlon

and deal with them, employers flnd even subtler ways to dis-- -
crlmlnate._ If an individual is able to place an ad declaring
his or her race or sex for example, the employer who wishes '

to discriminatelwill be given a ready-made and safe opportunity‘.

‘to do so.
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.Employérs afe'becoming more and more sophisticated
in_theif méthods'bf discrimination.. Alldwiné tﬁe publi-
" cation 6f a "situation-wanted" ad which violates Sectlon S(g)
will allow 1nd1v1duals to appeal to. employers ‘prejudices
and further unlawful dlscrlmlnatlon in the Commonwealth..
~ The LegiSlaﬁure.fecogﬁized'this 6bvious'faCt'in 1955 when
it inclu@ed.Section 5(g) in the Peﬁnsylvania Human ?elationé
Rct. | |
B.- SECTION 5(g)'EXCLUDES POLITICAL CAMPAICN

ADVERTISEMENTS AND THEREFORE IS NOT SUBJECT

TO THE CHALLENGE OF BEING UNCONSTITUTIONALLY
OVERBROAD. :

Appelant's argument that Section 5(g) is unconstitutionally
overbroad is based entirely on his contention that political

.campaign advertisements fall within the scope of Section 5(g).

- Political campalgn advertisements do not fall w1th1n the scope

.of Sectlon S(g) as the CommlsSLOn found in its "Flndlngs of
Fact" and "Conclusions of Law": "The’ Commlsslon has not alleged
that advertlsements placed by candidates for polltlcal office
‘v1olate any provisions of the Act " (Finding of Fact ll R. 7la)
"Advertlsements placed by candidates for polltlcal offices are.
not affected by these Conclusions of Law.'.(Conclu51on of Law 7,
‘R.73a). |

- An elected official is not an employe lﬁ the sense of
-the word as used by the Pennsylvanla Human Relations Act and

- such an official is not considered to be .an employe in the
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.hormal legal usage of the term.-BladGé Law Dictionary, ﬁevised |
Fourth Edition, défines an employe as‘“One who_works'for an
'emplOYer; é persbn working'forﬂa salary or wages, applied to
anyoné so‘wofking,"but usualiy onlyrﬁo clerks, wdrkmén, labofers,
 e£c., and but rareiy to the higher officers of a corporation or

' government or to domestic servants." A similar definition is

to be found in Corpus Juris Secundum which States_that "The

term [employe]'generally is not used to-designate official
_'empioyment,'and although it is also used in referring to deputies
.and assistants of public officers, iﬁ rarely_refers to .the higher
- officers of a corporation or governmeht." 30 C.J.S5. Employee.
The inferpretationsof‘Title VIT ofithe‘United States
‘Civil Rights Act bf l964 are fréquéntly used in interpreting

_the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act.. CE. General Electric

" Corporation v. Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Pennsylvania

" Human Relationsrcdmmission, No. 185 March Term, 1975 fPa;

Supreme Court, October 20, 1976); PénnsYlvania Human Relations

Commission v. Chester Housing Authority, 458 Pa. 67, 327 A. 24
+335 -(1974). 1In this case, we need go no further than the
language of Title VII itself where the term employé is defined.
"The term 'employe' means an individual .
‘ ‘ employed by an employer, except that the term -
. ‘employe’ shall not include any person elected
: ' ‘to public office in any .state or political
. N sub-division of any state by the qualified
5 ‘ . voters thereof,..." 42 U.S.C. §2000e(s) .
'The Pennsylvania Human Relations Act and Title VII are basically

parallel statutes. As both the definitioh of employe in
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Section 4(c) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act and

the legislative history of the Act are silent on this‘issue,*

great weight should be given Title VII's'definitiqn.
Elected officials do not meet the_accepted.tests for

employees.""[T]he.test to determine whether one person is

another's employe is whether or not he is subject to the

control of such other person." 30 C.J.S. Employe. “The control

" of the work reserved in the employer which makes the employe

‘a mere servant is a control, not only of the result of the

work, but alsoc of the means and manner of the Performance

thereof.” Healey v. Carey, Baxter and Kennedy, InCQ, 144 Pa.

Supex. 500, 19A. 2d 852-(194l)ﬂ Appellant's analogy of election:

to hiring requires that the voters be considered the employer,

- for it is only by their votes that a person can gain such an

office. Therefore, in order for an elected official to ke

considered an employe under the Pennsylvania Human Relations

Act, the voters would have to be able to control the official's
actions. Control by the legislature or legal sanctions imposeéed

by the courts cannot be cited as an employer's contrdl over

the officials, because neither the Legislature nor the courts

"hired" the official. The people who elect the public official

have no control over the result of the official's work, as
innumerable disillusioned voters will testify as they see one

campaign promise after another broken, let alone control over

‘the means and manner of the performance of the work. The "employer"

of the elected official is the electorate, not,thé Commonwealth.




The electorate is not an employer‘and the‘elected official
~ is not an employe.

The Press argues that it has standingjte challenge
Section 5(g) for facial overbreadth becauselsectiOn S(gy
'involves a First Amendment freedom. As Appellantlhimseif cites,
"This expansion of the standing doetrine is justifiéd by ﬁhe;

"transcendent value to all society of constitutionally-protected

expression.’’ Gooding v. Wilson, [405 U.S. 518, 521 (1972)]."
_ ;(Appellant's brief;4, . 25). Argument 1 of this brief has
- already shown that "51tuatlon-wanted" ads are a form of
.commerc1al speech which cannot be cla551f1ed as "constltutlonally‘
protected expression". The cases that Appellant cites in his
argument all ihvolve speech that is clearly proteeted by the

First Amendment; e.g., Dombrowski v. Pfister, 380 U.S. 479 (1965)

(challenge of Louisiana' = Subversmve Act1v1t1es and Communist
,Control Law and Communlst.Propaganda Law by the Southern Con--
Lference Educatlonal Fund Inc., a civil rlghts group whlch
actively educated Blacks in their rlghts and promoted c1v1l

‘rlghts which was being repeatedly harassed by the state under

this statute); Grayned v. City of Rockford, 408 U.S. 104(1972)

'(limitatiens on the right to protest by picketing). Therefore,
‘the Pittsburgh Press has no standing to challenge the overbreadth

of ‘Section 5(g).
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C. SECTION 5(g) DOES NOT VIOLATE THE ‘SUB{STA'NTIVE
DUE PROCESS GUARANTEE OF THE FOURTEENTH_AMEND—
MENT OF "THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.
Sectien 5{(g} provides a reasoneble restriction which is
'ratiohelly related to-a legitimate state interest in its
restriction of the publication of commercial speedh which
isg not'pfdtected by the First Amendment. TheeFdUrteenth
Amendment restriction on a state's right to fegﬁlate the-
liberty of its citizens is applled through the use of two
tests. If the 1nterest restrlcted is not a fundamental one,-

,'the state need only show a "rational relationship” to a

legitimate state interest. Williamson v. Lee Optical Co.,

348 U.S. 483 (1955). 1If the interest is a fundamental one,
the state must show a "compeliing state interest“ . .Roe V.
“Wade, 410 U.S. 113 (1973). Tt has already been ‘shown that the‘

speech 1nvolved in the present case is a form of’ commer01al
speech_which is not protected by'the First Amendment and
thexefore no fundamental right is involved. 'Therefore,’the.‘
'appropriate test to be applied is the "rational reiatioﬁship"
test.‘ This test requires two factors'te be present, a legitimate
state interest and a retienal relationship between that interest
and the'regﬁlation‘imposed. |

In the presdent Case,lthe state-interest involved is the’
elimination of discrimination. The Legislature spelled out
"the-reasons'for‘that interest and its extent in,Sectioﬁ 2fa)

of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act:
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“The practice oxr policy of discrimination against-
- individuals or groups by reason of their race, color,
religious creed, ancestry, handicap or disability,
use of guide dogs because of blindness of the user,
age, sex or naticnal origin is a matter of concern .
_to the Commonwealth. Such discrimination foments
domestic strife and unrest, threatens the rights .
and privileges of the inhabitants of the Common-
~wealth, and undermines the foundations of a free
democratic state. The denial of equal employment,
housing and public accommodation opportunities
 pecause: of such discrimination, and the consequent
failure to.utilize the productive capacities of
individuals to their fullest extent, deprives large
segments of the population of the Commonwealth of
earnings necessary to maintain decent standards of
- 1living, necessitates their resort to public relief
" and intensifies group conflicts, thereby resulting
in grave injury to the public health and welfare,
compels many individuals to live in dwellings which
are substandard, unhealthful and overcrowded, re-
~sulting in racial segregation in public schools and
other community facilities, juvenile delinguency and
other evils, thereby threatening the peace, health,
safety and general welfare of the Commonwealth
and its inhabitants.”

There is no doubt that the Commonwealth has a legitimate interest
in_eliminating.discrimination within its borders.

~ Bppellant argues that there is no rational relationship

between a person's advertising his or her race or sex, for -

exanple, and employmeht discrimination. The relationship is

as rational as that which was found by the Supreme Court

+o .exist between "help-wanted" ads and employment discrimination.

Thé-logic‘whﬂjlsﬂﬁﬂs rhat advertising for a man will result

in a woman not being hired states that if you advertise your

sex you are appealing to an employer who wishes to hire someone

of that sex and the emploYef who -answers the ad answers it so

as to be able to ‘hire someone of that sex. The Legislature
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found there to be a:very'clear‘connéction beﬁwéen'ﬁhe_advertisementé
prohibited by Section 5(g) and employmeﬁt discrimination'wheﬁ'it‘
passéd the Pennsylvania-ﬁuman;ReIatidns‘ACt. |

. . ‘Even éséuming érguendo tha£ there ére;proﬁect&d Firsﬁ‘Amendment

' _rights involved’alorg with non-fundamental rights, as was the case

in United States v. O'Brien, 351 U.8. 267 (1968), §5(g) would meet
the more'stringent test. The test established by the Court in'Q'Brieq
was:
"[W]e think it clear that a government regulation
is sufficiently justified if it is within the con-
stitutional power of the government; if it furthers-
an important or substantial government interest;
. if the government interest is unrelated to the sup-
pression of free expression; and if the incidental
restriction on alleged First Amendment freedoms is

no greater than is essential to the furtherance of
that interest. :

.Theré.are four parts to the 0O'Brien test. The firét»requiremeﬁt of
 this test is tha£ the regulation be witﬁin_the constitutional power of
the Commonwealth. There is no challenge to the fact that the Comﬁdn—

‘wealth‘has.the-constitutional power to prohibit discrimiﬁation.

The second test is that the regulation must further “"an

'impoftant.gg substantial government ipterést;” The'"Findings" of the.
.Pennsylvania,Leéislature that uﬁlawful discriminatioh'"foments domestic
sfrifeland unrest} threatens the rights and.privileges_of théiinhabitants
" of the Commoﬁwealth;iand undermines the foundations of a free democratic
statef; PennsylﬁaniépHumén ReLa;ions Act, §2{a), clearly demohstrates
an imgortant and even substantial governmeht interest in eliminating

discrimination. ‘What could be a more substantial reason in the United

States than the eradicating of. something which "undermines a free
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‘democratic state"?

Thé third test is that the government interest be unrelated to
the suppression of free expression. The purpose of the Penhsylvaﬁia
Hgman Relatidns Act in general, in Section 5(95 in particularﬁ is
the elimination of discrimination in emplofment.r It is merely

incidental to its attempt to eliminate employment discrimination

that a restriction is placed on "situation-wanted" éds, a form of

compiercial speeéh. The clear intent of the Act is to eliminate

discrimination, not .to provide a limitation on free épeech or  the

freedom of the press.

The fourth and £inal test under O‘Brien‘is_that‘the'restriction
on the alleged First Amendment freedoms is no greater than is essential
to the furtherance of that interest. Contrary to Apﬁellant's.contention

in his "Statement of the Case", the Commission is not "ordering Ap-~

"pellant, Pittsburgh Press Company, to ceaée and desist from publishing

its. "situation-wanted" advertisements (Appellanti's Brief, P. 3).

The Commission's Final Order and Section 5(g) limit their attention

to "situation-wanted" ads which would encourage unlawful discriminatory

hifing‘practices. That much of a limitation is necessary to eliminate
discrimination within the Commonwealth, and that much and no more is
reguired by~thé Act and the Final Order.

Section 5(g) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act meets the

.fational relationship test and therefore does not violate the due process

substantive guarantees of the Fourteenth Amendment. Even béyond that,

it meets the more stringent test of the Supreme Court in United States

v. O'Brien, supra.
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REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION OF FINAL ORDER -

: The'exemption_contained in‘Conclusioh of L§w NQ}j6 of the' -
Commission's'Final Order was erroneously gfanted énd should be
stricken by this Court. | |

'Cénclusion of Law No. 6 reads:

"6. 'Not all situation-woanted advertisements which
specify or express’ in some manner the race, color,
religious creed, ancestry, age, sex or national
origin of an individual seeking employment are in
violation of §5(g). Those advertisements clearly’
directed at or seeking employment from prospective
employers who, are not within the jurisdiction of the
Act are not unlawful " (R. 72a) (example omitted). -

In Pittsburgh Press Employment Advertisirg Discrimination Appeal,

4 Paf Crmwlth. Ct. 448, 2377A.2d 161 (l§72), the Pittsburgh Commissidn on
Human Relations deélared it unlawful for a ﬁeWspaper to place "hélp~'
wanted" adveftisement%?from émployers un&ér‘sex—segregéted coiﬁmn
‘headings. | o o | |

Althcugh affifming the Order of the Pittsburgh éommission general—'
‘ly, this Court. held that the Order was too broad in thatithe Pittsburgh
- Commlssion 4id not have juriédicticn over certain employers,; such as
thosé wh0~employéd iess'ﬁhan fivelpersoné, or a religioﬁs, fraternal,
charitable or sectarian  organizéﬁion not supported in whole or”part
by‘§6Vernﬁental'appropriaﬁionsw Accordingly, thié Cqurt modified thé‘
Ordef of the Pittsburgh Commission so that it did not apply to ad-
= Gertisements placéd by employers exeﬁptéd from the.prohibition- of the

Crdinance.
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.Ththnited Supreme Court recognized the correctness of this

Court's modification of the Order $o as to narrow its scope and

1

Limit its terms to nopéexempt job Jopportunities. Pittsburgh Press

Co. v. Pittsbuygh Commission on Human Relations; supra.

It was'iﬁ.an‘effort to comﬁly with the instrucﬁione of'thiSVCourt
‘on narrowly drawing this kind of an Order that.the'Pennsylvania Hﬁman
Relations Commissioﬂicreated tﬁe:exemption contained in Conclusion
of Law No. 6. The Cemmissien in the consideration ‘of this issue in.
.:the preperatibn of.iEsebrief'on this eppeal has eoncluded‘that it |
was incorrect in,cfeating this'exemption.in:that the terﬁs of the

. provision of its law here in question, Section S(g},elearly'distinguiSh

this case from the Pittsburgh Press Employment Advertising,Discrimina—

tion Appeal, Supra.

The Pittsburgh Press in the previous case was held to have vio-
lated the Pitﬁsbufgh Ordinance by aiding and abetting an “émﬁloyer
“. to publish or cause to‘be“published any advertisement releted to
employment..;.'which indicates any discrimination because of race,
cblor, religion, ancestry, national origin or place‘of birth or sex."
‘Therefore; it ﬁas clearly correct to exempt emploYers who are eXempt
from the Ordinance. " Section 5(g) of the Act, on the.otherAhand, is
not based on.the Commission having jurisdiction ovef an employexr. It
.unequivccally-declares it to be_unlawfﬁl for "eny individual seeking
emp;oyment to publish or cause te be published any advertisement which

specifies or in any manner expresses his race, colcr, religious creed,
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;ancestry, age, sex or national orlgln or in any manner expresses e
llmltatlon or preference as to. the race, color, rellglous creed,
.ancestry, age, sex:@r national orlgln of any prospectlve employer."
There is no way to guarantee that ads dlrected at or seeklng employ—
ment from prospectlve employers who are not within the jurlsdlctlon

of-the Act w1ll'not:be wrltten in such general language that it will

,not be clearly limited‘to employers or positions not within the'jﬁris—

o)

dlctlon of ‘the Act,wor will not be directed at employers covered by
1
‘the Act as well as %mployers not covered by the Act.. ‘Thus, it would

appeaxr that the Comm1551on has no authorlty to in effect authorize
’a‘
certaln 1ndlv1dua19 to contlnue to p“ace advertlsements prohlblted

under Section S(g)tk

a“,

"For this reasqn, the Commission respectfully reguests this Court

to modify the Commﬁﬁflon s Final Order to eliminate the exemption

provlded in Conclusr@n cf Law No. 6.

AP
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CONCLUSION

.Neither Séqtioh S(e) or Séétion S(g)'violate the First Amendment
consﬁitutional rights_of'freedom,of the press cr freedom of speech.
_“Situatioh—wanted" ads are a form of comrercial speech which does not
fall within the'proﬁection of the First Amendenﬁ. Restrictions oh.r
"Situaticn-wanted" ads do not constitute an unconstitutional prioxr ie;
stﬁaint oL speeéh.

- Pittsburgh Press has violateé Section 5(e) Qf,the'Pennsylvanié
Human Relations Act by publishing “situatioh—wantéﬁ" ads which contain
information prohibitéd by Section 5(g). -Publiéation alonerislsufficient
to conétitute aiding or abetﬁing a violation of Seétion 5(g); further
aétion by the Press, such as éditing the ad placed with it is not
necessary. | ‘

Section-5(g) furthers the pdlicies of the Pénnsylvania Human
Relations Act by prohibiting an individual from appealing to the pre?
jﬁdiées of prospective employers.. It permits the Commission to stop
employﬁent discrimination.at both ends. The'section does.not apply to
political candidates as they are not seeking to be "employes" in the
aabepted sense of the term. Therg is ro violation of the substantive
due prOcess‘guafantees of the Fourteenth Amenament bécause the eliﬁina—
tion of discrimination'is an impértantrstate interest and Section 5(g)

. 1s calculated to serve that interest.
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The Commission_respectfuily requests that this Court modify
fhe Commission's Finai Order to eliminate the exemption provided
in Conclusioh of Law No..6 asrit wouldlappéar thaf the Commissionlhas
no.authority:to'iﬁ effect authorize certain iﬁdividuals to continue

to place advertisements prohibited under Section 5(g).

‘Respectfully submitted:

ELISABETH S. SHUSTER
Assistant General Counsel

7 2
,J/,:,/{_A/ - L/) ARy

S?ﬂﬁF(ﬂﬂZﬁIﬂkHN
Generdl Counsel

Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission
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STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

This.Céurt has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant
to Section 403 of the Act of July 31, 1970 (P.L. 673, No. 223),
known as the Appellate Court Jurisdiction Act of 1970 (17 P.S.
§ 211.403) which gives the Commonwealth Court exclusive jurisdiction

of appeals from final orders of administrative agencies.




STATEMENT OF THE QUESTIONS PRESENTED

I. Is the Pittsburgh Press aiding and abetting an unlawful

discriminatory practice by publishing situation wanted advertise-

ments?

II. Do Sections 5(e) and 5(g) of the Pennsylvania Human
Relations Act violate the First Amendment of the United States

Constitution?

IIT. Does Section 5(g) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations
Act violate the substantive due process guarantee of the Fourteenth

amendment of the United States Constitution?

IV. Is Section 5(g) of the Pennsyivania Human Relations

Act unconstitutionally overbroad?




STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from an order of the Pennsylvania
Human Relations Commissién ofdering Appellant Pittsburgh Press
Company to cease and desist from publishing its "situation-wanted"
advertisements (R. 76a). The dispute arose from a Human Relations
Commission complaint charging the Press with maintaining "a pattern
and practice of aiding and abetting the doing of an unlawful
discriminatory act prohibited by Section 5(g} of the Pennsylvania
Human Relations Act in that [the Pressl prints in its situation-
wanted column advertisements which specify or express the race
and/or sex of the individuals placing the advertisement"” (R. 2a).
This publishing was held to be in violation of Section 5(e) of the
Act (43 P.S. § 955(e)) which forbids the aiding or abetting of an

unlawful discriminatory practice.

The Pittsburgh Press prints a "Situations Wanted" classi-
fication within its Classified Advertisement pages as a public
service to the readers of the Greater Pittsburgh Metropolitan area
(stip. 4, e; R. 9a). The "Situation Wanted" classification is a
section in which persons seeking employment describe themselves
and/or the type of job which they are seeking (Stip. f£; R. 9a).

The ads are a serfice to both prospective employers and employees.

The Press accepts and publishes the information exactly as




submitted by the advertiser (Stip. h; R. 10a). It does not maintain
sex-based headings or any other headings or make any change in the
content of the ads. Similar ads appear in other newspapers within

the Commission's jurisdiction (R. 60a-66a).

The Commission recognized that the Press takes no active
part in the wording of the advertisements (R. 70a), but found offen-
sive the advertiser's personal references. Examples of ads objected
to by the Commission did not state discriminatory preferences, but
rather identified the advertiser's sex, race, religion and age

(R. 70a).




SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Pittsburgh Press accepts and publishes the situation
wanted ads as a public service exactly as they.are submitted by
the individual advertisers. The act of publication does not con-
stitute aiding, abetting, inciting, compelling or coercing an
unlawful discriminatory practice. The Press does not change the
wording of the ads, nor does it maintain discrihinatory column

headings for placement of the ads.

Even though the situation wanted ads involve aspects of
commercial speech, they are within the protection of the First
Amendment. Under the recent trend of the United States Supreme
Court, the ads would be entitled to constitutional protection even
if considered to be purely commercial becausé of the public inter-
est in the factuai information conveyed. Interference with the
Press' First Amendment freedom to publish by the broad and vague
prohibition of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act is an uncon-

situtional prior restraint of expression.

Section 5(g) of the Human Relations Act violates the
substantive due process gquarantee of the Fourteenth Amendment
because it interferes with First Amendment freedoms without fur-
therance of a substantial government interest. Section 5(g) does

not foster non-discriminatory employment which is the enunciated




purpose of the Human Relations Act.

Section 5(g) is also void for unconstitutional overbreadth.
On its face, the section sweeps political advertising within its
scope. Political expression is clearly protected by the First
Amendment. Under the recognized constitutional doctrine of over-
breadth, such a statute must be held void even though political
advertising was not raised in the instant complaint. Standing is
expanded in First Amendment cases because of the constitutional

prominence of freedom of expression.




ARGUMENT

I. THE PITTSBURGH PRESS IS NOT AIDING AND ABETTING AN

UNL%EfﬂL DISCRIMINATORY PRACTICE BY PUBLISHING SITUATION
WANTED ADVERTISEMENTS.

Section 5(e) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act

(43 P.S. § 955(e}) makes it an unlawful, discriminatory practice:

For any person, whether or not an em-

ployer, employment agency, labor organi-

zation, or employee to aid, abet, incite,

compel or coerce the doing of an act

declared by this section to be an unlaw-

ful discriminatory practice...
The Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission has found the Pittsburgh
Press to be in violation of the above section by publishing "Situa-
tion Wanted" advertisements which "specify or in some manner express"
the race, color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex or national

origin of the advertisers in violation of Section 5(g) of the Act

(43 P.S. § 955(g)).

The Pittsburgh Press accepts and publishes the situation
wanted ads as a public service exactly as they are submitted by the
individual.advertisers, and without regard to their contents (Stip.
h; R. 10a). The Press commits no act in furtherance of an unlawful

purpose. In Pittsburgh Press Co. v. Pittsburgh Commission on

Human Relations, 413 U.S. 376 (1973), the newspaper was found guilty

of aiding and abetting unlawful discrimination by virtue of its




active maintenance of separate help wanted ad columns designated
"Jobs~Male Interest"”, "Jobs~Female Interest", and "Male-Female
Help." The Press would permit the advertiser to select the column
within which its ad would be inserted and if no selection was
indicated, the Press would make special inquiry of the advertiser
and then place the ad accordingly. In the present case, the Press
takes no affirmative action to aid the advertisers. It does not
maintain sex-based columns or publish headings. It makes no in-
quiries of the advertisers promoting or suggesting unlawful dis-

crimination.

The Supreme Court, in holding against the Press in the
help wanted ad case, stressed the active role of the Press in the
discriminatory scheme.

[Tlhe practice of placing want ads for
non-exempt employment in sex-designated
columns did indeed "aid" employers to
indicate illegal sex preferences. The
advertisements, as embroidered by their
placement, signaled that the advertisers
were likely to show an illegal sex pref-
erence in their hiring decisions. 413
U.S. at 389,

Similarly, this Court held in its opinion of the help wanted ad

case, Pittsburgh Press Employment Advertising Discrimination Appeal,

4 Pa. Cnwlth. 448, 463, 287 A.2d 161, 169 (1972):

What is of importance is that through
the use of its arbitrarily selected




column headings the Pittsburgh Press
"aids" such employers to discriminate.
When the Pittsburgh Press arbitrarily
arranges and publishes such column
headings it is aiding in sex discrimina-
tion.

It is clear that in the opinions of both this Court and

the United States Supreme Court in the Pittsburgh Press case,

supra, the presence of column headings and the exercise of independ-
ent judgment by the Préss concerning ad placement were essential

to the finding of aiding and abetting unlawful discrimination.
Neither means of active participation is present in the instant

case.

The Press, then, does not aid and abet a violation of
Section 5(g) of the Act by mere publication of situation wanted
ads as they are submitted by advertisers. Furthermore,_it does
not promote the identified evil aimed at by Section 5(g) and by
the Act as a whole, viz, invidious employment discrimination. The
publiéation of one's éersonal characteristics and qualifications
doeé not enable oi even encourage a prospective employer to dis-
criminaté in his hiring selection any more than does the prepara-
tion of a resume or a personal appearance at an interview. To
hold:that such a neutral practice as publication of these advertise-
 ments-aids7or abets the unlawful practice of employment discrim-

ination is to mock the intended purpose of the Human Relations Act.




II. SECTIONS 5(e) AND 5(g) OF THE PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN
RELATIONS ACT VIOLATE THE FIRST AMENDMENT OF THE
UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

A, "Situation Wanted" Ads Are Entitled to First
‘Amendment Protection.

In Valentine v. Chrestensen, 316 U.S. 52, 54 (1942)

thé Supreme Court first established the doctrine of commercial
speech, holding that the Constitution which restrains governments
from interfering with the freedom of speech "imposes no such
restraint on go#ernment as respects purely commercial advertising.”
In that case, the Court sustained the application of an ordinance
banning the distribution of handbills where a public interest

message was appended to the handbill solely to evade the ordinance.

Speech has been held by the United States Supreme
Court to be protected by the First Amendment, even though it was

paid for, New York Times v. Sullivan, 376 U.S. 254 (1964), sold

for a profit, Joseph Burstyn, Inc. v. Wilson, 343 U.S. 4%5 (1952},

motivated by hope of financial gain, Thomas v. Collins, 323 U.S.

516 (1945), or involved sales or soliciations, Murdock v.

Pennsylvania, 319 U.S. 105 (1943) . Under these holdings, the fact

that the Press' situation wanted ads are paid for by individuals
seeking employment does not establish them as purely commercial

and outside the protection of the First Amendment.

-10-




The Supreme Court has recently limited the commercial
speech even further, clearly entitling the situation wanted ads here

to First Amendment protection. In Bigelow v. Virginia, 421 U.s.

809 (1975) the Court held that a newspaper editor's First Amendment
rights were unconstitutionally abridged by his conviction under a
statute making it a misdemeanor to encourage or prompt the procuring
of abortions through advertising. The Court referred to Valentine

V. Chrestensen, supra, at 819-20:

[Tlhe holding is distinctly a limited
one: the ordinance was upheld as a
reasonable regulation of the manner in
which commercial advertising could be
distributed. The fact that it had the
effect of banning a particular handbill
does not mean that Chrestensen is auth-
ority for the proposition that all statutes
requlating commercial advertising are
immune from constitutional challenge.
The case obviously does not support any
sweeping proposition that advertising
is unprotected per se.

Even more recently, in Virginia State Board of

Pharmacy v, Virginia Citizens Consumer Council, Inc., 96 S.Ct. 1817,

1824 (1976) the Supreme Court noted its trend away from the com-

mercial speech doctrine.

Since [1951] the Court has never
denied protection on the ground that the
speech in issue was "commercial speech."
That simplistic approach, which by then
had come under criticism or was regarded
as of doubtful validity by members of the
Court, [footnote omitted] was avoided in

-11-




Pittsburgh Press Co. v. Pittsburgh
Comm®n. on Human Relations [citation
omitted]. [Court's emphasis.]

o Last Term, in Bigelow v. Virginia
[citation omitted], the notion of unpro-
tected "commercial speech" all but passed
from the scene.

In Bigelow v. Virginia, supra, the Court found the

crucial element entitling publications to Constitutional protection
is not whether it is commercial, but whether it contains some
degree of publié interest. ™"The advertisement published in
appellant'’s newspaper did more than simply propose a commercial
transaction. It contained factual material of clear 'public inter-
est'." 421 U.S. at 822, The parties have stipulated that the
advertisements in the instanﬁ matter are published in the public
interest (Stip. e; R. 9%9a). Moreover, the United States Supreme
Court has recognized that the advertisements at issue are in the
public interest, providing to our society the ability to continue

the free flow of commercial information. See, Virginia State Board

of Pharmacy v. Virginia Consumer Council, Inc., supra at 1827,

where the Court held:

Generalizing, society also may have
a strong interest in the free flow of
commercial information. Even an indi-
vidual advertisement, though entirely
"commercial®, may be of general public
interest. ... Our pharmacist for ex-
ample could cast himself as a commenta-
tor on store-to-store disparities in

=12~




drug prices... We see little point in
requiring him to do so, and little dif-
. ference if he does not.
The Court went on to hold that even advertising that appears taste-

less and excessive is dissemination of commercial information which

is indispensable.to the free enterprise economy.

In Bigelow v. Virginia, supra at 821, the Court

cited Pittsburgh Press Co. v. Pittsburgh Commission on Human Relations,

413 U.S. 376 (1973) for the principle that commercial advertising

enjoys a degree of First Amendment protection. In the Pittsburgh

Press case the Court sustained an ordinance forbidding newspapers
to carry help wanted ads in sex-designated columns. The Court
upheld the ordinance against arguments that the exchange of infor-
mation is as important in the commercial realm as in any other,
The Court at 388, reserved judgment on this argument as it may
apply in other contexts holding it unpersuasive in the want ads
case since "discrimination in employment is not only commercial

activity, it is illegal commercial activity under the Ordinance.”

[Court's emphasis.]

This illegality argument is not applicable in the
present case of situation wanted ads. Sex-designated help wanted
ads encourage employers to establish a sexual basis of employment
discrimination. Situation wanted ads do not. Employers are pro-

hibited from hiring in accordance with a preference based on racial

-13-




or sexual classifications. Potential employees are not limited in
their selection of a position. The instant ads merely convey factual

information concerning the identity of the advertisers.

In the Pittsburgh Press case, supra, neither the

section of the ordinance prohibiting sexual discrimination nor
that section prohibiting advertisements indicating sexual discrim-
ination were challenged. The Press challenged only the section
prohibiting the aiding of violation of the ordinance. Therefore,
the illegality argument applied. In the present case, Appellant
does challenge Section 5(g) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations
Act as unconstitutionally overbroad and unduly interfering with
First Amendment freedoms.. To hold, therefore, that Appellant is
in violation of the Act because its activities are illegal under
the Act would be to rely on circular argument.

B. Interference With the Press' Publication of

Wgituation Wanted" Ads Is an Unconstitutional
Prior Restraint of First Amendment Freedons.

There is a heavy presumption against the constitu-
tional vélidity of any prior restraint of expression. New York

Times v. United Stétes, 403 U.S. 713 (1971); Smith v. California,

361 U.S. 147 (1959); Grosjean v. American Press Co., Inc., 297

U.S. 233 (1936); Near v. Minnesota, 283 U.S. 691 (1931). The

blanket prohibitions imposed by Section 5(g) of the Pennsylvania

-14-




Human Relations Act, (43 P.S. § 955(g)) require the Press to make
judgments concerning advertisements before there has been an ade-
guate determination that the speech involved is, in fact, unpro-
tected. This clearly constitutes a prior restraint on the Press’

freedom to publish and is therefore unconstitutional.

lSection 5(g) outlaws publication of aﬁy indication
_of race, color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex, or national
origin. Accordingly, the Press would be in violation of the Act
if it‘printed such facts as: an advertiser's name, since this may
indicate sex, religion, ancestry or national origin; an advertiser's
alma mater, since this may indicéte religion or sex; an advertiser's
picture; date of birth; date of graduation; or even the advertiser's
address since this may indicate race or national origin. The wide
scope of the prohibition thus renders it extremely difficult, if
not impossible, for the Press to screen pctential ads. Moreover,
if the Press errs in the inclusion of a seemingly neutral character-
7 istic, it is subiject to contempt charges for viclation of the
Human Relation Commission's order. Under the holding of Near v.

Minnesota, supra at 713, "This is of the essence of censorship.®

In Smith v. California, supra, the Court again dealt

with the problems of imposing censorship on the free press by re-

quiring it to conform to a vague standard. 1In that case a bookstore

-15-




owner was convicted under a California statute outlawing the
possession of obscene books with no requirement of scienter. The
Court held at 151:

And this Court has intimated that

‘stricter standards of permissible

statutory vagueness may be applied to

a statute having a potentially inhibit-

ing effect on speech; a man may the less

be required to act at his peril here, be-

cause the free dissemination of ideas may

be the loser. [Court's emphasis.]
The Smith Court went on to reason that the bookseller's burden
would become the public's burden as the public's access to infor-
mation would be limited by the bookseller's self-censorship com-

pelled by fear of conviction.

The Supreme Court extended its position against

prior restraints of First Amendment freedoms in the commercial

speech context in Bigelow v. Virginia, 421 U.S. 809, 828 (1975):

The strength of appellant's inter-
est was augmented by the fact that the
statute was applied against him as pub-
lisher and editor of a newspaper, not
against the advertiser or a referral
agency or a practitioner. The prosecu-
tion thus incurred more serious First
-Amendment overtones.

"[T]he special vice of a prior restraint is that
communication will be suppressed, either directly or by inducing

excessive caution in the speaker, before an adequate determination

-16—-




that it is unprotected by the First Amendment,....” Pittsburgh

Press Co. v. Pittsburgh Comm'n on Human Relations, supra, at 390.

In the case of situation wanted ads, there is more involved than
the repetitive conduct of placement of ads and printing of

column headings. The content of the ads is sought to be controlled.
Conformity with the Commission's order will require sigﬁificant
editorial judgment on the part of the Press as +o whether a
particular ad includes unlawful reference to race, color, religious
creed, ancestry; age, sex or national origin. As hereinabove
mentioned, refereﬁce to these factors may be subtle, such as in
identification of an advertiser's alma méter, and there is con-

siderable danger of restraint of protected expression.

The present case is also one in which, unlike
the help wanted ads case, the court is asked to "speculate as to

the effect of the publication." 1In the Pittsburgh Press case,

supra at 387-88, the Court held, "By implication at least, an
advertiser whose want ad appears in the *Jobs-Male Interest' column
is likely to discriminate against women in his hiring decisions.®
There is no such implication to be drawn in the present case. Mere
publication of one's own personal characteristics and qualifications
is not an instrument of employment discrimination. The connection

is too remote to even be labelled speculative.

=17~




A further distinction may be made between the present

case and the Sﬁpreme Court's holding in Pittsburgh Press, supra,
where no prior féstraint was found. 1In that case the regulation did
not impede the ?aper's ability to publish by imposing. a financial
burden. ©No editorial judgment was required. The paper was only
ordered to elimihate its sex-based headings. 1In the present case,
significant and costly editorial supervision will be required of

the Press. Such an imposition by the government of financial burden
upon the press is as much a prior restraint as was the state license

tax which was held unconstitutional in Grosjean v. American Press

Co., Inc., 297 U.S. 233 (1936). The Court held at 250, "A free press
stands as one of the great interpreters between the government and

the people. .To allow it to be fettered is to fetter ourselves."

In the present case, the Pennsylvania Human Rela~
tions Commission does seek to fetter the Pittsburgh Press' freedom
to publish. Conformance with Section 5(g) of the Act would require
the Press to make extensive editorial judgments concerning the
content of its situation wanted ads before their publication and
before there has beeﬁ an adequate determination that the content
is unprotected speech. This is the essence of unconstitutional
prior restraint of expression. This is the essence of censor~-

ship.

-18~-




III.  SECTION 5(g) OF THE PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS ACT
VIOLATES THE SUBSTANTIVE DUE PROCESS GUARANTEE OF THE
FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

Section 5(g) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act

(43 P.S. § 955(@)) provides that it shall be an unlawful discrimin-

atory practice:

For any individual seeking employ-
. ment to publish or cause to be published
any advertisement which specifies or in
any manner expresses his race, color,
religious creed, ancestry, age, sex or
national origin, or in any manner ex-
presses a limitation or preference as to
the race, color, religious creed, ances-
try, age, sex or national origin of any
prospective employer.

The Section is violative of the substantive due process
guarantee of the_Fourteenth Amendment in that it restricts the
freedom of the Pittsburgh Press and its advertisers without serv—
ing a legitimate governmental interest. The Fourteenth Amendment
restricts the power of the states to regulate the liberty of their

citizens. When the liberty in jeopardy is a fundamental one, the

state must show a compelling state interest to justify its regula-

tion. Roe v. Wade, 410 U.s. 113 (1973), Dunn v. Blumstein, 405
U.S. 330 (1972). Rational relation to a legitimate state interest

is required to justify regulation of commercial activity. Williamson

v. Lee Optical Co., 348 U.S. 483 (1955).
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When First Amendment rights are involved, as in the
present case, fundamental freedoms are often intertwined with
non-fundamental activities such as the non-speech draft card burn-

ing in United States v. O'Brien, 391 U.S. 367 (1968) . Nonetheless,

the First Amendment aspects of the activity entitle it to due pro-
cess protection. The O'Brien Court held at 377:

[Wle think it clear that a govern-
‘ment regulation is sufficiently justi-
fied if it is within the constitutional
‘power of the government; if it furthers
an important or substantial government
interest; if the governmental interest
is unrelated to the suppression of

free expression; and if the incidental
restriction on alleged First Amendment
freedoms is no greater than is essential
to the furtherance of that interest.

Even though there are commercial aspects to the situation
wanted ads, they must be tested under the O'Brien standard since
First Amendment freedoms are involved. As heretofore set forth,
the advertisements are within the protection of the First Amend-

ment under the recent decisions of Virginia State Board of Pharmacy

V. Virginia Citizens Consumer Council, Inc., 96 S.Ct. 1817 (1976),

Bigelow v. Virginia, 421 U.S. 809 (1975) and Pittsburgh Press Co.

v. Pittsburgh Comm'n on Human Relations, 413 U.S. 376 (1973).

Section 5(g) fails the O0'Brien test. It does not further

a substantial government interest. The purpose of the Pennsylvania
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Human Relations Act is'"to foster the employment of all individuals
in accordance with their fullest capacities, regardless of their
race, color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex or national origin,
and to safeguard their right to obtain and hold eméloyment without
such discrimination.” 43 P.S. § 952(b). This is a valid and praise-
worthy government concern but is not served by Section 5(g}) and its
ban on individual advertising of situations wanted. The ads here
are merely publications of immutable personal characteristics. If
prohibitions of these ads is in furtherance of the Human Relations
Act goals, then so would be the mailing of employment resumes or
éven the signature on a letter of application. Surely the Com-
mission would not prevent such activities although the job appli-
cant.wbuld be publicizing age, sex, religion, race or national

origin. *

Moreo#er, the action of the legislature in prohibiting
advertisements which may indicate a person's age, sex, religion,
race or national origin may be contravening its own expressed
legislative intent. The Commission has issued regulations requir-
ing contractors who are receiving public funds or contributions
from the Commonwealth to establish an affirmative action program
to eliminate and correct any deficiencies in the hiring or pro-
moting of minority groups or women. 16 Pa. Code, Ch. 49.51 et. seq.
In fuftherance of this policy the Commission, as well as federal
agencies, encourage advertisements in publications having a

»
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demonstrable female and minority readership. Another method
frequently used to further this policy is to review the "Situation
Wanted" advertisements to determine if females and minorities are

available for employment and to determine the types of employment

they are seeking.

Purther, the Commission has not established by its ex-
hibits any connection between the publication of situation wanted
ads and employment discrimination. For the total period covered by
the Commission's exhibits, approximately 19% of the sex-indicative
words considered objectionable by the Commission referred to the
male sex whilefapproximately 14% referred to the female sex. The
similarity of the figures indicates that neither group considers
itself at a disadyantage to mention sex. When it is considered
that there is no way to determine the actual percentage of males
and femalés placing the ads, it becomes even more difficult to
draw the conclusion that sex-indicative words in want ads lead to

job discrimination.

In Virginia'State Board of Pharmacy v. Virginia Citizens

Consumer Council, Inc., supra, the Supreme Court struck down

Virginia's ban on prescription drug advertising even though the
‘ban_ could arguably serve the state interest of maintaining pro-

fessionalism among state-licensed pharmacists. The challenge
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there as here was based on the First Amendment. The Pittsburgh
Press also bases its challenge on the First Amendment and the

reasoning of Virginia State Board is applicable. The Court noted

that the advertising ban did not directly affect the professional
standards involved. The only possible effect would be through "the
reactions it is assumed people will have..." 96 S.Ct. at 1829.
Similarly, in the present case, the Commission makes the substantial
assumption that discrimination will result from reactions to the
situation wanted ads, First Amendment freedoms should not be cur-
tailed on the basis of such an attenuated relationship to government

interest. The Court concluded in Virginia State Board, supra at

1829:

: There is, of course, an alterna-
tive to this highly paternalistic ap-
proach. That alternative is to assume
that this information is not in itself
harmful, that people will perceive their
own best interests only if they are well
enough informed, and that the best means
to that end is to open the channels of
communication rather than to close them.
... It is precisely this kind of choice,
between the dangers of suppressing in-
formation, and the dangers of its misuse
if it is freely available, that the First
Amendment makes for us.

The government interest in equality of employment oppor-
tunity underlying the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act is in no

way achieved or even advanced by Section 5(g). Reference to
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personal characteristics by potential employees in situation
wanted ads do not promote the establishment of discriminating
classifications by employers. The absence of these personal refer-
ences will not prevent an employer from continuing unlawful dis-
crimination. Since Section 5(g) restricts the exercise of Firét
Amendment freedoms while bearing no rational relationship to the
elimination of employment discrimination it is unconstitutional as

violative of the substantive due Process guarantee of the Pourteenth

Amendment.

Iv. SECTION 5(g) OF THE PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS ACT
IS UNCONSTITUTIONALLY OVERBROAD.

Section 5(g) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act is
void for overbreadth because it sweeps within its scope political
campaign advertisements which are undoubtedly protected by the
First Amendment. The Section makes it an unlawful discriminatory
practice:

For any individual seeking emplofment
to publish or cause to be published
any advertisement which specifies or
in any manner expresses his race, color,
religious creed, ancestry, age or
national origin....
The Commission, in its Order, made only a brief reference to the

political candidate question, holding "Advertisements placed by

candidates for political offices are not affected by these
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Conclusions of Law" (R. 73a). On the contrary, political candidates
do fall within the provisions of Section 5(g) and their activities
would be limited by aﬁy order intefpreting that section. There is
nothing in Section 5(g), or in the definitions of Section 4 (43 P.S.
§ 954) to exclude political candidates. "Individual” is not de-
fined in the Act and a standard interpretation would certainly in-
clude political candidates. Employers are defined, at Section 4(b)
as including "the Commonwealth or any political subdivision ox board,
department, commission or school district thereof.™ Again, political

employment is apparently contemplated by the Act.

The Press is not limited in its argument to the allega-
tions of the Complaint which refer only to situation wanted ads.
The Supreme Court has expressly eliminated such limitations in
challenges for facial overbreadth concerning First Amendment free-
doms. When the freedom of expression is jeopardized by an over-
broad statute, the Court grants standing to a challenge even though
the present case may not involve punishment of a protected activity

as to this challenger. Gooding v. Wilson, 405 U.S. 518, 521 (1972),

Grayned v. City of Rockford, 408 U.S. 104, 114 (1972), Dombrowski

v. Pfister, 380 U.S. 479, 486 (1965). This expansion of the stand-

ing doctrine is justified by "the transcendent value to all society

of constitutionally protected expression." Gooding v. Wilson,

supra at 521. The Pittsburgh Press, then, has standing under the
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clearly enunciated policy of the Supreme Court to challenge Section
5(g) as it may be applied to political advertisements even though
none was -mentioned in the Commission's Complaint and even though the

Press itself would not be a political candidate.

Once standing is recognized, there is little question
that the Press must prevail on the merits of its overbreadth chal-
lenge. Campaign advertisements are Clearly protected expression

under the First Amendment. Buckley v. Valeo, 96 S.Ct. 612 (1976).

Political freedom was the cornerstone of the First Amendment from
its inception. The commercial nature of campaign advertising does

not remove it from Constitutional protection. In Buckley, supra,

the Court recognized the Constitutional prominance of political
speech and concomitantly, campaign expenditures. The Court held,

at 633:

[Tlhis Court has never suggested that
the dependence of a communication on
the expenditure of money operates it-
self to introduce a non-speech element
Oor to reduce the exacting scrutiny re-
quired by the First Amendment.

In New York Times v. Sullivan, 376 U.S. 254 (1964) the Court also

held that paid-for political advertising was entitled to the same
First Amendment protection as any political expression. Section
5(g) also appears to apply to the use of posters, lapel pins and

bumper stickers in its prohibition of "publications". These are
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also First Amendment forums which are Clearly entitled to Consit-

tutional protection.

V. CONCLUSION.

While it may be said that the goal of the Pennsylvania
Act is a laudable one, the action of the Commission in the instant
case bears no rational relationship to the evil sought to be
eliminated. Some of the greatest dangers to liberty lurk in the
assiduous encroachment by men and women of zeal, often well mean-
ing, but without understanding of the problems involved. The
actions of the Commission here have encrouched not only in the
editorial hand of the newspaper, but the freedom of the individual

to express himself.

In the'ﬁords of Alexander Meiklejohn "The First Amend-
ment was not written primarily for the protection of those intel-
lectﬁal aristocrats who pursue knowledge solely for the fun of
the game, whosé search for truth expresses nothing more than a
private intellectual curiosity or an equally private delight and
pride in mental achievement. It was written to clear the way for
thinking which serves:the general welfare." To uphold the Com-~

rission's ruling is to abridge the freedom of our public citizenry
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to discourse. The ruling of the Commission must be reversed and

its complaint dismissed.
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SECTIONS 5(e) AND 5(g) OF THE PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS

ACT VIOLATE THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

A. Situation Wanted Ads are Constitutionally Protected Speech.

Situation wanted ads are individual expressions of the
advertisers' personal characteristics and employment qualifications
and are entitled to protection under the First Amendment. The
fact that they are paid for does not remove their Constitutional
protection, The Commission argues that the situation wanted ads
at issue in the ﬁresent case are not entitled to constitutional
protection because they are strictly commercial speech (Appellee's
Brief at pp. 6-9, 13). It certainly is questionable to categorize
as strictly commercial speech an individual'’s endeavor to seek
employment through the placing of an advertisement.

However, assuming arguendo that we may here be‘déaling with
commerciél’sPééch the Commission disrégards the most recent
pronouncements of the United States Supremé Court and a stipulation
of fact in the present case. The Supreme Court held that "'the
notion of unprotected ’'commercial speech' [has] all but passed

from the scene." Virginia State Board of Pharmacy v, Virginia

Citizens Consumer Council, Tnc., 96 S.Ct. 1817 (1976). 1Imn that

decision and in Bigelow v. Virginia, 421 U.S. 809 (1975), the

Court held that public interest is the crucial element in the

determination of whether speech is entitled to full constitutional




protection., The parties in the present case have stipulated to
the public interest contained in the situation wanted ads.

"[The Pittsburgh Press] prints, as a

public service, on & daily and Sunday

basis, within its Classified Advertisement
pages, & 'Situation Wanted' classification.”
[Emphasis added] (Stip. e, R. 9a)

A finding of public interest in the present case is
consistent with the recent holdings of the United States Supreme

Court. In Virginia State Board cf Pharmacy, supra at 1827, the

Court reéognized the public interest in the free flow of commercial
information énd granted constitutional protectidn to the advertise-
‘ment of prescription drug prices. The Court held that it would
not require the advertisers to justify the public iﬁterest in
their ads by'casting them as social commentaries.

Moreover, the Commission continues to speculate that the
information in the advertisements is "designed to appeal to the
prejudices of prospective employers..." (Appellee's Brief at p. 4).
There was no proof offered to butress these unwarranted assumptions,
Apparently, it took the Commission over twenty years to even
reach these assumptions. It was assumptions and assumed reactions

such as these that the Supreme Court in Virginia State Board,

supra at 1829, felt could not override an individual's First
Amendment rights. The Supreme Court would not prohibit the
pharmacists' right to publicize prices merely to prevent a possible
lowering of professional standards. Speculation was insufficient

jusitifcation for interference with First Amendment rights.
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The Commission argues that Pittsburgh Press Co. v. Pittsburgh

Commission on Human Relations, 413 U.S. 376 (1973) is dispositive

on the commercial speech issue (Appellee's Brief at p. 9). That
case dealt with help wanted ads placed by prospective employers,
and even then the Court reserved judgment on the commercial
speech question. 413 U.S. at 388. Here we have individuals
seeking to be employed. They are not limited in their choice of
employment. The publication by an individuai of his or her own
personal qualifications and characteristics dbes nbt prOmotel
unlawful discriminatory employment and no evidence has been
presented to indicate it does. |

B. . The Restrictions Imposed by Sections 5(e) and 5(g) of the

Pennsylvania Human Relations Act Constitute an Unconstitutional
Prior Restraint of Expression.

The Commission argues that restrictions of Sections 5(e) and
5(g) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act do not constitute
an unconstitutional prior restraint of expression (Appellee's
Brief at pp. 12-17). The Commission again disregards Stipulation e
(R. 9a) and bases its argument on the contention that situation
wanted ads are not entitled to constitutional protection because
they do not serve the public interest. Once the public interest
of the ads is recognized as stipulated, it is beyond question that
the restriction upon them is a prior restraint. Even without
public interest, there is a prior restraint since publishers may
hesitate to publish what is clearly protected expression out of

a fear of penalty.




The Commission compares the present case with that in

Pittsburgh Press, supra, where the Court found no prior restraint.

This comparison is improper for two reasons. The Court in

Pittsburgh Press mnever made a decision on the public interest

issue because the ordimance was unchallenged and therefore the

publications were illegal. Furthermore, in Pittsburgh Press,

the Court found a practice of placing help wanted ads in sex-
designated columns in a "continuing course of repetitive conduct.”
413 U.S. at 390. The challenged conduct in the present case,
publication of situation wanted ads which in "any manner expresses'
the advertisers' race, color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex
or national origin is not repetitive or continuous as is fhe
classifying of ads under sex-designated columns. To conform to
the order in the help wanted ads case, the Press was only required
to eliminate its columm headings. Cdnformance in the present case
requires a case-by-case scrutiny for personal references which
may be as subtle as the mention of the advertiser's name.

| The difficulty of editorial judgments in the present case
would lead the Press to censorship of protected expression which

is the essence of prior restraint. Near v,'Minnesota, 283 U.s.

691 (1931). As quoted by the Commission (Appellee's Brief at

pP. 12) the Supreme Gourt held in Pittsburgh Press, supra at 390:

"The special vice of a prior restraint
is that communication will be suppressed,




"either directly or by inducing excessive
caution in the speaker, before an adequate
determination that it is unprotected by
the First Amendment."

The Commission argues that there is no prior restraint in
the present case because Sections 5(e) and 5(g) of the Act ''clearly
spell out the unlawful references" providing a standard for the
Press and therefore, cemsorship will not result (Appellee's
Brief at p. 14). Section 5(g) may not under any interpretation
be classified as "clear." It provides that it is an unlawful
- discriminatory practice:

"For any individual seeking employ-
ment to publish or cause to be published
any advertisement which specifies or in
any manner expresses his race, color,
religious creed, ancestry, age, sex or
national origin, or in any manner expresses
a limitation or preference as to the race,
color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex
or national origin of any prospective
employer.!" [Emphasis added} 43 P.S. §955(g)

The Appellant has already suggested to the Court types of
seemingly neutral characteristics such as name, address, alma
mater, and date of graduation which may "in any manner' express
race, age, sex or national origin (Appellantis Brief at p. 15).
The Commission attempts to dismiss this argument by imposing its
own qualification to interpret the Act to permit "information
that an employer would need to contact the individual” (Appellee's
Brief at p. 15). This qualification does not appear in the Act.

Information necessary for contact by the employer such as name,




telephone number and address may, and on many occasions does,
reflect sex, race or national origin.

The Commission refers to the complete elimination of
offensive references from advertisements as "the most rigid
position” even though such editing is clearly mandated by the
Act (Appellee's Brief at p. 15). The Commission argues that the
result of stricﬁ compliance with the Act "would only be a minor
restriction which could by no means begin to be an unconstitutional
restraint of speech” (Appellee's Brief at p. 15). Such a
qualification of the First Amendment freedom of speech is
constitutionally untenable. There is no such thing as a "minor
restriction” of constitutional rights.

The Commission continues its equivocating ﬁith Firsﬁ Amend-
ment freedoms by arguing that the Press would not censor its ads
since there is no danger of immediate contempt proceedings for an
unintentional violation of the Act, but rather, a hearing is
provided replete with procedural due process. The self-imposed
censorship which constitutes an unconstitutional prior restraint
of expression is not affected by the justice of the contempt
proceedings. So long as a fear of penalty chills free expression,

there is a prior restraint, Smith v. California, 361 U.S. 147

(1959), Near v. Mimmesota, supra.

The Commission also attempts to refute the prior restraint

argument by contending that the costs imposed upon the Press for




aditing the advertisements would be minimal and, therefore, would
not chill First Amendment freedoms. Comstitutional rights may

not be qualified. The Commission cites Wetzel v. Liberty Mutual

Insurance Co., 9 E.P.D. §9942 (3rd Cir. 1975) as authority for

its contention that a minimal expense is not an infringement of
constitutional rights. The Wetzel case did not involve a
constitutional issue. 1In that case, the additional cost defense
was rejected where an insurance company tried to justify its
policy of excluding pregnancy benefits from its employees' income
protection planL The holding has nc bearing in the present case
whére First Amendment freedoms are jeopardized. 'Moreover, the
Circuit Court's holding in Wetzel is questionable after the

United States Supreme Court's recent decision in General Electric

Co. v. Gilbert,' U.S. (1976). The Supreme Court has held

that free expression may not be fettered by imposition of a

financial burden. Grosjean v. American Press Co., Inc., 297 U.S.

233 (1936).

The claim of an unconstitutional prior restraint of expression
in the present case is strengthened by the Commiséion's attempt
to refute it. The Commission can only argue absence of restraint
by modifying the wording of the Act. To justify its defense of
the Act, the Commission inserted its own modification that
advertisers may include references which are neéessary to enable

them to be contacted by prospective employers. This modification




<mphasizes the absurdity of prohibiting language which refers
"in any manner" to one's sex, race, age or national origin in
seeking a job. The Commission recognizes by its very argument
that such réferences are inevitable and serve the basic purpose
of identifying the advertiser. Nonetheless, such references are
clearly prohibited by the Act. The Commission's self-serving
interpretation modifies the actuai unconstitutional wording of
the Act.

Prior restraint is also highlighted by the Commission's
modification of fundamental Constitutional law. The Commission
concedes the infringement of First Amendment liberties by contending
that the infringement 'would only be a minor restriction"
(Appellee's Brief at p. 15). The Commission further concedes the
threat of self-censorship by arguing that Press need not fear an
unjust contempt charge for inadvertantly publishing offensive
advertisements. The fear of penalty, whether or not fairly imposed,
induces the self-censorship which restrains free spéech. The
Commission continues to disregard the stipulated facts that that
"situations wanted" classification is published in the public
interest and it is the dissemination of the information contained
therein benefits every individual who through the mediums of the
newspaper seeks to become an active member of our country's

working force.
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Sections 5(e) and 5(g) of the Pemnsvylvania Human Relzations
Act Violate the Substantive Due Process Guarantee of the
Fourteenth Amendment Because the Restrictions are Broader
than Necessary to Further a Legitimate Government Interest.

The Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution
requires that there be a compelliﬁg gtate 1nterest before states
may restrict the fundamental liberties of their citizens. Roe v,
Wade, 410 U.S. 113 (1973). Even where First Amendment freedoms
are mingled with non-fundamental activities, due process demands
that any restriction must be no greater than is essential to the
furtherance of an important or substantial government interest.

United States v. O'Briem, 391 U.S. 367 (1968). Sections 5(e) and

(g) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act do not pass this test.

The Commission contends that Sectioms 5(e) and 5(g) are
justified by their relation to the elimination of employment
discrimination. The Commission quotes from the legislative record
to prove that this was the intent behind the adoption of Section
5(g) (Appellee's Brief at p. 21). The intent is a laudable one.
However, the legislétion cannot survive constitutiomal scrutiny
since the restrictions imposed do not serve this interest directly
and extend beyond it, restricting free speech.

Unlike help wanted ads, situation wanted ads are not direct
tools iﬁ the establishment of discriminatory employment classifica-
tions. Help wanted ads are clear expressions of employer pre-

ference. Such preference is illegal when based on immutable




personal characteristics. Individuals are not restricted in
their selection of employers. Since there is no government
interest in controlling job selection, the free exercise of self-
expression to that end may not be regulated.

Individuals placing situation wanted ads do so out of a
bona fide desire to obtain employment. Often, they are unemployed
and subsisting on government assistance. The govermment must not
hamper their efforts to obtain employment by imposing such cryptic
and burdensome regulations. Newspaper advertising is a simple and
effective means of obtaining employment. It is probably the only
effective means of confacting many employers of whom the individual
advertiser has no knowledge. The regulation imposed by Section 5(g)
renders advertising impractical and ineffective by'making it
difficult for prospective employers to evaluate and even tb con-
tact the advertisers. The information which may be contained iﬁ
a newspaper advertisement concerning age, sex, race and naticnal
origin would certainly be included in other means of obtaining
employment, for example, resumes, letters, agency referrals‘and
personal interviews.
D. Section 5(g) of the Pennsvlvania Human Relations Act is

Unconstitutionally Overbroad Since it Interferes with
Political Advertising.

The Commission contends that Section 5(g) of the Act is not
overbroad because it does not affect political campaign advertise-

ments. On the contrary, such advertisements are political situsastion
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wanted ads and fall directly within the scope of the Act. 1Im
support of its argument, the Commission presents a series of
definitions of "employee' from other sources which exclude
political figures (Appellant's Brief at p. 24). The only
definition which is pertinent in the present case is that included
in the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act itself. That definition
appears at §4(c) of the Act (43 P.S. §954(c)) and does not exclude
political figures even though it consists of other exclusioms:
"(¢) The term 'employee' does not
include (1) any individual employed in
agriculture or in the domestic service of
any person, (2) any individual who, as
part of his employment, resides in the
. personal residence of the employer, (3)
any individual employed by said individual's
parents, spouse or child."
In adopting this section, the Legislature was obviously aware that
certain exclusions were appropriate from the definition of employee
and would have excluded political persons if it had seen fit. Such
was obviously not the legislative intent.

Furthermore, the critical definition in the present case is
not that of "employee," but rather, of "individual" since this is
the wording of the prohibition of Section 5(g). '"Individuals"
are prohibited from advertising their personal characteristics
in seeking employment. '"Individual' is not defined in the Act,
but a general definition would certainly include political

candidates. Substituting the Act's definition of "person" for

"individual" still provides no exclusion for political candidates.
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"(a) The term 'person’ includes one or
more individuals, partnerships, associatiomns,
organizations, corporations, legal representa-
tives, trustees in bankruptcy or receivers.
It also includes, but is not limited to, any
owner, lessor, assignor, builder, manager,
broker, salesman, agent, employe, lending
institution and the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, and all political subdivisions,
authorities, boards and commissions thereof.”
43 P.S. §954(a)

"Individual" is the appropriate focus in an examination for
overbreadth, not only because the Section is so worded but also
because the advertisers are not employees at the time the advertise-
ments are placed. They are potential employees, but as advertisers
they are private individuals not controlled by any employment
regulations. They do not fit in any accepted definitions of
employee simply because they are not employed. For this reason,
the Commission's proffered definitions are meaningless.

The Commission argues that it would be clear to any potential
advertiser that the Act would not apply to political advertisements.
This is simply not the case. Nowherxe in the Act are political
advertisements exempted. Those ads are placed by pérsons seeking
employment and throughout include references to race, age, sex
and other personal characteristics. Are not the same concerns
that information contained in the advertisements is designed to
appeal to prejudices equally applicable to individuals seeking
political office?

Furthermore, in light of recent case law, a political

advertiser would very likely expect to be regulated by the Human

-12




Relations Act. In Davis v, Passman, F.2d (5th Cir. 1977)

the court held that elected officials are very clearly subject to
constitutional restraints in the area of civil rights,

specifically sex discrimination in employment. Sovereign immunity
was held not be insulate a United States Congressman from suit

for diécriminatory discharge of an employee. The immunity granted
political speech was held only to extend to that speech "intimately
cognate to the legislative process." Of course, political

campaign advertisements are protected speech. Buckley v, Valeo,

96 S.Ct. 612 (1976). However, the limitations imposed by decisions
such as Davis could well lead to self-censorship by political
advertisers in Penﬁsylvania. Since there is a potential sanction
under the clear language of the Pennsylvanié Human Relations Act
and since political office holders have been held liable for
discriminatory practices, a political advertiser might well
expect liability under the Pennsylvania Act. Such self-censorship
is an unconstitutional chill of First Amendment freedoms.
Moreover, the Commission has unilaterally-requested a
modification of its own final order which in effeét prevented its
application to advertisements for employment outside the
jurisdiction of the Commission CAppellee'é Brief at pp. 31-33).
These exemptions were provided in the original order and are for
employers with less than five employees, and reiigious, fraternal,
charitable and sectarian organizations which are not supported in

whole or in part, by governmental appropriationms (43 P.S. §954(b)).

-13-




It is unusual to say the least, for a party to attack its
own order prior to a higher authority ruling on the issue. This
request for a modification illustrates the obvious confusion
which exists within the Commission when on the one hand it
refused to apply the terms of the Act to other individuals seeking
employment, i.e., political candidates. The Commission feéagnizes
it has no authority to in effect authorize certain individuals
to continue to place advertisements prohibited under Section 5(g)
and yet attacks only those using the ''situated wanted" columns

ignoring all other forms of advertising.

CONCLUSION

This Court is here asked to speculate as to the effect of a
publication by an individual of certain personal characteristics.
We have reached that point that the dissenting Justices of the

United States Supreme Court in the Pittsburgh Press case feared

would come to pass. The Commission is seeking to prevent
individuals seeking employment from publishing their personal
characteristips. Next it may prevent individuals from writing
letters to the editor of the paper which indicate their dis-
satisfaction with the Commission rulings. The motives exhibited
here have lead in the past to the burning of books and even to
the burning of witches. The Court must remember the history

that precedes its decision in this case.
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Respectfully submitted,

Robert H. Shoop, Jr.
Jane A. Lewis ’
THORP, REED & ARMSTRONG
2900 Grant Building
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania

Attorneys for Appellant.
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HISTORY O TIHE CASE

The Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission's initiated Complaint
alleges that the Respondénﬁ-héé alded the doing of an unlawful discrimi“
natory act in yiolation of section 5(e) of the PennsylVania Human‘
Relations Act, Act of October 27, 1955, P.L. 744 as.amended. The1
Respondent was duly served with copiles of the Complaint but filed-no
answer. An investigation into the allegations of the Complaint was
made By representatives of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission;
and a determination was made that there was probable cause to credit
the allegations therein. Thereupon, the Commission endeavored to
eliminate the unlawful practices complained of by_conciliation. This.

endeavor was unsuccessfiul, and on August 6, 1975, & Public¢ Hearing

was convened in Pittsburgh pursuant to secticon 9 of the Pennsylvania

Human Relations Act.




.

SUMMARY Q1Y ARGUMENT

. The Respondent maintuing a pablern and practice of aiding

and abetting the doing of an unlawful discriminatory act, prohibited

by section 5(g) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, in that the

ES

Respondent prints in its "Situations wWanted" column adverltisemaents

which specify or cxpress the race and/or sex of the individual placing

-

the advertisement.

IT. The fact that other newspapers carry "Situations wanted"

classifications which indicate the race and/or sex of the one placing

the ad is not a defense for the Respondenﬁ.

(=



DRGUMINYT

I. The Respondent maintains a pattern and practice of aiding’

and abetting the doing of éﬁ_unlawful discriminatory act, prohibited

by Section 5(g) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, in that the

Respondent prints in its “"Situations wWanted" column advertisements

which specify or express the race and/or sex of the individual 2lacing

the advertisement. ) *

The "Situations Wanted" column of the Pittsburgh Press is a
section of the classified advertising pages in which persons seeking

employment describe themselves and/or the type of Jjob to which they

-

are seeking. (Stipulation 1-f). It is uncontroverted that many of
the advertisements found in the "Situations Wanted" column specify

the race and/or sex of the prospective employee placing the adver-

tisement:

PAROLEE - WHITE, needs employment
to be released. Licensed steam boiler
& eng. Press Box L-784

WHITE WOMAN - desires day work, office
cleaning. 231-0208

MAN - Desires full-time maintenance or
Janitorial work, not in restaurant or
saloon. 828-9254. [Exhibit a-1.1

lrhe three advertisements are intended as examples of the
unlawful advertisements. 'A review of Exhibits A-1 through A-28 will
reveal many instances of similar advertisements.




ety OF the dndividia s swlhier contned Cheso advertiaomenls:s Lo boe

published in the "Situations wWanlted” column is in violation of section 5(y)

of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act. Section 5(g) provides that it.

shall be an unlawful discriminhatory practice:

(g} TFor any individual seeking employ-
ment to publish or cause to be published - IS
any advertisement which specifies or in
any manner expresses his race, color,
religious creed, ancestry, age, sex Or .
national origin, or in any manner expresses ' -
a limitation or preference as to the race,
color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex,

or naticnal origin of any prospective
employer. '

As previously noted, the Complaint alleges that the Respondent -

is in viclation of section 5(e) of the Act. Section 5 (e)
¥
¢

that it shall be an uniawful discriminatory practice:

provides

(e} For any perscn, whether or not an
employer, employment agency, labor organi-
zation or employe, -to aid, abet, incite,
compel or coerce the deing of any act
declared by this secticn to be an unlawful
discriminatory practice, or to obstruct
or prevent any person from complying with
the provisions of this act or any order
issued thereunder, or to attempt, directly
or indirectly, to commit any act declared
by this section to be unlawful discriminatory
practice.

The Respondent has violated section 5(e) by using its facilities
+ and equipment to print the unlawful advertisements (Stipulation l-e}

and by distributing those ads in the daily and Sunday editions of the

newspaper. (Stipulaticen 1-d, 1-c).

The Respondent in oral argument has asserted that it has not
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s

aided the doing of an unlawful act in that it only accepts and publishes

the data as submitted by the individual advertiser. (T-13) (See

Stipulation 1-h). This is.a strained interpretation, for as previously

ncted, the Respondent accepts these unlawful advertisements, 1t uses
its machines and facilities to print the unlawful advertisements, and "
it distributes the unlawful advertisements to the public. Clearly,

-

this has aided the individual adv?rtiser in the purest sense of the
word.

It must be pointed out that the Respondent's policy with regard
to the entire newspaper is not at issue. .The Complaint is guite
explicit in limiting the allegations tco the "Situations Wanted" column.
Thus; those advertlsements found in Exhibits A-29 through A-33, conm'
sisting of political advertisements, should nct be considered by the
Commission in its deliberations. It would clearly be inadvisable
for the Commission to decide guestions beyond those raised by the
Complaint, moreover, it 1s guestionable whether the Commission e&en
has the authority to take any action with regard to Respondent's poli-

cies which are not delineated in the allegations of the Complaint.

See Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission vs. U, 8. Steel Corp.,

Pa. 325 A.2d 910(1974). The Respondent, by alluding to these political
advertisements, has merely attempted to draw the Commission away from

the real issue. Morecver, assuming arguendo that the Commission could

address itself to these pélitical advertisements, they would have no
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import on the issues involved, for a candidate for political office’
certainly is not "seeking employment" within the meaning of section 5(g)
of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act and thus, these advertisementST

are not illegal. p




II. the fack that other newspapers carry "Situalions Wanted"

classifications which indicate the race and/or sex oFf the one placing

the ad is not a defense for the Respondent.

The advertisements appearing in Exhibits RB-1 through B-7 are
examples nf advertising found in "Situations Wanted" columns ofnnthé;'
newspapers within the Commonwealth and surrounding states. The
- Commission certainly should be.awgre that the practice of printing
these illegal advertisements is a wide-spread problem, nevertheless,
even though other newspapers are openly violating the Pennsylvania
Human Relations Act and have been for some time, this does not aid the

Respondent's case.

"We choose, however, to conclude that
. civil rights are not lost by historical
default; that error compounded by errox
remains nonetheless error." Commonwealth
v. Franklin, 172 Pa.Super. 152 (1952)

Section 9 of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act provides in

pertinent part:

If, upon all the evidence =zt the hearing,

the Commission shall find that a respondent

has engaged in or 1s engaging in any unlawful

discriminatory practice as defined in this act,

the Commission shall state its findings of

fact, and shall issue and cause to be served on

such respondent an crder reguiring such respondent
.5 to cease and desist from such unlawful discrimi-
o natory practice... '

Under this clear mandate from the Legislature, the Commission

cannot accept and sustain the practices of the Respondent merely because




[Y ]

they are beiny praclticed by othiers in the trade. An analogous situalion
would be presented were a person accused of robbing a bank defended

himself on the basis that others have robbed banks as well and were

- not apprehended. Clearly, a criminal court would not countenance such

a defense in the enforcement of the criminal statutes and neither should
the Commission in upholding its mandate to enforce the provision: of the

Pennsylvania Human Relations Act.




LA

CONCLUD TON

The record compels a finding that the Respondent has aid’ed‘indi"v:.iw
duals in printing and distriggting advertiseménts in the "Situations
wWwanted" column of the Pittsburgh Press which indicate the race and/g;
sex of the one placing the advertisement. Such advertisements afg
expressly prohibited in section 5(g) of the Pennsylvania Human Re}ations
Act, and the Respondent in aiding- those individuals has violated
section 5{e). The Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission in pursuing
its mandate to enforce the provisions of the Pennsylvania Human Relations_

Act must find the Respondent in violation of the Pennsylvania Human

Relations Act and order it to cease and desist its unlawful practices.
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HISTORY OF THE CASE

The Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission (hereinafter
the "Commission") initiated a complaint on March 11, 1975 at
Docket No. E-8528 charging that the Respondent Pilittsburgh Press
Company "maintains a pattern and practice of aiding and abetting;
the doing of an unlawful discriminatory act prohibkited by
Section 5(g) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act in that
Respondent prints in its situation-wanted column advertisements
which specify or express the race and/or sex of the individual
placing the advertisement." The complaint charged that this
conduct was in violation of Section 5(e) of the Pennsylvania
Human Relations Act, Act of October 27, 1955, P.L. 744, as
amended, 43 P.S. §951 et seq, (the "Act"). Section 5(e) of
the Act provides in its pertinent part:

It shall be an unlawful discriminatory practice.
unless based upon'é bona fide occupational guali-
fiéétion, or in the case of a fraternal corporation
or association, unless based upon membership

in such association or corporation or except




where based upon applicable security
regulations established by the United
States of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

.. for any person, whether or not an em-
ployer,:employment agency, labor organizatilion
or employe, to aid, abet, incite, compel or
coerce the deoing of any act declared by this

secticn to be an unlawful discriminatory

practice ...

Section 5(g)} of the Act provides that is unlawful

for any individual seeking employment to
publish or cause to be published any
advertigsement which specifies or in any
manner expresses his race, color, religlious
creed, ancestry, age, sex or national origiln,
or in any manner expresses a limitation or
preference as to the race, color, religious
creed, ancestry, age, sex or national origin

of any prospective employer.

An investigation by the Commission staff determined that
there was probable cause to credit the allegations of the com-
plaint, whereupon the Commission endeavored to eliminate the
unlawful pattern and practice complained of by conciliation.
Conciliation héving failed, the Commission convenad a publié
hearing on August 6, 1975 pursuant to Section 9 of the Act.

The Hearing Panel consisted of Commissioner Elizabeth M. Scott,
Chairperson of the Panel, and Commissioners Robert Johnson
Smith and John P. Wisniewski. Gary L. Lancaster, Esquire,
Assistant General Counsel in the Pittsburgh Regional Office of

the Commission, presented the case in support of the complaint.

(2)




Robext H. Shoop, Jr., Esguire, of Thorpe, Reed, and Armstrong,
represented the Respondent. Elisabeth S. Shuster, Assistant
General Counsel 1in the Harrisburg Headguarters Office of the
Commission sat as Legal Advisor to the Hearing Panel.

Counsel for the parties entered into written stipulations
which were entered into the record at the public hearing along
with exhibits Al through A33 and Bl through B7.

The Hearing Panel, upon éonsideration of oral argument

and the record and the briefs submitted subseguent to the

hearing by counsel for the parties,unaminously recommended that

the full Commission find in favor of the Complainant.

(3)




FPINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Complainant is the Pennsylvania Human Relations
Commission, an administrative agency established by the
Pennsylvania Human Relations Act and charged with effectuating
the purposes of thé Act, and empowered to initiate complaints
charging violations of the Act.

2. The Respondent is the Pittsburgh Press Company, a
corporation located at 34 Boulevard of the Allies, Pittsburgh,
Pennsylvania.

3. The Respondent publishes a daily newspaper of general
circulation called the Pittsburgh Press {(hereinafter "the
Press"). |

4. The Press accepts and publishes in its pages so-called
"situation-wanted" advertisementg from individuals seeking
employment.

5. The Press accepts and publishes these advertisements
in the language as submitted by these individuals and without
regard to whether the content of the advertisement conforms
with Section 5(g) of the Act.

6. Many of these advertisements specify or in some manner
express the race, color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex
or national origin ¢f the individual seeking employment.

7. Examples of the advertisements referred to in Finding
of Fact No. 6 are:

a. College grad - Born again Christian with
Rachelor's Degree and seven yrs. sales
and marketing management experience
seeking work with Christian business or

organization. (Stipulated Exhibit "A-1").

b. White woman, desires day work, office
cleaning. (A-1)

c. Parolee-White needs employment to be
released. Licensed steam boiler and
engineer. (A-1)

d. Salesman - Age 30, looking for career

in Pittsburgh, start immediately, 15
years sales experience. (A-1)

(4)




e. What can T do for you? Recent college
grad, good looking, twenty-five years
old, B.S. in Business Administration,
seeks entry level management position
-..(A-8).

f. Man, mature, accounting, bookkeeping,
office management, desires position in
these or related fields. (a-23).

8. The Respondent engages in a pattern and practice of
publishing "situation-wanted" advertisements from individuals
seeking employment which specify or in some manner express the
race, color, religious creed;‘ancestry, age, sex or national
origin of the individual placing the advertisement.

9. This pattern and practice engaged in by the Respondent
aids and abets the doing of the act declared to be an unlawful
discriminatory practice by Section 5(g) of the Act.

10. This pattern and practice engaged in by the Respondent
also aids and abets discrimination in hiring declared to be an

unlawful discriminatory practice by Section 5(a) of the Act.

11. -The Commission has not alleged that advertisements

placed by candidates for political office violate any provisions

of the Act.

(5)




CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. At all times herein mentioned the Commission had and
still has jurisdiction over the Respondent and the subject
matter of the complaint herein pursuant to the Pennsylvania Human
Relations Act, Act of October 27, 1955, P.L. 744, as amended.

2. Subject to limitations described generally in Conclu-
sions of Law No. 6, situation-wanted advertisements which specify
oxr in any manner express the race, color, religlous creed, an-
cestry, age, sex or national origin of the individual seeking
employment are in violation of Section 5(g) of the Act.

3. Such advertisements are not protected by the First
Amendment to the Constitution of the United States.

4. The conduct of the Respondent in engaging in a pattern
and practice of publishing such situation-wanted ads is not
protected by the First Amendment to the Constitution of the
United States.

5. The Respbndent's conduct in publishing situation-wanted
advertisements the contents of which are in violation of Section
5{(g) of the Act is in violation of Section 5(e) of the Act.

&. Not all situation-wanted advertisements which specify
or express in some manner the race, color, religious creed, an-
cestry, ége, sex or national origin of an individual seeking

employment are in violation of Section 5(g) . Those advertise-

. ments clearly directed at or seeking employment from prospective

employers who are not within the jurisdiction of the Act are not
unlawful.
For‘example, an employer to be within the
ﬁurisdiction of the Act must employ four
or more persons within the Commonwealth.
An individual employed in agriculture or
domestic service or who resides in the

personal residence of the employer is

not covered.




On the other hand, an advertisement which
specifies or otherwise expresses any of

the prohibited information and which is
written in such general language that it

is not clearly limited to employers or
positions not within jurisdiction of the
Act, or is directed at employefs covered

by the Act as well as employers not covered,

is unlawful.

7. Advertisements placed by candidates for political

i offices are not affected by these Conclusions of Law.

(7)




RECOMMENDATION OF HEARING COMMISSIONERS

AND NOW, this 27th day of , 1976, upon

June
consideration of the record of the public hearing and the
arguments of Counsel and briefs submitted by the parties

and the proposed History of the Case, Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of Law, the Hearing Commissioners recommend to

the Commission that an order be entered against the Pittsburgh

Press Company finding that it has violated Section 5(e) of the

Act and providing for appropriate relief.

ualdirll, // W

'ELIZ ETH M. SCOTT.-
PERSON. ;

ROBERT-JOHNSOW SMITH

A -
Q/ Hé;}iu@ Q&Mcuétb*?/fff

JOHN'P. WISNIEWSKI

sl Mty C L f\/;

¥
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS

COMMISSION, :
Complainant :
vs. : DOCKET NO. E-8528
PITTSBURGH PRESS5 COMPANY, A
CORPORATION, :
Respondent :
COMMISSION'S DECISION
AND NOW, this 27th day of June , 197¢, upon

consideration of the record of the case, the briefs submitted

by the parties, the History of the Case, Findings of Fact and

Conclusions of Law and the Recommendation of Hearing Commission=-

ers, the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission finds and
determines that the Respondent, Pittsburgh Press Company, has
violated Section 5(e) of the Pennsylvania Human Relatiéns Act,
Act of October 27, 1955, P.L. 744, as amended, in that it
engages in a pattern and practice of accepting and publishing
"situation-wanted" advertisements from individuals seeking
employment which spécify Oor in some manner express the race,
color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex or national origin

of such individuals, thus aiding and abetting these individuals

" to violate Section 53(g) of the Act.

"j;) PENNSYLVANIA EUMAN RELATIONS

COMMISSION
TﬁST
/WV//Z/////&(% BY-N X
Ellzabeth M. Sco¥t oségph X. /é@
Secrerary Chairpers

(9)




| COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
j GOVERNOR'S OFFICE

|

|

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION

! PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS

' COMMISSION,
Complainant

vs. : DOCKET NO. E-8528
| PITTSBURGH PRESS COMPANY, A
y CORPORATION,
: ‘ Respondent
i
’ FINAL ORDER
¥ AND NOW, this 27th day of June 1976, upon

| consideration of the foregoing History of the Case, Findings
of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Recommendation of the Hearing

Commissioners and pursuant to Section 9 of the Pennsylvania

' hereby

ORDERS

1. The Respondent shall case and desist from publishing
"situation-wanted" advertisements the contents of which are
prohibited by Section 5{g} of the Act.

2. The provisions of this order shall be effective

L. immediately.
g; . PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATICNS
| - COMMISSION
T AF?EST )
_‘Ll ) , P
b C\J'Z 7 5//?//%//(22/2/ By : v’7~4 %f ,fm #
‘ 0 Wllzaﬁeth M. Sco¥t osgph X. /%ﬁ
© Secr eﬁary Chairpersaol
; : -_<

'

|
|
J

Human Relations Act, the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission !

———




Tlye Supreme Cmurt of Penusyplvania

| Hestern District

SALLY MRvos 801 CiTy-COuNTY BUILDING
, PROTHONOTARY PITTSBURGH, PA.

IRMA T. GARDNER ‘ 1S219
DEPUTY PROTHONOTARY '

January 24, 1979

Robert S. Mirin, Esquire - John E. Benjes, Esquire
Pa, Human Relations Carmmission 301 Muench Stroot

100 N. Careron Street Harrisburg, Pa, 17102
Harrisburg, Pa. 17101

In Re: Pa. Human Relations Commission v. Pgh. Press Co.
©  No. 42 March Term, 1978

Dear Messrs. Mirin and Benjes:

Enclosed is a copy of the opinion filed today, together with
the judgment order which was entered today.

Very truly yours,

DEPUTY PROTHONOTARY

Enclosures

¢c: Robert H. Shoop, Jr., Esquire
Thorp, Reed and Armstrong '
2900 Grant Building
Pittsburgh, Pa. 15219

Honorable James S. Bowman
for Hon. Harry A. Kramer
President Judge, Commonwealth Court

622 South Office Building = ¥
Harrisburg, Pa. 17120 T
O <.
X
PEE R
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" COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA ~
' WESTERN DISTRICT

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS No. 42 MARCH TERM, 1978
COMMISSICN, ' .
Appellant
V.

PITTSBURGH PRESS COMPANY

&% B0 &3 20 95 3% 20 BB WP AP " R A b 0 B9

JUDGMENT

ON CONSIDERATION WHEREOF, it is now here ordered and
adjudged by this Court that the judgment of the

COMMONWEALTH COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA » be, and the same is

hereby affirmed.

-

BY THE COURT:

Sally Avos, Esguire
Prothonotary

Dated: January 24, 1979
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA

WESTERN DISTRICT

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA : No. 42 March Term, 1978
PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS : - ~
COMMISSION, :

APPELLANT : Appesl from the Order of the Commonwealth
: Court of Pennsylvania at No, 1275 C. D.
1976 reversing the Order of the Pennsylvania

Human Relations Commission at Commission
Docket No. E-8525

V.
PITTSBURGH PRESS COMPANY,

APPELLEE

OPINION

el JANZ 41879
JUSTICE MANDERINO

This appeal is from the order of the Commonwga}th Court reversing the
order of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission (Commission), and
declaring unconstitutional that portion of Section 5(g) of The Pennsylvania
Human Relations Act, 43 P. §. § 955(g). Section 5(g) prohibits the publication of

advertisements for employment expressing the race, color, religious creed,

ancestry, age, sex, or national origin of the advertiser. Pittsburgh Press Co.

v. Comm., Human Relations Commission, 31 Pa. Commonwealth Ct. 218

376 A.2d 263 (1977).
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The circumst&l.nces surrounding thi§ appeallare as follows. On March 15, 1975,
the Cdmrnission charged tile Pittsburgh Press Company (Press) with "maintain fing]
a pattern and practice of éiding end abetting the doing of an unlawful discriminatory
act" in violation of Section 5(e) of The Pennsylvania Human Relations Act.

According to the Commission, the Press violated Scetion 5(e) of the Act by publishing

"situation wanted" advertisements alleged to be unlawful under Section 5 (g) because

the ads identified the advertiser's

sex, race, religion, or age.

The Pittsburgh Press is a newspaper of general circulation throughout the

greater Pittsburgh metropolitan area. The "situation wanted" section of the

Press' classified advertisements provides a vehicle for persons seeking empioyment
to describe themselves, their job qualifications, * and the kind of employment they

are seeking. The Press accepts and publishes these ads exactly as submitted by

the adveriisers.

On June 27, 1975, following an investigation from which the Commission

determined that there was probable cause to credit the allegations contained in the

complaint referred to above, the Commission issued a final order requiring the
1 ¥ T
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Press "to cease and desist from publishing "situation wanted" advertisements, the

contents of which are prohibited by Section 5(g).

On appeal, the Commonwealth Court reversed the Commission's final order,
end ruled that Sub-section 5(g) was unconstitutional. We granted the Commission's

petition for allowance of appeal, and this appeal followed. E

“

The Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, Act of October 27, 1955, P. L. 744,

§ 1, as amended 43 P. S.'§§ 951, et seq., establishes it as

"...the public policy of this Commonwealth to foster the
employment of all individuals in accordance with their fullest
capacities regardless of their race, color, religious creed,
ancestry, handicap or disability, use of guide dogs because
of blindness of the user, age, sex, or national origin, and to
safeguard their right to obtain and hold employment without
such diserimination, to assure equal opportunities to all

" individuals and to safeguard their rights at places of public
asccommodation and to sceure commercial housing regardless
of race, color, religious creed, ancestry, scx, handicap or

disubility, use of guide dogs beeause of blindness of the
uscr or national origin."

To further this public policy, Section 5 of the Act makes certain discriminatory

employment practices unlawful. 43 P, 8. § 955(a) through'G). Among.

other things, in 5(g), the Act makes it unlawful employment discrimination
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"[flor any individual seeking employment to publish or cause
to be published any advertisement which specifies or in any
I manner expresses his race, color, religious creed, ancestry,

age, sex or national origin, or in any manner expresses a limitation
or preference as to the race, color, religious creed, ancestry,
age, sex or national origin of any prospective employer."

43P.S. § 955(g).

Section 5(e) also makes it unlawful

"[flor eny person, whether or not an employer, employment
agency, labor organization or employe, to aid, abet, incite,

compel or coerce the doing of any act declared by this secuon
to be an unlawful discriminatory practice,...."

The Commission found that by accepting and presenting "situation wanted"
advertisements which inéluded references to the criteria declared unlawful by
Section 5(g), the Press had "aided and abetted" the unlawful employment

practice proscribed by that section, the Press was therefore found to be in

violution of Section 5(e).

The Commonwealth Court recognized that the advertisements which formed

the basis of the Commission's complaint clearly violated Section 5 (g):
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"An indication of the type of advertisement found by the
Commission to violate Section 5(g) can be ascertained from
the specifie examples set forth in the Hearing Panel's findings
of fact. These examples were drawn from stipulated exhibits
which included the Press’ 'Situation Wanted' columns from
Sunday, June 1, 1973 to Thursday, June 26, 1975:

' COLLEGE GRAD-Born again Christiun with
Bachelor's Depgree and seven yrs, seles and
marketing mgmt. experience sceking work with
Christian business or organization , . . .!

'"White woman-desires day work, office cleaning.'

'Parolee-White needs employment to be relessed.
Licensed steam boiler and engineer ....'

'Salesman- Age 30, looking for career in Plttsburgh
start 1mmed1ate1y 15 years sales experience.

'What can I do for you? Recent college grad, good
looking, twenty-five years old, B.S. in Business
Administration, seeks entry level management position.!

'Man~-mature, accounting, bookkeeping, office manage-
ment, desires position in these or related fields.'

It is obvious at a glance that the contents of these advertisements are in
contravention of the letter of Section 5(g)."

(Footnotes omitted.)

31 Pa. Commonwealth Ct. at 223, 376 A.2d at 265.

The Press did not contend otherwise before the Commonwealth Court, nor does it
so contend here. The Press argues, however, that Section 5(g) unlawfully
infringes on First Amendment rights. We agree with the Commonwealth Court

that the advertiser's rights, as guaranteed by the First Amendment to the United

States Constitution, are improperly restricted by the prohibition of Section 5(g).

- B -
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We therefore affirm the order of the Commonwealth Court.

The Press did not contend before the Commonwesalth Court that the state may
not prohibit discriminatory employment practices. It argued, however, that the
restriction on freedom of expression contained in Section 5(g) is not necessary to

!promote that legitimate state objective. We agree with the Press that the Commicsion

has not shown that the prior restraint of Section 5(g) is necessary to promote

this legitiinatle state interest. The Commission argued that this case is controlled

by Pittsburrh Press Co. v, Pittsburgh Commission on Human Relations, 413 U, 8.

376, 37 L. Ed. 2d 669, 93 8. Ct. 2553 (1973) (Press I). The Press argues that in

light of more recent pronouncements of the United States Supreme Court, Press 1
is no longer viable law. We need not decide this point, however, because unlike
the situation in Press I, what the Commission seeks to do in this case is to restrict
the expression of the advertiser itself, rather than to restrict the unlawful activity
o-f employment discrimine&ion. While it held that legitimate regulation of an
unlawful activity may incidentally effect an advertiser's right to freedom of
expression, Press I does not stand for the proposition that prior restraint may

be imposed on commercial speech even though that speech does not propose an

illegral trunsaction.,

The United States Supreme Court has, of course, said that it is permissible .
to regulate commerecial advertising in some ways: "[aldvertising that is false,

deceptive, or misleading...is subject to restraint" Bates v. State Bar of Arizona,

433 U. S. 350, 383, 53 L. Ed. 24 810, 835, 97S. Ct. 2691, (1977); Virginia

Pharmacy Board v. Virginia Consumer Council, 425 U. S. 748, 48 L. Ed. 2d 346,

96 5. Ct. 1817 (1976); as is purely commercial advertising coneerning transactions

-6 -
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that are themselves illegal, Bates v. State Bar of Arizona, supra; Press I, supra.

Similaerly, reasonable restrictions may be placed upon the time, place, :and

manner of advertising Virginia Pharmacy Board, supra; and special

restrictions may be allowable with regard to advertising on the electronic

brosdeast media, cf. (_L‘_zgaiml Broadcesting Co. v. Mitchell, 333 F. Supp. 882

(D. €. 1971), aff'd sub nom Capital Broadeasting Co. v. Acting Attorney General,

405 U. S, 1000, 31 L. Ed. 2d 472, 92 S. Ct. 1289 (1972).

The restriction imposed by Section 5(g), however, goes directly to the
advertiser's right to freely express his or her job qualifications, abilities,

personal experience, or educational history. In Press I, the employer's

placement of "lelp-wanted" containing sex preference designations constituted an act of
illegal sex discrimination in the hiring of personnel. As a result, the Supreme

Court said in Press I, that

"falny First Amendment interest which might be served by
advertising an ordinary commercial proposal and which

might arguably outweigh the governmental interest supporting
the regulation is altogether absent when the commercial activity

. itself is illegal and the restriction on advertising is incidental
to a valid limitation on economic activity."

413U. 5. at 389, 37 L. Ed. 2dat 679, 93 S. Ct.at

.
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In-contrast to the advertising employer's illegal, sex-bas-ed , employment
discrimination in Press I, in the instant case the advertisers are prospéctive
employees proposing commercial transactions - their own employment - which
are not illegal., By its terms, the Act applies to employers, and those who
#id and ebet employers to practice employment discrimination. In Press
the Act clearly proscribed the underlying activity - sex based diserimination
by the employer - and by providing sex~-designated Help-wanted columns
in -ité classified advertising section, the Press directly aided and abetted such
employers' practice of sex based employment discrimination. Indeed, the Press
did not challenge the illegality of the underlying acts in Press I. In the present
case, the "situation wanted" ads propose no illegal transactions, they simply ask
that prospective employers hire the respective individual advertisers. The
prospective employees' use of prohibited employment criteria in an advertisement
connot re;asonabiy be said to aid an employer who rﬁ'ight be predisposed to utilize
such forbidden criterins.  Knowledge of such forbidden criteria - age, sex,
race, color, ete., - is readily obtaineble by the employer simply by scheduling
a pre-employment interview, or by requesting submission of an _employment
resume. Any effect that enforcement of Section 5(g) might have on reducing
empleyment discrimination made illegal by Section 5(e) is thus too speculeative to

justify Section 5(g)'s direct restriction on the advertiser's freedom of expression,

I ° . -




As was stated by the United States Supreme Court in Linmark Associates,

Ine. v. Willingboro, 431U, S. 85, 92 ft.n.6, 52 L. Ed. 2d 155, 161 ft.n.l 6, 878. Ct.

1614, (1977):

"After Virginia Pharmocy Bd, [v. Virginia Consumer Council ,
425 U, S, 748, 48 L. Ed. 2d 346, 96 S. Ct, 1817 (1976)] it

is clear that commercial speech cannot be banned because of
an unsubstantiated belief that its impact is detrimental.”

In Linmérk » the record failed to support the township's assumption that prosecribing -
the placement of "for sale' signs in front of township homes would reduce public
éwareness of realty sales and thereby decrease public concern over selling..

’I;ikewise, in the instant case, the record fails to establish the

statutory assumption contained in 5(g) that because of the revelation of supposedé

illegal employment criteria contained in the prohibited "situation wanted" ads, employers

would be more likely to base their hiring decisions on such illegal criteria.

Order of the Commonwealth Court is affirmed.
|

Former Justice Pomeroy did not participate in the decision of this case.

Mr. Justice Roberts filed a concurring opinion.

Mr. Justice Nix filed a dissenting opinion.
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA
WESTERN DISTRICT

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA :
PENNSYLVANTA HUMAN RELATIONS :
COMMISSION, :

APPELLANT :
V.
PITTSBURGH PRESS COMPANY,

~ APPELLEE

CONCURRINd

‘Commission at Commission Docket No.

No. 42 March Term, 1978

Appeal from the Order of the Common-
wealth Court of Pennsylvania at lo.
1275 C. D. 1976 reversing the Order
of the Pennsylvania Human Relations

E~8525

OPINION

ROBERTS, J.

In my view, Section 5(e) of'the_Human Relations Act,1 43

P.S. §955e (1964),2 insofar as i

Relations Commission's order directing the Pittsburgh Press to
cease and desist publication of "situation wanted" advertisements,
is unconstitutional under article I, section 7 of the Pennsylvania

Constitution.3 As Mr. Justice Stewart observed:

L. Act of.Octecber 27, 1955, P.L.

2% §5(e) makes it untawful "[f]or any person...to aid, abet,
incite, compel or coerce the doing of any act declared by
this section to be an unlawful discriminatory practice...."

3. pa, Const., Art. I, § 7, provides:

~ (continued on page 2)

P JRN 24 979

t authorizes the Pennsylvania Human

744, as amended.
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"If government can dictate the layout of

a newspaper's advertising pages today, -
what is there to prevent it from dictating
the news pages tomorrow?

[Tlhe constitutional guarantee of a free
press is more than precatory....[I]t is a
clear cormand that government must never
be allowed to lay its heavy editorial hand
on any newspaper in this country."

Pittsburgh Press Company v. Pittsburgh Commission on Human Relations,

413 U.S. 376, 403-4, 93 s.Ct. 2553, 2568 (1973) (Stewart, J., dis-
senting, joined by Douglas, J. and specially joined by Blackmun, J.).
See generally, William Goldman Theatres v. Dana, 405 Pa. 83, A.2d

(1961) (Pa. Const. art. I, §7 bars prior restraints). The Common-
wealth Court properly reversed the order of the Pennsylvania Human

Relations Commission. I therefore join the Court's affirmance.

3. (continued from page 1)
"[Tlhe printing press shall be free to every person who may
undertake to examine the proceedings of the legislature or
any branch of government, no law shall ever be made to
restrain the right thereof. The free communication of_
thoughts and opinions is one of the invaluable rights of
man, and every citizen may freely speak, write and print
on any subject, being responsible for the abuse of that
liberty...."
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IN THE SUPREME CQURT OF PENNSYLVANTA
WEStern District

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION,
i Appellant

No. 42 March Term, 1978

e o3 a8 =

Appeal from the Order of the Commonwealth
Court of Pernsylvania at No. 1275 C.D. 1976,
reversing the Order of the Pernsylvania
Human Relations Commission at Cormission

PITTCRURGH PRESS COMPANY Docket No. E-8525.

s e 4s se se A Aa

.

DISSENTING OPTINION

Pl JANZ 47873

NIX, J.

In Pittsburgh Press Co., v. Buman Relations Commission, 413 U.S. 376, 93

S. Ct. 2553, 37 L.ed. 2d 669 (1973) (Press I), the United States Supreme Court held

an order prohibiting a newspaper from publishing sex-designated advertisements by em-
ployers offering employment not to be violative of the first amendment of the federal
constitution. Today, a majority of this Court has found the prohibition of situastions
wanted advertisements identifying the race, color, religious creed, age and Sex of the
appllicant under circumstances prohibited by the Human Relations Act, Act of Oct. 27, 1955,

43 P.S.‘ﬁﬁil, et s, {(Supp. 1978-79), P.L. T4k, as amended, to be impermissidble under

the first amendment. To reach this startling result, the majority has given Press I an

unwarrantedly narrow interpretation and has read into the recent decision of the United

States éupreme Court in the commercial speech area unjustified implications. The majority
in its zeal to extend the protection to be glven commercial speech, totally ignorer this
Commonwealth's strong commitment to an egalitarian society.

§28.

See e.g. Pa. Const. Art. I

I therefore must express my most vehement disagreement.
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In Press I, the Uniﬁed States Supreme Court avoided the level of protection
commercial speech should be accorded by noting:

[9] Whatever the merits of this contention may be In other contexts,
it is unpersuasive in this case. Discrimination in employment is not
only commescial activity, it is illegal commercial activity under the
Ordinance. We have no doubt that a newspaper constitutionally could
be forbidden to publish a want ad proposing a sale of narcotics or
soliciting prostltutes. Nor would the result be different if the
nnture of the trancaction were indicated by placement under colums

v el Mmoo n for Sole" and "Prostitutes Wanted" rather than

LA uj.,
T IV TR I RO PR

sbated Wit itin Uhe frur cormners of the advertlscment.

The 12legality in this case may be less overt, but we see no dif-
ference in principle here. Sex discrimination in nonexempt employ-
ment has been declared 1llegal....

413 U.S. at 388 (emphasis in original) (citations omitted)

The Pennsleania Human Relations Act, supra, announced unequivocally that
the practice or pcolicy of discrimination in employment by reason of race, color, reli-
glous creed, ancestry, age, sex or national origin is violative of the public policy of
thlS Cqmmnwealth. Section 5 of tﬁe Act specifies those practices which have beén |
declared illegal in an effort to eradiéate the evils of discrimination. Section .5 (g)

prohibits an individual seekiné employment from attempting to influence the employmont

decision by supplying information relating to those factors or qualitles which hove boen

proceribed dn making such a Judprent. Soction 5 {o) prohiblis o thind oty Deooalit o

. e 'S U gy e eone T B B YR ED . S NS N TV S SR L S #a . on -y g P e T
and abetting the Lranomitind of Ahe prodilite? Inforrnt fon Qo Wb purpne of BnToese)

the employment decicion, It is conceded that the ds which Torm the tadls of Whia lawnsl
were in violation of Sectlons 5(g) and {e) and therefore 1llegal under the law of this
Cormonwealth. Notwithstanding the fact that it has been conceded that the publishing of

these ads was 1llerpl commercial activity under the terms of the Act, the majority seeks

to supﬁbrt its result by findﬁ‘ig that the advgr'tiser's rights, as guaranteed by the freedan

of expression amendment of the federal constitution, have been improperly curtailed by

-2m
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the mandate of Section 5(g).

While recognizing that a state may prohibit discriminatory employment prac-
tices, the mejority argues that the restriction of freedom of expression accomplished
by Section 5(g) "is not necessafy to promote that legitimate state objective." (Slip
op. p.6) This position ignores the holding and supporting rationale of Press I. In
that case, the United States Supreme Court clearly sanctioned the restriction of the
advertizer's right to freedom of expression to effectuate a legitimate regulation df'én
unlawful activity.' Moreover, in its latest decisions the United States Suprceme Court has

reaffirmed the right to restrain commercizl advertising that is inimical to the public

welfere. Bates v. State Bar of Arizona, 433 U.S. 350, 97 S. Ct. 2691, 53 L.Ed. 24 810

(1977}; Virginla Pharmacy Bd. v. Virginla Consumer Council, 425 U.S. 748, 96 S. ct. 1817,
48 L.E4. 24 346 (1976).

The First Amendment, as we construe it today, does not pybhibit
the State from insuring that the stream of commercial information
flow cleanly as well as fyreely. (citation omitted)

Also, there is no claim that the transactions proposed in the
forbidden advertisements are themselves illegal in any way.

Va. Pharmacy Bd. v. Virginia Consumer Council, 425 U,S. at 771-72. (citations
omitted).

Here the transactions proposed in the forbidden advertisements are in them-
selves 11lcpal. The ads encourage the employer to make the employment decision based
upon the prohibited considerations. The commercial speech belng restrained is simply a
soclicitation for discfiminatory hiring., The maJority seeks to disguise the illegality
by characterizing the content of these ads as a mere expression of the applicants "job qual:
fications, abilities, personal experience, or educational history." This gloss does not

dismlss the controlling fact that the qualifiéations sought to be commmicated are not

-3
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legitimate concerns in the emﬁloynﬁnt decision and are solely for the purpoze of one
couraéing discriminatory hiring decisions. It is not simply a request to be hired no

the mahority contends, rather it seeks to pollute the hiring decision by introducing tis

prohibited considerations,

i

’ 'Commercial speech is only distingulshable by its contenthéhd the United
Stateé Supreme Court has recognized that the’first améndment rrotections should not be
withdrawn from it simply because it proposes a mﬁndane cormercial transaction. Here,
however, the restraint is not being imposed because of the commercial character of the

message, but rather the illegal transaction it proposes.

The majority perceives a distinefion in the nature of the transactions here
and that encountered in Press I. I confess that T am unable to comprehend that dis-
tinction. In both instances the 1llegal activity condémned was discriminatory employ-
ment. In ress I, the regulation was directed to the conduct of the prospective employer.
In this appeal, the conduct of the prospéctivé employé is being regulated. Both regula-
tions were directed to the same end, i.e. discriminatory hiring. Further, both regulation:
did not impinge upon the free flow of commércial Information necessary to make the em-
ployment declsion. The only information restrained was.infornation not lawfully relevant
to the proposed commercial transactilon.

Finally, in both Press I and the instant appeal, we are concerned with the
right of the newspaper to publish the information. There 1s obvlously no greater right
derived by the newspaper to commmnicate the expressions of a potential employe than its
right to disseminate the needs of a potential employer, I am therefore of the view that
the employe's rifts of freedom of expression under the first amendment have not teen
abridged by the state's legitimate exercise of its police power in an attempt to eradicat.

onc of the most pervasive and elusive evils in oﬁr soclety today,

4.
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Petition 1

IN THE SUPREME COURT
OF THE UNITED STATES

No., ————
Spring Term, 1979

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, PENN-
SYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION,
Petitioner

V8.

PITTSBURGH PRESS COMPANY,
Respondent

PETITION FOR WRIT OF CERTIORARI TO THE
SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES

Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission, Peti-
tioner herein, requests that this Court issue a Writ of
Certiorari in order to review the judgment of the Su-
preme Court of Pennsylvania, entered in this case on

January 24, 1979.




2 Opinions Below and Jurisdiction

OPINIONS BELOW

The opinion of the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania
is unofficially reported at 396 A.2d 1187, and is set

forth in the appendix (App. C, infra). There is no’

official report of the Supreme Court’s decision. The
opinion of the Commonwealth Court of Pennsylvania
is officially reported at 31 Pa. Commonwealth Ct, 218,
unofficially reported at 367 A.2d 263, and printed in
the appendix (App. B, infra). The Pennsylvania Hu-
man Relations Commission’s findings of fact, conclu-
sions of law, decision and final order are not officially
reported, but are set forth in the appendix (App. A,
infra) . Together the findings, decision and final or-
der constitute the Commission’s decision which was
reviewed by the Commonwealth Court and the Penn-
sylvania Supreme Court,

JURISDICTION

The decision of the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania
was entered on January 24, 1979. No petition for
reargument was filed, and the time for filing such a
petition has expired.

The jurisdiction of this Court to review the decision
of the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania upon writ of
certiorari is invoked under 28 U.S.C. §1257 (3).

Constitutional Provisions and Statute 3

CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS AND
STATUTES WHICH THE CASE INVOLVES

A. United States Constitution Amendment I

Congress shall make no law respecting mn_m&mwzm?
ment of religion or prohibiting the free exercise there-
of; or abridging the freedom of speech, or of the press;
or the right of the people peaceably to mmmo@u_m and
to petition the Government for a redress of grievances.

B. Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, Act of Oc-
tober 27, 1955, P.L. 744, as amended, 43 P.S. 955

et seq., Section 5 (a), 5 (e), 5(g) and Section 9:

Section 5(a): It shall be an cs_mém& discrimi-
natory practice, unless based on a bona fide occupa-
tional qualification . . . (a) [f]or any employer be-
cause of the race, religious creed, mﬁooﬂ@. age, sex,
national origin, or non-job related Wmn.ﬁromw. or dis-
ability of any individual to mo?m.@ to hire . . . such
individual . . . if the individual is .%o best .mEm and
most competent to perform the services required.

Section 5(e): For any person, whether .oH. woﬂ an
employer, employment agency, labor oﬂmmmﬁmﬂos MH.
employe, to aid, abet, incite, .oonﬂ or coerce the
doing of any act declared by this section to be an un-
lawful discriminatory practice, or to owmnaoﬁ. or Emm
vent any person from complying with the provisions 0
this act or any other issued anoﬁsmmﬁ or to mzmmwmmﬁ
directly or indirectly, to 8&5:. any act mmﬁmu.m y
this section to be unlawful disctiminatory practice.
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Section 5(g):  For any individual seeking employ-
ment to publish or cause to be published any adver-
tisement which specifies or in any manner eXpresses
his race, color, religious creed, ancestry, sex or na-
tional origin, or in any manner expresses a limitation
or preference as to the race, color, religious creed,
ancestry, age, sex or national origin of any prospective
employer.

Section 9. Procedure:  Any individual claiming to
be aggrieved by an alleged unlawful discriminatory
practice may make, sign and file with the Commission
a verified complaint, in writing, which shall state the
name and address of the person, employer, labor or-
ganization or employment agency alleged to have com-
mitted the unlawful discriminatory practice com-
plained of, and which shall set forth the particulars
thereof and contain such other information as may be
required by the Commission. The Commission upon
its own initiative or the Attorney General may, in like
manner, make, sigh and file such complaint. Any em-
ployer whose employes, or some of them, hinder or
threaten to hinder compliance with the provisions of
this act may file with the Commission a verified com-
plaint, asking for assistance by conciliation or other
remedial action and, during such period of conciliation
or other remedial action, no hearings, orders or other
actions shall be taken by the Commission against such
employer.

After the filing of any complaint, or whenever there
is reason to believe that an unlawful discriminatory
practice has been committed the Commission shall
make a prompt investigation in connection therewith.

Constitutional Provisions and Statute 5

If it shall be determined after such investigation that
no probable cause exists for crediting the allegations
of the complaint, the Commission shall, within ten
days from such determination, cause to be issued and
served upon the complainant written notice of such
determination, and the said complainant or his attor-
ney may, within ten days after such service, file with
the Comimission a written request for a preliminary
hearing before the Commission to determine probable
cause for crediting the allegations of the complaint. If
it shall be determined after such investigation that
probable cause exists for crediting the allegations of
the complaint, the Commission shall immediately en-
deavor to eliminate the unlawful discriminatory prac-
tice complained of by conference, conciliation and
persuasion. The members of the Commission and its
staff shall not disclose what has transpired in the
course of such endeavors: Provided, That the Com-
mission may publish the facts in the case of any com-
plaint which has been dismissed, and the terms of con-
ciliation when the complaint has been adjusted, with-
out disclosing the identity of the parties involved.

In case of failure so to eliminate such practice or in
advance thereof, if in the judgment of the Commission
circumstances so warrant, the Commission shall cause
to be issued and served a written notice, together with
a copy of such complaint as the same may have been
amended, requiring the person, employer, labor or-
ganization or employment agency named in such com-
plaint, hereinafter referred to as Smwosamﬁr to an-
swer the charges of such complaint at a hearing before
the Commission at a time and place to be specified w.:
such notice. The place of any such hearing shall be in
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the county in which the alleged offense was com-
mitted.

The case in support of the complaint shall be pre-
sented before the Commission by one of its attorneys
or agents. The respondent may file a written, verified
answer to the complaint and appear at such hearing in
person or otherwise, with or without counsel, and sub-
mit testimony. The complainant may likewise appear
at such hearing in person or otherwise, with or without
counsel, and submit testimony. The Commission or
the complainant shall have the power reasonably and
fairly to amend any complaint, and the respondent
shall have like power to amend his answer. The Com-
mission shall not be bound by the strict rules of evi-
dence prevailing in courts of law or equity, The testi-
mony taken at the hearing shall be under oath and be
transcribed.

.

If, upon all the evidence at the hearing, the Com-
mission shall find that a respondent has engaged in or
is engaging in any unlawful discriminatory practice as
defined in this act, the Commission shall state its find-
ings of fact, and shall issue and cause to be served on
such respondent an order requiring such respondent to
cease and desist from such unlawful discriminatory
practice and to take such affirmative action including
but not limited to hiring, reinstatement or upgrading
of employes, with or without bhack pay, admission or
restoration to membership in any respondent labor
organization, or selling or leasing specified commercial
housing upon such equal terms and conditions and
with such equal facilities, services and privileges or
lending money, whether or not secured by mortgage or
otherwise for the acquisition, construction, 8_53:-_
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tation, repair or maintenance of mo.BBﬂ.og housing,
upon such equal terms and conditions to any person
discriminated against or all persons as, in the judg-
ment of the Commission, will effectuate the purposes
of this act, and including a requirement for report of
the manner of compliance. When the ao%mubmoﬁ is a
licensee of the Commonwealth, the OOBB_mm.ED shall
inform the appropriate State :omzas.m msmgonaw of the
order with the request that the licensing E.xrozg Sw.o
such action as it deems m@@mo?.mmua .mmmBmﬁ such [i-
censee. An appeal from the OoBE_mm_.os s order shall
act as a supersedeas and stay such mmcon by m:m state
licensing authority until a final decision on .mma mﬂ
peal. If, upon all the evidence, ﬂrm. Commission sha

find a respondent has not engaged in any such unlaw-
ful discriminatory practice, the ﬂoEBHmm_o: shall ﬂmﬁo
its findings of fact, and shall amco.m_ﬂ cause to & M
served on the complainant an order dismissing the sai

complaint as to such respondent.

The Commission shall establish rules of mﬁ.momom to
govern, expedite and effectuate the foregoing proce-
dure and its own actions thereunder, ,ﬂno@ or Mgom.m
members of the Commission mmmz constitute E@U 9_5,
mission for any hearing required to vm.roﬂ_ % the
Commission under this act. >w.v_ ooE.@EE_“ .r e %E,.m.,
suant to this section must be 50 .Emﬂ within ninety H ww )
after the alleged act of discrimination. Any omﬂw ma._o
may be withdrawn at any time by the party filing

complaint.




8 -Questions Presented

QUESTIONS PRESENTED

1. Does a “Situation-Wanted” newspaper adver-
tisesment directly specifying the race, color, religious
creed, ancesiry, age, sex, or national origin of the job
seeker, constitute speech protected in its entirey by
the First Amendment to the United States Constitu-
tion?

2. Does an order issued by a state agency lacking
summary contempt power, requiring a newspaper to
cease and desist a pattern and practice of publishing
in toto “Situation-Wanted” advertisements, directly
specifying the race, color, religious creed, ancestry,
age, sex or national origin of the job seeker, constitute
an impermissible prior restraint on protected speech?

3. Did the Pennsylvania Supreme Court correctly
balance the First Amendment interests of job seekers
who wish to publish advertisements such as those de-
scribed in Questions One and Two, Supra, against
the interests of the state and federal governments in
prohibiting racial and other unlawful discrimination
in employment ?

4. Is a state statute, which prohibits an individual
seeking employment from publishing any advertise-
ment which “specifies or in any manner expresses his
race, color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex, or na-
tional origin”, susceptible of interpretation consistent
with the First Amendment?
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The instant action was commenced on March 11,
1975, when the Pennsylvania Human Relations Com-
mission (hereinafter ‘“Commission™), the agency
charged with enforcement of the Pennsylvania Human
Relations Act, Act of October 27, 1955, P.L. 744, as
amended, 43 P.S. 8955, et seq., initiated a complaint
pursuant to said Act at Docket No. E-8528 against
Pittsburgh Press Company Aromamzmrwa “Press”). The
complaint alleged that Press :B&Rm_.sm a pattern and
practice of aiding and abetting the doing o.m an unlaw-
ful discriminatory act” in violation of Section 5 (e) of
the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, 43 P.5. §955
(), by publishing advertisements alleged to be unlaw-
ful under §5 (g) of said Act, 43 P.5. 8955 (g) .

A hearing was held before the OoBEm.mwmo:w at
which written stipulations of fact were received into
evidence and oral argument was heard. .\u&uﬁ. sub-
mission of briefs by Press and the OoB_”:an: staff
counsel, the Commission issued its findings of .Eoﬁ
conclusions of law, decision and final @&9. requiring
Press to cease and desist from wcw:m?ﬁm.:m::m:os-
wanted advertisements, the contents of .ér_or are pro-
hibited by §5(g) of the [Pennsylvania Human Re-
lations] Act, {43 P.S.955 () 1.”

In its conclusions of law, the Commission expressly
considered and rejected the First Amendment defenses

proffered by Press:
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3. Such advertisements are not protected by
the First Amendment to the Constitution of the
United States.

4. The conduct of the respondent in engaging
in a pattern and practice of publishing such situ-
ation wanted ads is not protected by the First
Amendment to the Constitution of the United
States,

The Commonwealth Court, by order and opinion
issued on July 21, 1977, reversed the final order of the
Commission. The Court held that Section 5 (g) of the
Pennsylvania Human Relations Act did not signifi-
cantly further the Commonwealth’s concededly sub-
stantial interest in eradicating employment discrimi-
nation and necessarily had the effect of significantly
impairing the flow of “legitimate”” and truthful com-
mercial information, in violation of the First Amend-
ment. Thus, the Court reasoned that the Commission’s
statutory authority which prohibited Press from pub-
lishing such advertisements was an unconstitutional
legislative incursion upon First Amendment protected
rights.

The Supreme Court of Pennsylvania, by opinion
and order filed January 24, 1979, affirmed the Com-
monwealth Coutt’s reversal of the Commission. The
Pennsylvania Supreme Court’s decision was based up-
on federal law, specifically, the First Amendment.
The Court explicitly rejected the Commission’s argu-
ment that the case is controlled by Pittsburgh Press
Company vs. Pittsburgh Commission on Human Re-
lations, 413 U.S. 376, 37 L.Ed. 2d 669, 93 S.Ct. 2553
(1973) ““(Press 1) . The Majority held, inter alia,
that: )
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Press 1 does not stand for the proposition that
prior restraint may be imposed on commercial
speech even though that speech does not propose
an illegal transaction,

No application for reargument has been filed. A..Es
der Pa. R.A.P. 2542, the time for filing any applica-
tion for reargument expired on February 8, 1979.
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REASONS FOR GRANTING THE WRIT

A. The Pennsylvania Supreme Court Incorrectly

Concluded That “Situations Wanted” Advertisements,

Which Directly Specify the Race, Color, Religious

Creed, Ancesiry, Age, Sex or National Origin of the

Job Seeker, Constitute Speech Which Is Protected in

lts Entirety by the First Amendment to the United
States Constitution

In Pitisburgh Press Co. vs, Pittsburgh Commission
on Human Rights, ef al., 413 U.S. 376 (1972) (here-
inafter “Press [’} , this Court sustained the validity of
a Pittsburgh human rights ordinance which, inter alia,
proscribed sex segregated ‘““help-wanted” advertise-
ments.' In the case sub judice, a virtually identical

I The Pittsburgh ordinance in issue in Press I provided,
in pertinent part, that it was an unlawful employment prac-
tice, ‘““except where based upon a bona fide oceupational ex-
emption eertified by the Commission ;

(a) For any employer to refuse to hire any person
or otherwise discriminate against any person with respect
to hiring . . . because of . , . gex.

(e) TFor any ‘employer’, employment agency or
labor organization to publish or cireulate, or to ecause to
be published or cireulated, any notice or advertisement
relating to ‘employment’ or membership which indicates
any discrimination because of . . . sex.

(i) For any person, whether or not an employer,
employment ageney or labor organization, to aid . . . in
the doing of any act declared to be an unlawful employ-
ment praectice by this ordinance ,..”’
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provision of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s
Human Relations Act was held to be unconstitutional
by the Commonwealth’s Supreme Court on the basis
that the statutory provision in issue constituted a prior
restraint upon rights protected by the First Amend-
ment. In so doing, the Commonwealth failed to cor-
rectly apply the clearly controlling precedent of Press
I, supra.

The Court’s 1973 decision in Press I stands as a
clear demarcation of this Court’s “commercial speech
doctrine”, as introduced in Valentine v. Chrestensen,
316 U.S. 52 (1942). While indicating that purely
commercial speech might be entitled to limited First
Amendment protection, this Court in Press [ held that
advertisements proposing illegal commercial trans-
actions are entitled to no such protection (413 U.S. at
389). The holding of Press I has not been diluted by
subsequent commercial speech decisions. Therefore,
the decision of the Pennsylvania Supreme Court upon
which this petition is predicated decides a federal
question of substance never determined by this Court,
and in so doing misapplies this Court’s decision in
Press I.

This provision of the Pittsburgh ordinance is virtually identi-
cal to the relevant provisions the Pennsylvania Human Re-
lations Act, in issue in this case (Press II) which are cited in
part Pgs. 3-7, supra.

Thus, while the issue in this case involves Pittsburgh
Press’ status as-one who aids or abets the doing of an unlaw-
ful practice under this Aet (§5(e) of the Pennsylvania Hu-
man Relations Act), the ratio decidendi of the Pennsylvania
Supreme Court’s decision struck down §5(g) itself as an un-
lawful prior restraint on free speech.




14 Reasons for Granting Writ

The advertisements here in issue clearly violate
Section 3(g) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations
~ Act. For a representative sample, see 31 Pa. Common-
wealth Ct. at 223, cited at pp. 11a, 13a-14a, Appen-
dix B. For First Amendment purposes, these adver-
tisements are indistinguishable in terms of content
from those held unlawful and unprotected in Press .
Those help wanted advertisements proposed the il-
legal activity of employment discrimination; these
situation wanted advertisements invite through pro-
scribed references to race and other forbidden data
the very same illegal activity.,

Decisions following Press I, particularly Virginia
State Board of Pharmacy et al. vs. Virginia Citizens
Consumer Council Inc., et al., 425 US. 749 (1976);
Linmark Associates Inc, vs. Township of Willingboro,
431 U.S. 85 (1977}, and Bates vs. State Bar of Ari-
zona, 433 U.S. 350 (1977), have emphasized the
societal interest in the free flow of truthful and legiti-
mate commercial information. However, none of
these opinions can be read to extend First Amendment
protection to information which serves no conceivable
purpose other than a patent appeal to prejudice. The
underlying illegal activity of employment discrimina-
tion is no less illegal when solicited by a prospective
employee than when committed by an employer.
Thus, the Pennsylvania Supreme Court’s reliance upon
the post Press I “commercial speech” cases is an inap-
posite and unwarranted extension of First Amendment
protection to commercial situation-wanted advertise-
ments calculated to foster discriminatory employment
practices. Conversely, the Press IT rationale erodes
this Court’s decision in Press I in a manner inconsis-
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tent with the commercial speech moﬁim@ even as
enunciated in this Court’s post Press I decisions,

B. The Pennsylvania Supreme Court ?nm..&.mnmw

Concluded That the Human W&m:o_ww .ﬂoEEmmm_os 5

Final Order Constituted an Impermissible Prior Re-
straint on Protected Speech

The Commission’s final order (see Appendix A, pp.
9a-10a) in pertinent part directs the waomm.ﬁo cease
publication of ““. . . situation wanted m%ﬁ.ﬁ%BmE?
the contents of which are prohibited by Section 5 {(g)
of the Act.” In both its brief and oral argument .@m-
fore the Pennsylvania Supreme OoE;w a\:w. Commission
made clear that it did not interpret ifs m.EmH order to
require that any advertisement go .cmﬁcw:m.&ma Wmowémw
of the inclusion of a prohibited itern wm Bmondm:osﬂw
the order simply directed that prohibited ém&m an
phrases (e.g. “white woman”, “young Mmm: ) w.ﬂ re-
placed by neutral job-related terms A.o.m“. person . mx
perienced worker”). The OoBBam_wb s mEm_.On ﬂu is
thus improperly categorized as a prior H.mm:m.ﬂa. e-
cisions of this Court relating to prior restraint %w.m.
Near vs. Minnesota, 283 U.S. 697 (1931), and Msm
York Times Co. vs. United States, uﬁow U.S. q
(1971)), have struck down total E.o?v_:omm .m.mmSmM
publication and thus do not support the m.omEEom 0
prior restraint adopted by the Pennsylvania Supreme

Court. w

Yurther, the Commission lacks summary confemp
mo.%mw (43 P.S. §960}; its orders are not m@m,ammomwv
ing. Appellate court review will thus be available
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prior to the issuance of any order of enforcement in all
cases. Significantly, an identical provision in the Pitts-
burgh Human Relations Otdinance was noted by this

Court in Pittsburgh Press I, note 14,413 U.S. at 390-1,
as relevant to this very issue.

Finally, even if the Commission’s final order were
viewed as a prior restraint, a recent decision of this
Court suggests that the prohibition against prior re-
straints does not apply with the same force in the con-
text of commercial speech as it does in more tradition-
ally protected speech areas, if indecd it applies at all
(see Virginia Pharmacy Board vs. Virginia Consumer
Council, footnote 24, 425 U.S. at 771-2) . See also,
Bates vs. State Bar of Arizona, 433 U 8. 350 (1977).

In Virginia Pharmacy Board, commercial speech is
described as being more durable than other kinds, and
arguably less susceptible to chilling. In the present
context, it is doubtful that a suggestion by a Pitts-
burgh Press classified ad-taker that substitutions, such
as those described above be made, would deter place-

ment of advertisements by persons seeking employ-
ment solely on the basis of merit.

C. The Pennsylvania Supreme Court Did Not Cor-

rectly Balance the Interests of Job Seekers Wishing To

Publish Forbidden Data Against the Substantial State

and Federal Interest in Preventing Employment Dis-
crimination

In striking down Section 5(g), the Pennsylvania
Supreme Court’s analysis did not assess the competing
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interests which prior decisions of this Court establish
as controlling.

While the Court below did correctly note Eo. job
secker’s First Amendment right o Tom_w. express ?.m or
her employment qualifications, .EoEn.E.ﬂm omcomﬁo?
work experience, and abilities; Gmcm_ﬂg_ﬁ consider-
ation was given to the fact that a job seeker’s race, seX,
religious creed, etc. are not job-related nrwnmoﬁmzm:o,f
and that Pennsylvania employets are mo.n_n.:&mm E\. the
Human Relations Act from making E.zam decisions
based on these factors.® In short, no _.R._on&m for pet-
mitting inclusion of the specilic E@wozwmm data was
advanced, by either the Pennsylvania mc@nﬁdo Court
or Pittsburgh Press. Instead, the OoE..ﬁ held, in effect,
that the First Amendment’s maoﬂwoﬁo.n oﬁﬁ.&m not
only to legitimate commercial information, as it must,
but also to data which serves no purpose oﬁrow.z.ﬂms zw.
further a patent appeal to wwﬂ.ﬁa_om. No decision o
this Court requires that the First Amendment be so
used as a device for the advancement of employment
discrimination. .

The reliance of the Court below on hSEa.z_n vs.
Willingboro Township, 431 US. 85 (1977) ,ﬁ__m ﬂmm
placed. While it correctly ﬁoﬁm that the record in this
case is silent as to the actual impact o% 50. m%nﬂao-
ments in question, as was E.m record in EAEE. mm
garding the impact of the ordinance .@.ﬂo m: Mmmmm“r.a
court failed to note an important distinction: “‘whi

. s : 11

2 Fven those extremely limited Instances bﬁarwum NMMW

fide occupational qualifications’” can be @Mvemwmm@ EaMMMﬂmm

j i t nurse or sperm donor -

ob related terms (i.e., a Wet n ) ; i
wmﬁm prior experience by referring to prior experience in t

field}.
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flight” is an objectively quantifiable phenomenon. A
community’s racial composition and property values
may be precisely measured. Employment discrimina-
tion is infinitely more elusive. In the instant situation,
if discrimination does result from the portions of the
advertisements in question, it will be silent, and for
all practical purposes undetectable.

Furthermore, unlike the situation in Linmark,
where the Township sought to ban all “For Sale”
signs, the Commission’s final order does not leave the
job seeker without access to the “situation wanted”
columns of the Press. No limitafion is placed on ad-
vertisements which confine themsclves to legitimate,

employment-related data.

Most importantly, the Commission’s position in this
situation is not one of support for a paternalistic blan-
ket-type prohibition such as this Court rejected in both
Linmark and Virginia Pharmacy.

In Linmark this Court reached the real fear of the
Township: that receivers of information might act on
the information received, to the detriment of the
Township. The Commission, likewise, fears that re-
ceivers of information will act on it, to the detriment
of all who seek equal, merit-based employment oppor-
tunity in the Commonwealth, opportunity which the
Commission is mandated by statute to safeguard.

Nor has the Commission adopted the position taken
by the Pharmacy Board in Virginia Pharmacy of at-
tempting to withhold legitimate commercial informa-
tion essential to informed decision making by consum-
ers. Rather, the Commission wishes to insure that only
job-related, legitimate information will reach prospec-
tive employers,
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D. The Pennsylvania Supreme Court mn.na. in Fail-

ing To Devise a Narrow Interpretation of Section 5 (g)

Which Is Consistent With the Requirements of the
First Amendment

Assuming arguendo that a broad reading of §5 Am.v
contravenes the First Amendment, the wma._mw?mﬁm
Supreme Court’s failure to oomm:.co. §5 Amv. in a nar-
rower but constitutional manner is Soo:ma.asm with
this court’s treatment of the overbreadth doctrine as
applied to the “commercial speech™ area.

The “commetcial speech” in issue in this case E
volves a potential for unlawful mBEo&EoE discrimi-
nation which is not subject to regulation save at the
time the situation wanted m%owmmaamﬁ is placed.
Persons placing such advertisements solicit employ-
ment from society as a whole, Absent a subsequent
contact from a prospective employer, they have no
way of ascertaining whether or not they were ever
considered for any given mEEowB.os.ﬂ omvoﬂﬁEQ.
Thus, such acts of employment discrimination gn:. go
unmonitored unless all reasonable means of securing
unbiased consideration of situation wanted advertise-

ments are assured.

The provisions of 85 (g) of the wmﬁam.w?mE.m En.
man Relations Act are designed to -assist in mo?mﬁwm
the unbiased consideration of mc.ow m%oi_mmaoam. v
prospective employers. If situation émi&.mn@oﬂnmﬂ
ments do not indicate proscribed characteristics suc
as race, color, religious creed, ancestry, age, mwm, m:.
national origin, the prospective employers will be
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limited to the job-related considerations set forth in
the advertisement when making initial sclections and
undertaking initial contacts with prospective em-
ployees. Once contact is initiated, the potential for as-
sessment and review of employer conduct against non-
discrimination policy exists (i.e., at that time the pro-
spective employee, for the first time, knows that an
actual employment selection procedure was triggered
by a situation wanted advertisement). The only way
in which, and point in time at which, the significant
societal interest in non-discriminatory employment
practices can be imposed upon this form of job seek-
ing is through regulation of the content of the “situa-
tion wanted” advertisement at the time of placement.
Cf. Bates vs. State Bar of Arizona, 433 U.S. 350
(1977).

This Court, in Bates, supra, clearly indicated that
the First Amendment protection of commercial speech
was not being extended to unlawful practices such as
deceptive or misleading or otherwise illegal advertise-
ments. See Bates, supra at 366.

A prospective employer can have no lawful interest
in the race, color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex, or
national origin of a prospective employee especially
when the prospective employee does not know that
such factors are being considered. This is not infor-
mation of import within the Bafes rationale. See also,
Regents of the University of California v. Bakke,
U.S. , 98 5.Ct. 2733 (1978). Even employers en-
gaged in proper remedial “affirmative action” can do
no more than advertise their status as equal oppot-
tunity employers.
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The statutory language in issue is not a blanket pro-
hibition upon “situation wanted” advertising and is
appropriately construable in a manner consistent with
protection of the relevant elements in such advertise-
ments.

“Since advertising is linked to . . . [economic]
. . . well being, it seems unlikely that such speech
is particularly susceptible to being crushed by
overbroad regulations.” (Citations omitted.)
Bates, supra, at page 381.

Expetience in the employment discrimination area
has demonstrated the necessity for the vigorous and
reasonable regulation of employment practices as a
means of eliminating historic prejudices and precon-
ceptions from all aspects of employment. Section 5 (g)
is clearly amenable, should the Court deem it neces-
sary, to a narrowing construction which would protect
the individual’s right to seek employment based
upon job-related considerations, rather than invidious

stereotypes.

The statutory goal of equal employment oppottunity
is of the highest societal priority and deserves, af least,
a reasonable accomodation with First Amendment -
principles.




22

For the foregoing reasons, Petitioner respectfully
requests that a writ of certiorari issue to review the
judgment of the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania in this

case.
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CONCLUSION

ROBERT S. MIRIN,
General Counsel,
JamMEs D, KEENEY,
Assistant General Counsel,
EpiTH E, Cox,
Assistant General Counsel,
Counsel for Petitioner
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APPENDIX A

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS
- COMMISSION

Docket No, E-8528

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS
COMMISSION,
Complainant
Vvs.

PITTSBURGH PRESS COMPANY,
A CORPORATION,
Respondent

HISTORY OF THE CASE, FINDINGS OF FACT,
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, COMMISSION’S DE-
CISION AND FINAL ORDER

HISTORY OF THE CASE

The Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission
(hereinafter the “Commission™) initiated a complaint
on March 11, 1975 at Docket No. E-8528 charging
that the Respondent Pittsburgh Press Company “‘main-
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tains a pattern and practice of aiding and abetting the
doing of an unlawful discriminatory act prohibited by
Section 5(g) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations
Act in that Respondent prints in its situation-wanted
column advertisements which specify or express the
race and/or sex of the individual placing the advertise-
ment.” The complaint charged that this conduct was
in violation of Section 5 (¢) of the Pennsylvania Hu-
man Relations Act, Act of October 27, 1955, P.L. 744,
as amended, 43 P.S. §951 et seq., (the “Act”). Sec-
tion 5 (e) of the Act provides in its pertinent part:

It shall be an unlawful discriminatory practice,
unless based upon a bona fide occupational quali-
fication, or in the case of a fraternal corporation
or association, unless based upon membership in
such association or corporation or except where
based upon applicable security regulations estab-
lished by the United States or the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania . . . for any person, whether or
not an employer, employment agency, labor or-
ganization or employe, to aid, abet, incite, com-
pel or coerce the doing of any act declared by this
section to be an unlawful discriminatory prac-
tice ...

Section 5(g) of the Act provides that is un-
lawful for any individual secking employment to
publish or cause to be published any advertise-
ment which specifies or in any manner expresses
his race, color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex
or national origin, or in any manner expresses a
limitation or preference as to the race, color, re-
ligious creed, ancestry, age, sex or national origin
of any prospective employer.
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An investigation by the Commission staff deter-
mined that there was probable cause to credit the mrm-
gations of the complaint, whereupon the Commission
endeavored to eliminate the unfawful pattern and
practice complained of by conciliation. oono.m:mao:
having failed, the Commission convened a public hear-
ing on August 6, 1975 pursuant to Section @. o.m the
Act. The Hearing Panel consisted of Commissioner
Flizabeth M. Scott, Chairperson of the Panel, and
Commissioners Robert Johnson Smith and uow.E P.
Wisniewski. Gary L. Lancaster, Esquire, Assistant
General Counsel in the Pittsburgh Regional Office of
the Commission, presented the case in support of the
complaint. Robert H. Shoop, Jr., Esquire, of Thorpe,
Reed, and Armstrong, represented the Womﬁommmi.
Elisabeth S. Shuster, Assistant General Counsel in .Em
Harrisburg Headquarters Office of the Commission
sat as Legal Advisor to the Hearing Panel.

Counsel for the parties entered into written stipu-
lations which were entered into the record at the pub-
lic hearing along with exhibits Al through A33 and
B1 through B7.

The Hearing Panel, upon consideration o.m oral ar-
gument and the record and the bricfs submitted sub-

sequent to the hearing by counsel for the wwﬁom_
unaminously recommended that the full Commission

find in favor of the Complainant.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Complainant is the wo:smu%mam Human
Relations Commission, an administrative agency €s-
tablished by the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act
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and charged with effectuating the purposes of the Act,
m.zm empowered to initiate complaints charging viola-
tions of the Act,

2. The Respondent is the Pittsburgh Press Com-
pany, a corporation located at 34 Boulevard of the Al-
lies, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

3. The Respondent publishes a daily newspaper
of general circulation called the Pittsburgh Press
(hereinafter “the Press”).

4. The Press accepts and publishes in its pages so-
Q.Eom “situation-wanted” advertisements from indi-
viduals secking employment.

5. The Press accepts and publishes these advertise-
ments in the language as submitted by these individ-
uals and without regard to whether the content of the
advertisement conforms with Section 5 (g) of the Act.

6. Many of these advertisements specify or in
some manner express the race, color, religious creed,
ancestry, age, sex or national origin of the individual
seeking employment.

7. Examples of the advertisements referred to in
Finding of Fact No. 6 are:

A. College grad—Born again Christian with
Bachelor’s Degree and seven yrs. sales and mar-
keting management experience seeking work with
Christian business or-organization. (Stipulated
Exhibit “A-1") .

b. White woman, desires day work, office
cleaning. (A-1) _

c. Parolee—White needs employment to he

released. Licensed steam .boiler and engineer.
- (A-1) _
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d. Salesman—Age 30, looking for career in
Pittsburgh, start immediately, 15 years sales ex-
perience. (A-1)

e. What can I do for you? Recent college
grad, good looking, twenty-five years old, B.S. in
Business Administration, seeks entry level man-
agement position ... (A-8).

f. Man, mature, accounting, bookkeeping, of-
fice management, desires position in these or re-
lated fields. (A-23).

8. The Respondent engages in a pattern and prac-
tice of publishing “situation-wanted” advertisements
from individuals seeking employment which specily
or in some manner express the race, color, religious
creed, ancestry, age, sex or national origin of the in-
dividual placing the advertisement.

9. This pattern and practice engaged in by the Re-
spondent aids and abets the doing of the act declared
to be an unlawful discriminatory practice by Section
5 (g) of the Act.

10. This pattern and practice engaged in by the
Respondent also aids and abets discrimination in hir-
ing declared to be an unlawful discriminatory practice
by Section 5 (a) of the Act. )

11. The Commission has not alleged that adver-
tisements placed by candidates for political office vio-
late any provisions of the Act.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. At all times herein mentioned the Commission
had and still has jurisdiction over the Respondent and
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the subject matter of the complaint herein pursuant to
the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, Act of Octo-
ber27, 1955, P.L. 744, as amended.

2. Subject to limitations described generally in
Conclusions of Law No. 6, situation-wanted advertise-
ments which specify or in any manner express the race,
color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex or national
origin of the individual secking employment are in
violation of Section 5 (g) of the Act.

3. Such advertisements are not protected by the
First Amendment to the Constitution of the United
States.

4. The conduct of the Respondent in engaging in
a pattern and practice of publishing such situation-
wanted ads is not protected by the First Amendment to
the Constitution of the United States.

5. The Respondent’s conduct in publishing situ-
ation-wanted advertisements the contents of which
are in violation of Section 5(g) of the Act is in vio-
lation of Section 5 (¢) of the Act. .

6. Not all situation-wanted advertisements which
specify or express in some manner the race, color, re-
lipious creed, ancestry, age, sex or national origin of
an individual seeking employment are in violation of
Section 5(g). Those advertisements clearly directed
at or seeking employment from prospective employers
who are not within the jurisdiction of the Act are not
unlawful.

For example, an employer to be within the ju-
risdiction of the Act must employ four or more
persons within the Commonwealth. An individ-

- ual employed in agriculture or domestic service or

Decision, Pa. Human Relations Comm, 7a

who resides in the personal residence of the em-
ployer is not covered.

On the other hand, an advertisement which
specifies or otherwise expresses any of the pro-
hibited information and which is written in such
general language that it is not clearly limited to
employers or positions not within jurisdiction of
the Act, or is directed at employers covered by
the Act as well as employets not covered, is un-
lawful.

7. Advertisements placed by candidates for politi-
cal offices are not affected by these Conclusions of
Law.

RECOMMENDATION OF HEARING
COMMISSIONERS

AND NOW, this day of , 1976,
upon consideration of the record of the public hearing
and the arguments of Counsel and briefs submitted by
the parties and the proposed History of the Case, Find-
ings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, the Hearing
Commissioners recommend to the Commission that an
order be entered against the Pittsburgh Press Company
finding that it has violated Section 5 (e) of the Act'and
providing for appropriate relief.

(s) Elizabeth M. Scott
Elizabeth M. Scott
Chairperson
(s) Robert Johnson Smith
Robert Johnson Smith
(s} John P Wisniewski
John P. Wisniewski
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS
COMMISSION

Docket No. E-8528

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS
COMMISSION,
, Complainant

Vvs.

PITTSBURGH PRESS COMPANY,
A CORPORATION,
Respondent

COMMISSION’S DECISION

AND NOW, this day of , 1976,
upon consideration of the record of the case, the briefs
submitted by the parties, the History of the Case, Find-
ings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and the Recom-
mendation of Hearing Commissioners, the Pennsyl-
vania Human Relations Commission finds and deter-
mines that the Respondent, Pittsburgh Press Company,
has violated Section 5 (e} of the Pennsylvania Human
Relations Act, Act of October 27, 1955, P.L. 744, as
amended, in that it engages in a pattern and practice
of accepting and publishing “situation-wanted” advet-
tisements from individuals seeking employment which
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specify or in some manner express the race, ooﬂ.o.ﬁ re-
ligious creed, ancestry, age, sex or national origin of
such individuals, thus aiding and abetting these indi-
viduals to violate Section 5 (g) of the Act.

, PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN
RELATIONS COMMISSION
By: (s) Joseph X. Yaffe
Joseph X, Yaffe
Chairperson

Attest:
(s) Elizabeth M. Scott
 Elizabeth M. Scott
Secretary

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS
COMMISSION

Docket No. E-8528

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS
‘ COMMISSION,
Complainant

V8.

PITTSBURGH PRESS COMPANY,

A CORPORATION,
Respondent
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* FINAL ORDER

AND NOW, this day of , 1976,
upon consideration of the foregoing History of the
Case, Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Rec-
ommendation of the Hearing Commissioners and pur-
suant to Section 9 of the Pennsylvania Human Rela-

tions Act, the Pennsylvania Human Relations Com-
mission hereby

ORDERS:

1. The Respondent shall cease and desist from
publishing “situation-wanted”” advertisements the con-

tents of which are prohibited by Section 5 (g) of the
Act.

2. The provisions of this order shall be effective
immediately.

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN
RELATIONS COMMISSION
By: Joseph X, Yaffe
Chairperson
Attest:
Elizabeth M. Scott
Secretary
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APPENDIX B

OPINION OF THE COMMONWEALTH COURT
OF PENNSYLVANIA

Opinion by Judge Kramer, Filed: July 21, 1977:

This is an appeal by the Pittsburgh Press .Oon%m:%
(the Press) from an order of the Pennsylvania W.EBME
Relations Commission (the Commission) o&m.ﬁnm.aﬁ
Press to cease and desist the publication of :m:.cmﬁos-
Wanted” advertisements the contents of 9&:.% are
prohibited by Section 5 (g) of the Pennsylvania E;
man Relations Act (Act) ! in that those contents .%.mﬁ-
fy or in some manner exXpress the race, .n&oﬁ religious
creed, ancestry, age, seX Of national origin of the per-
son placing the advertisement.

The facts in this case are quite mme.ﬁo. q, r.o Press
prints a “Situations Wanted” Qmmwmmomﬁos. in its clas-
sified advertisement pages as a Service to its readets.
Advertising space is, of course, wm_a for by the m%ﬂ.-
tisers. Situation-wanted ma<o_“,:mo_8o2m provide a
means by which persons seeking mEEO%BmE may
communicate their qualifications and job m%;mﬁowm
to the employing public at large. Gmmm_.@w such m:.m_u-
vertisement consists of a brief ammnﬁwﬁon of the job-
seeker and the type of job he or she desires. The T.mwm
publishes these advertisements exactly as they are sub-

1 Aet of Oetober 27, 1955, P.L. 744, as amended, 43 P.S.
§955(g).
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mitted. Beyond listing the ads alphabetically, the Press
in no way alters any ad nor attempts to classify them
further than by the simple “Situations Wanted” clas-
sification.

Section 5 of the Act provides inter alia:

“It shall be an unlawful discriminatory prac-
tice, unless based upon a bona fide occupational
qualification, or in the case of a fraternal corpo-
ration or association, unless based upon member-
ship in such association or corporation, or except
where based upon applicable security regulations
established by the United States or the Common-
wealth of Pennsylvania:

““(a) For any employer because of the race,
color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex, national
origin or non-job related handicap or disability of
any individual to refuse to hire or employ, or to
bar or to discharge from employment such indi-
vidual, or to other discriminate against such indi-
vidual with respect to compensation, hire, tenure,
terms, conditions or privileges of employment, if
the individual is the best able and most competent
to perform the services required.

PO —

““(e) For any person, whether or not an em-
ployer, employment agency, labor organization or
employe, to aid, abet, incite, compel or coerce the
doing of any act declared by this section to be an
unlawful discriminatory practice, or to obstruct
or prevent any person from complying with the
provisions of this act or any order issued there-
under, or to attempt, directly or indirectly, to

v
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commit any act declared by this section to be un-
lawful discriminatory practice.

“(g) For any individual seeking employment
"to publish or cause to be published any advertise-
ment which specifies or in any manner expresses
his race, color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex
or national origin, or in any manner expresses a
limitation or preference as to the race, color, re-
ligious creed, ancestry, age, sex or national origin
of any prospective employer.”

On March 11, 1975, the Commission initiated a
complaint charging the Press with violating Section
5 () * of the Act by having aided and abetted the doing
of an unlawful discriminatory act prohibited by Sec-
tion 5(g).

After attempts at conciliation failed, a public hear-
ing was held by the Commission on August 6, 1975,
which resulted in a unanimous recommendation by the
Hearing Panel that the full Commission find in favor
of the complainant. The cease and desist order was
subsequently issued by the Commission.

An indication of the type of advertisement found
by the Commission to violate Section 5(g) can be as-
certained from the specific examples set forth in the
Hearing Panel’s findings of fact. These examples were
drawn from stipulated exhibits which included the
Press’ “Situation Wanted” columns from Sunday,
June 1, 1975 to Thursday, June 26, 1975:

“COLLEGE GRAD—Born again Christian.
with Bachelor’s Degrec and seven yrs. sales and

2 43 P.S. §955 (o).
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marketing mgmt. experience seeking work with
Christian business or organization. ...

“White woman—desires day work, office
cleaning.”

“Parolee—White needs employment to be re-
leased. Licensed steam boiler and engineer. . ..

“Salesman—Age 30, looking for career in
Pittsburgh, start immediately, 15 years sales ex-
perience. ...

“What can I do for you? Recent college grad,
good looking, twenty-five years old, B.S. in Busi-
ness Administration, seeks entry level manage-
ment position.””

“Man—mature, accounting bookkeeping, of-
fice management, desires position in these or re-
lated fields.””

It is obvious at a glance that the contents of these ad-
vertisemenis are in contravention of the letter of Sec-

3 Exhibit A-1 (Ree. 27a).

¢ Exhibit A-1 (Ree. 27a).

6 Exhibit A-1 (Ree. 27a).

¢ Exhibit A-1 (Rec. 27a}.

7 Exhibit A-8 (Ree. 34a).

8 Kxhibit A-23 (Ree. 48a). Due to the misplacement of an
exhibit in original stipulation of facts which was corrected
in the appellant’s printed record, the designation of the ex-
hibits from A-15 to the end of the ‘A’ exhibits, does not
coineide in the two records. For example, ‘‘A-23"" in the
original record will appear as ‘“A-22’’ on page 48a of the
printed record. The exhibit references herein arve from the
original record, but the page in the printed reeord is also
ineluded. .

Opinion of Commonwealth Court 15a

tion 5(g)." The Press does not contend otherwise. It
does, however, challenge the constitutional validity of
Section 5 (g) on the basis of the First and Fourteenth
Amendments to the United States Constitution.*

Initially, the Commission raises the question of the
Press’ standing to challenge Section 5(g). We are cer-
tain that the Press does have standing to challenge that
Section of the Act. The order entered against the Press
was the result of the Commission’s determination that
the Press had aided and abetted the violation of Sec-
tion 5(g). In the words of the Court in Griswold v.
Connecticut, 381 U.S. 479, 481 (1965), “Certainly

Y The Court has analyzed the contents of the IPress’ situ-
ation-wanted ads for June 1, 1975 to June 26, 1975 in terms
of the prohibitions in Section 5{g). The fipures arrived at
are less than exact, beeause many references, especially as to
age, are quite subtle, if they are intentional at all.

Of a total of 845 ads, 307 indicated in some manner the sex
of the advertiser. Approximately 55.7 percent of these were
males, while 44.3 percent were females. There were 82 ads
which gave some indication of age. Bome of these were ex-
plicit. Many were in terms of ‘‘young’’ or ‘‘elderly”’, while
a large number of ads eonveyed the advertisers ‘‘maturity’’
in terms of a high figure for years of experience in their fields.
Using the figure of 40 years as approximately halfway he-
tween entry into the job market and the normal retirement
age, we find that 47 of the ads conveyed the impression of
““youth’’ while 35 of the ads expressed the ‘“‘maturity’’ of
the advertiser. This is approximately a 57.3 percent to 42.7
percent breakdown. There were only four references to raee;
all to the “white’” race. There was one ad which referred to
religion, and there were no references to national origin or
ancestry. . -

10 The First Amendment is applicable to the States via the
Fourteenth Anmiendmeut. Schneider v. State, 308 U.8. 147,
160 (1939).
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the accessory should have the standing to assert that
the offense which he is charged with assisting is not,
or cannot constitutionally be, a crime.” The same
logic is applicable here to confer standing on the Press
to challenge Section 5 (g) .

The Press asserts that its advertisers have the right
to submit for publication, and the Press has the right
to publish, situations-wanted advertisements the con-
tents of which are offensive to Section 5 (g), and that
the proscription of Section 5 (g) unconstitutionally in-
fringes on those rights in derogation of the First
Amendment. The Commission answers first with the
contention that these ads propose “purely commercial
transactions” and thus do not come within the protec-
tion of the First Amendment.

The doctrine that speech is unprotected per se if it
is purely commercial in nature was first propounded
in Valentine v. Chrestensen, 316 U.S, 52 (1942). Any

11 This partiecularly true in this case, where the Commission
chose not to press its complaint against any of the advertisers,
but enly against the Press. To accept the Commission’s stand-
ing argument would be to allow the Commission to forever
avoid review of Section 5(g) by simply never commencing
proceedings against anyone directly pursuant to Section 5(g).

Moreover, we note that the Press is not merely raising the
rights of third persons in its attack on 5(g). From past liti-

gation, the Press has learned that a First Amendment attack

on a citation for aiding and abetting may not prevail if the
provision creating the underlying substantive offense is left
unchallenged. See Pittsburgh Press Co. v, Pitisburgh Com-
mission on Human Relations, 418 T.8. 876 (1973). While
the aiding and abetting violated may not be so, in which ease
the Press must challenge the latter provision in order to
vindicate its own constiutional rights.
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vitality remaining in that doctrine after the decision
in Bigelow v. Virginia (hereinafter Bigelow), 421 U.S.
809 (1975), was completely extinguished in Virginia
State Board of Pharmacy v. Virginia Citizens Consum-
er Council, Inc., 425 U.S. 748, 96 S.Ct. 1817 (1976)
(hereinafter Virginia Pharmacy). In Virginia Phar-
macy the Court stated:

“Qur question is whether speech which does
‘no more than propose a commercial transaction’
. . . is so removed from any ‘exposition of ideas’
... and from ‘truth, science, morality, and arts in
general, in its diffusion of liberal sentiments on
the administration of Government’ . , . that it
lacks all protection. Our answer is that it is not.”
425 U.S. at 762,96 S.Ct. at 1826.

The Court recognized that the basic need for the free
tlow of commercial information for the proper func-
tioning of a free market economy “suggests that no line
between publicly ‘interesting’ or ‘important’ com-
mercial advertising and the opposite kind could ever
be drawn.” 425 U.S. at 765, 96 S.Ct. at 1827.** The
conclusion that purely commercial speech is not un-
protected per se has been emphatically reaffirmed by
the Court in Linmark Associates, Inc. v. Township of
Willingsboro (hereinafter Linmark), U.s. ,

12 Bigelow w. Virginie, supre, which involved advertising
of the availability of abortions, did contain indications
that an advertisement must have some special societal or
pelitiecal importance in order to be protected speech. The
statement quoted in the text makes it clear that the Court
now eschews such a limitation. Advertising per se is now
recognized to be of sufficient importanee to our society to
merit some First Amendment protection.




18a Opinion of Commonwealth Court

45 U.S.L.W. 4441 (May 2, 1977}, where an ordi-
nance banning “For Sale” and “Sold” signs for the
purpose of stemming “panic selling” and “white
flight” from the community was held unconstitutional
under Virginia Pharmacy.

Although it is thus clear that situation-wanted ad-
vertisements are not unprotected per se, it remains to
be decided whether the contents of such an ad which
run afoul of Section 5 (g) may be constitutionally sup-
pressed. The Court in Virginia Pharmacy recognized
that commercial speech is not immune from regula-
tion, 425 U.S. at 770, 96 S.Ct. at 1830, and may re-
quire less protection than other varieties of speech in
order to insure an unimpaired “flow of truthful and
legitimate commercial information.” 425 U.S. at 771-
72 n. 24,96 S.Ct. at 1830 n. 24.

In attempting to show that the cease and desist
order in this case is pursuant to such a valid regulation
of commercial speech, the Commission relies upon the
decision in Pittsburgh Press Co. v. Pittsburgh Com-
mission on Human Relations (hereinafter Press I),
413 U.S. 376 (1973). In Press I, the Court upheld an
order directing the Press to cease and desist the publi-
cation of help-wanted advertisements under sex-based
classification headings. In particular the Commission
relies on the Court’s statement that—

“Any First Amendment interest which might
be served by advertising an ordinary commercial
proposal and which might arguably outweigh the
governmental interest supporting the regulation
is altogether absent when the commercial activity

itself is illegal and the restriction on advertising -
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is incidental to a valid limitation on economic ac-
tivity.” Press I at 389.

Later cases have also alluded to the validity of adver-
tising restrictions related to the illegality of the trans-
action proposed by the advertisement. Virginia Phar-
macy at 771, 96 S.Ct. 1825; Bigelow at 821. How-
ever, not since Press [ has the Court actually dealt with
a case involving a ban on commercial speech “inci-
dental” to an underlying valid limitation on economic
activity or the prevention of an illegal transaction.'

There is no doubt that the underlying commercial
activity sought to be banned by Section 5 (a) is illegal.
The Press in no way challenges the Section 5 (a) pro-
hibition of discrimination in employment on the basis
of race, color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex or
national origin. The quote from Press I would indi-
cate that we then need only to determine whether the
advertising restrictions of Section 5(g) are “inciden-
tal” to that prohibition. If it is, then 5(g) would be
valid and any need for balancing obviated. The pos-
ture of Press I and the decisions in later cases convince

18 Tn Linmerk and Virginie Phormecy the advertising re-
strictions were related to the States’ general interest in inte-
grated housing and professional standards of pharmacists,
respeetively, but they were not incidental to any specifie
regulation in those areas. The restrictions were enacted to
further the States’ interests in and of themselves, and not as
ancillary to a specific underlying regulation. Tn Bigelow, al-
though abortion was illegal in Virginia, it was not illegal in
New York at the time, Naturally, Virginia was without power
to regulate abortions in another state, so a ban on the adver-
tising of abortion availability in New York could not be
characterized as incidental to a velid limitation on, or regu-

Jlation of, abortions,
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us, however, that this is no longer the appropriate
“test.”

Press I must be read in light of the fact that the
Press did not there challenge the section of the Pitts-
burgh Ordinance which prohibited the indicating of
sex discrimination in advertising by employers, em-
ployment agencies, and labor unions. The Press chal-
lenged only that section of the ordinance which made
it unlawful for any person to aid in the doing of any
act declared to be an unlawful employment practice
by the ordinance. Because the Press conceded the il-
legality of not only sex discrimination in employment
but also the advertising of same, and because the facts
in Press I revealed that the Press was clearly aiding in
the propogation of such advertising, the Court was not
compelled to formulate any refined “test” for the va-
lidity of speech restrictions related to activities which
the government may legitimately regulate or prohibit.
The word “incidental” was a sufficient description of
the relationship under the circumstances of Press I.

Two years after Press I, the Court decided the Bige-
low case. Although it was eventually determined that
the prohibition of advertising the availability of abor-
tions did not relate in any way to a valid underlying
regulation of conduct under the particular facts of that
case,"* the Bigelow case did prompt the Court to re-
formulate its “test” or standard of review for this type
of commercial speech case. The Court stated:

“To the extent that commercial activity is sub-
ject to regulation, the relationship of speech to
that activity may be one factor, among others, to

14 See note 13, supra.

Opinion of Commonwealth Court 21a

be considered in weighing the First Amendment
interest against the governmental interest al-
leged.” Bigelow at §26.

We believe that a balancing analysis is the appropriate
standard of review for the present case. The factors
to be weighed are the opposing First Amendment and
governmental interests, the effectiveness of the speech
restriction in promoting the underlying valid regula-
tion, and the extent of any incidental restrictions on
legitimate forms of commercial speech,'®

18 Ag indicated by note 13, supre, there appear to be two
basic types of commercial speech content regulation. The
first type is intended to further the government’s interest in
an area in and of itself, such as the price advertising ban in
Virginig Pharmacy or the ban on “‘Sold’’ and “For Sale’”’
signs in Linmark. "The second type is intended to be ancil-
lary fo, or serve as the natural adjunct of, a specific and
direet regulation of some activity, as in Press I and the
present case. We perceive somewhat different standards of
review for each type of regulation.

A reading of Bigelow reveals that the Court’s approach,
at that time, was to determine by balancing whether any indi-
vidual advertisement was protected by the ¥irst Amendment,
Advertising was not unprotected per se, but there was a ‘‘re-
buttable presumption’’ of no protection. Virginia Pharmacy
reversed this ‘‘presumption’’ by concluding that commerecial
speech in general was protected. The Court did, however, also
eanduct a balaneing of the factors in the specific case before
it, indicating that balancing survived as a means of deter-
mining exceptions to the new blanket protection for com-
mercial speech, Finally, in Linmark the Court paraphrased
a line from Virginia Pharmacy and simply held the ordinance
involved to be unconstitutional becaunse it ‘‘impaired ‘the flow
of truthful and legitimate commercial information.’ *’ 45
USLW at 4445, This ‘‘test’’ was easy to apply in Linmark
because truthful information will be legitimate if the activity
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The Commonwealth’s asserted interest in the pre--

vention of employment discrimination based on race,
color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex or national
origin is certainly a substantial one. Pitted against it
is the jobseeker’s interest in being able to fully, yet
truthfully,' utilize the press to “advertise” himself or
herself in that manner and by such terms as he or she
believes will be most efficacious in producing the de-
sired result. That this interest must not be minimized
can be seen by looking at its component parts. As a
pure matter of expression, there is the basic interest of
the individual in being able to tell anyone who will
listen just who and what that individual is: to be able
to say “I am black” as well as “I am a college grad-
uate” or “I am male” as well as “I am ambitious”.
The purpose for such expression provides, in the pres-
ent case, an additional element of import. The Su-
preme Court long ago recognized the great magnitude
of the individual’s interest in obtaining employment

or transaction which is the subject of the commercial speech
is not prohibited or limited by valid regulation. However,
where a specch restrietion is ancillary to a specifie prohibition
or restriction of an activity, that underlying regulation may,
in effeet, deprive certain speech of its ‘‘legitimaey’’. A ban
on the advertising of prostitution, where prostitution itself is
illegal, is a clear example. Other cases, like the present one,
are not so clear. There is no obvious and direet relationship
between situation-wanted ads and diserimination by em-
ployers, It is in cases sueh as this that we believe a proper
resolution requires a balaneing analysis of the opposing in-
terests, the effectiveness of the ban as ancillary to the under-
lying valid regulation, and the extent of incidental restrictions
on legitimate commereial speech.

18 The Commission has not alleged that any of the ads are
false or misleading,

Opinion of Commonwealth Court 23a

and earning a living. Truax v. Raich, 239 U.S. 33
(1915) " Here we are not dealing with the ordinary
transaction between a “seller hawking his wares and
a buyer seeking to strike a bargain”. Virginia Phar-
macy at 425 U.S. 781, 96 S5.Ct. 1835 (Rehnquist, J.,
dissenting) . We are dealing with the efforts of indi-
viduals to sell the only thing that they have to offer:
their labor. For the users of the situation wanted col-
umn, often the least skilled and most desperate job-
seekers, the quest for employment may cause the liveli-
est political or social controversy of the day to shrink
to insignificance by comparison.'®

We now come to the question of the relationship of
the speech involved here to the commercial activity
subject to regulation. Bigelow at 826. The Act does
not prohibit individuals from accepting or rejecting
jobs on the basis of one of the “forbidden criteria™.
Thus, the relationship which we must focus upon is
the relationship of the speech involved here to illegal
discrimination by employers. Stated another way, we

17 ¢{The right to work for a living in the common oecupa-
tiong of the community is of the very essence of the personal
freedom and opportunity that it was the purpose of the [Four-
teenth} Amendment to secure.”’ 239 U.S. at 41.

18 The recognized qualitative and guantitative difference
in the interest of the job-sceker as opposed o the interest of
an employer involved in the hiring of employees serves as one
way to distinguish this case from one involving a challenge
to a ban on the advertising of diseriminatory hiring by an
employer. The filling of job vacanecies in the usual course of
business surely must be aceorded a lesser weight in a balancing
analysis than an individual’s interest in obtaining a job. The
former is a rontine matter of business practice, while the latter
is usually one of economic survival.
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must assess the extent to which Section 5 (g) promotes
the fulfillment of the purpose of Section 5 (a) .

The Commission asserts that permitting job-seekers
to specify their race or sex, for example, will provide
the prejudiced employer with an easy means to per-
petrate discriminatory hiring, We do not believe that
such an advertisement provides an employer so dis-
posed with an easier or better tool for discrimination
than does a resume or job interview.”” Here, we must
distinguish Press I. In Press I, the advertisers and the
Press were classifying jobs on the basis of sex. Dis-
criminatory hiring was faciliated because persons of
one gender were discouraged from even applying for a
job that was advertised as being of “interest” only to
persons of the opposite gender. As the Court stated in
Press I at 387, “By implication, at least, an advertiser
whose want ad appears in the ‘Jobs—Male Interest’
column is likely to discriminate against women in his
hiring decisions.” Moreover, the positive relationship
between the advertisements in Press I and sex dis-
crimination in employment was reflected in the record.,

» We note that the Commission’s argument is unsupported
by the record itself in the sense that one would expect a mueh
higher number and proportion of references to eharacteristics
preferred by the prejudiced employer if the situation-wanted
column had become an avenue for “‘easy” diserimination.
Yet, no particular group characterized by any of these traits
dominates the column. The numerically frequent references
to age and sex are fairly evenly divided between age groups
and genders. References to race, religion, and national origin
ravely appeared, if at all. See note 9, supra. While thege
figures cannot prove that discrimination does not occur as a
result of the ads, it is likewise true that they do not support
a conelusion that it does oecur,
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Press I at 381 n. 7. In the present case, we are dealing
with individuals who choose to classify themselves ac-
cording to race, sex, or one of the other traits. There
is no evidence in the record that ads of the type found
objectionable by the Commission result in employment
discrimination, nor do such ads imply, as did those in
Press I, that any employer is likely to discriminate in
hiring. Section 5(g) does not directly affect hiring
practices one way or another. It affects them only

" through the reactions it is assumed employers will

have to the free flow of information. See Virginia
Pharmacy at 425 U.S. 755, 96 S.Ct. 1820. And we
believe, moreover, that the Commission’s assumptions
as to employer reactions are narrowly one-sided and
thereby fail to draw attention fo the impact of Section
5(g) on other, legitimate, aspects or uses of the com-
mercial speech involved here.

The Commission apparently assumes that only the
prejudiced employer will react to or affirmatively
utilize the “objectionable™ characteristic information
in these ads. This overlooks the possibility that a fair-
minded employer may react in the negative to any ad
that specifies any race, sex, religion, age or national
origin. Such an employer may seek to avoid hiring in-
dividuals who are themselves prejudiced. More im-
portantly, the Commission overlooks a quite legitimate
use of this type of characteristic information. “Equal
Opportunity” and “Affirmative Action” employers
may use the information in such ads to find more mi-
nority applicants to interview for a position.” Even

20 We specifically confine this statement to recruiting mi-
norities for interviews or consideration for a job, and thus
need not disenss the issue of the validity of ‘“‘reverse diserim-
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an ad which boldly “specifies” such information has
this legitimate use.

Moreover, Section 5 (g) impedes the flow of greater
amounts of legitimate commercial information by ban-
ning ads which “in any mannet” express any of the
“forbidden™ characteristics. A job-seeket’s name is,
beyond doubt, a completely legitimate item of infor-
mation in a situation-wanted ad. Yet Section 5 (g) is
obviously offended in one or more respects by, just as
examples: Svenson, Weinstein, Tanaka, Kowalski,
Garcia, O’Brien, or Schmidt. Most given names, such
as Dennis® and Joyce, leave little more doubt as to
gender than do the titles “Mr.”, “Mrs.”,” and even
“Ms.”

Section 5 (g) would also suppress vital information
relating to job qualifications. A person’s alma mater,
be it high school or college level, can inform an em-
ployer of the quality of education a job-seeker has had.
Yet 5(g) would prohibit the inclusion in an ad of
“North Catholic High School” or “Oral Roberts Uni-
versity”, For indicating race, “Morgan State” or
“Grambling” would offend 5 (g}. The graduate of the
all-female Carlow College would likewise transgress
5(g) by advertising that fact. Another important job
qualification is experience. However, one with as very
much experience as 30* or 55% years may find that

ination’’, As to that issue, see Chmill v. City of Pittshurgh,
» Pa. Commonwealth Ct, , A.2d (No. 1047
1976, filed July 18, 1977).
* Exhibit A-13 (Rec. 39a).
*2 Exhibit A-20 (Ree. 45a).
* Exhibit A-17 (Rec. 42a).
2t Exhibit A-14 (Ree. 40a).
* Exhibit A-14 (Rec. 40a).
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this excellent qualification cannot be advertised be-
cause it also expresses a good indication of relative
age. The baby-sitter who describes herself as an :ﬂm-
perienced mother™,* perhaps a very persuasive @.ﬁmrr-
cation to many with young children, clearly Soﬁmﬁm
5(g). Finally, 5(g) would require the :mmHnmEm::_M
“Body man”,” “Handyman”,* and “Cleaning Lady”**
to find some other way to denote their chosen occupa-
tion without connoting gender. While it may very well
be completely valid to require an employer-advertiser
to substitute “-person” as the suffix of these words
when used to describe a job, to compe! an individual
to describe himself or herself in such stilted and
sterile language, or forgo speaking at all, mBm.o_Am o.m the
imposed linguistic conformity of an Orwellian night-

mare.

The result of our balancing analysis should, at this
point, be clear. We conclude that the OoBmemE: Wm.m
failed to show that Section 5(g) in any way signifi-
cantly furthers the Commonwealth’s concededly mc_“wl
stantial interest in eradicating employment discrimi-
nation. We also conclude, on the other hand, that ap-
plication of Section 5{g) would have Em effect of
significantly impairing the flow of legitimate and
truthful commercial information. In view of these
conclusions, it is clear that the balance in this case
must be tipped in the favor of the First Amendment

- interest of the advertisers and against the constitu-

28 Exhibit A-9 (Rec. 35a).

2T Exhibit A-9 (Bee. 35a).
*8 Exhibit A-10 (Rec. 36a).
2 Exhibit A-1 (Ree. 27a). -
50 Exhibit A-18 (Rec, 43a).
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tional validity of the challenged portion of Section 5
(8)." We hold, therefore, that the Commission ig
without power to prohibit the inclusion in any situ-
ation-wanted advertiserent of any specification or ex-
pression of the advertiser’s race, color, religious creed,
ancestry, age, sex or national origin. As a natural con-
sequence, we further hold that the cease and desist
order entered against the Press for aiding and abetting
the publication of such situation-wanted advertise-
ments is constitutionally invalid. We therefore re-
verse,

Harry A, Kramer,
Judge

81 The Commission charged the Press only with aiding the
publication of advertisements which specify or express the
‘! prohibiteq characteristies of the Jjob-seeker. That portion
of 5(g) which prohibits the Job-sesker from expressing in the
ad any limitation or preference as to the raee, eolor, religious
“creed, ancestry, age, sex, or national origin of the prospective
employer is not presently before us, and, therefore, is not
invalidated or directly affected by today s deeision.
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APPENDIX C

THE SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA
Western District

801 City-County Building
Pittsburgh, Pa. 15219
January 24, 1979

Robert S. Mirin, Esquire

Pa. Human Relations Commission
100 N. Cameron Street
Harrisburg, Pa. 17101

John E. Benjes, Esquire
301 Muench Street
Harrisburg, Pa. 17102

In Re: Pa. Human Relations Commission v, Pgh. Press
Co., No. 42 March Term, 1978

Dear Messrs. Mirin and Benjes:

Enclosed is a copy of the opinion filed today, to-
gether with the judgment order which was entered
today.

Very truly yours,
(s) Irma T.Gardner
Deputy Prothonotary

Enclosures

cc: Robert H. Shoop, Ir., Esquire
Thorp, Reed and Armstrong
2900 Grant Building
Pittsburgh, Pa, 15219
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Honorable James S. Bowman

for Hon. Harry A. Kramer

President Judge, Commonwealth Court
022 South Office Building

Harrisburg, Pa. 17120

SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA
Western District

No. 42 March Term, 1978

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, PENN-
SYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION,
Appellant

V.

PITTSBURGH PRESS COMPANY

JUDGMENT

ON CONSIDERATION WHEREOF, it is now
here ordered and adjudged by this Court that the judg-
ment of the COMMONWEALTH COURT OF PENN-
SYLVANIA, be, and the same is hereby affirmed.

By the Court:
(s) Sally Mrvos
- Sally Mrvos, Esquire
Prothonotary

Dated: January 24, 1979
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA
Western District

No. 42 March Term, 1978

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, PENN-
SYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION,
Appellant

V.

PITTSBURGH PRESS COMPANY,
Appellee

Appeal from the Order of the Commonwealth Court
of Pennsylvania at No. 1275 C.D. 1976 reversing the
Order of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commis-
sion at Commission Docket No. E-8525.

OPINION
JUSTICE MANDERINO, Filed Jan 24 1979:

This appeal is from the order of the Commonwealth
Court reversing the order of the Pennsylvania Human
Relations Commission (Commission), and declaring
unconstitutional that portion of Section 5(g) of The
Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, 43 P.S. §955 (g) .
Section 5(g) prohibits the publication of advertise-
ments for employment expressing the race, color, re-
ligious creed, ancestry, age, sex, or national origin of
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the advertiser. Pittsburgh Press Co. v. Comm., Human
Relations Commission, 31 Pa. Commonwealth Ct.
218,376 A.2d 263 (1977).

The circumstances surrounding this appeal are as
follows. On March 15, 1975, the Commission charged
the Pittsburgh Press Company (Press) with “main-
tain[ing] a pattern and practice of aiding and abetting
the doing of an unlawful discriminatory act” in viola-
tion of Section 5(e) of The Pennsylvania Human Re-
lations Act. According to the Commission, the Press
violated Section 5(e) of the Act by publishing “situ-
ation wanted” advertisements alleged to be unlawful
under Section 5 (g) because the ads identified the ad-
vertiser’s sex, race, religion, or age.

The Pittsburgh Press is a newspaper of general cir-
culation throughout the greater Pittsburgh metropoli-
tan area. The “situation wanted” section of the Press’
classified advertisements provides a vehicle for per-
sons secking employment to describe themselves, their
job qualifications, and the kind of employment they
are seeking. The Press accepts and publishes these ads
exactly as submitted by the advertisers.

On June 27, 1975, following an investigation from
which the Commission determined that there was
probable cause to credit the allegations contained in
the complaint referred to above, the Commission is-
sued a final order requiring the Press to cease and
desist from publishing “situation wanted” advertise-
ments, the contents of which are prohibited by Section
5(8). .

On appeal, the Commonwealth Court reversed the
Commission’s final order, and ruled that Sub-section
5(g) was unconstitutional. We granted the Commis-
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sion’s petition for allowance of appeal, and this appeal
followed.

The Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, Act of
October 27, 1955, P.L. 744, §1, as amended 43 P.S.
§8951, et seq., establishes it as

“. . . the public policy of this Commonwealth
to foster the employment of all individuals in ac-
cordance with their fullest capacities regardless
of their race, color, religious creed, ancestry,
handicap or disability, use of guide dogs because
of blindness of the user, age, sex, or national ori-
gin, and to safeguard their right to obtain and
hold employment without such discrimination, to
assure equal opportunities to all individuals and
to safeguard their rights at places of public ac-
commodation and to secure commercial housing
regardless of race, color, religious creed, ancestry,
sex, handicap or disability, use of guide dogs be-
cause of blindness of the user or national origin.”

To further this public policy, Section 5 of the Act
makes certain discriminatory employment practices
unlawful. 43 P.S. §955 (a) through (j). Among other
things, in 5 (g) , the Act makes it unlawful employment
discrimination

“[f]or any individual seeking employment to
publish or cause to be published any advertise-
ment which specifies or in any manner expresses
his race, color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex
or national origin, or in any manner expresses a
limitation or preference as to the race, color, re-
ligious creed, ancestry, age, sex or national origin
of any prospective employer.” ‘

43 P.S. §955 (g).
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Section 5 (e) also makes it unlawful

“[f]or any person, whether or not an employ-
er, employment agency, labor organization or em-
ploye, to aid, abet, incite, compel or coerce the
doing of any act declared by this section to be an
unlawful discriminatory practice, . . .”

The Commission found that by accepting and pre-
senting “situation wanted” advertisements which in-
cluded references to the criteria declared unlawful by
Section 5 (g}, the Press had “aided and abetted” the
unlawful employment practice proscribed by that sec-
tion, the Press was therefore found to be in violation
of Section 5 (e) .

The Commonwealth Court recognized that the ad-
vertisements which formed the basis of the Commis-
sion’s complaint clearly violated Section 5 (g):

“An indication of the type of advertisement
found by the Commission to violate Section 5 (g)
can be ascertained from the specific examples set
forth in the Hearing Panel’s findings of fact,
These examples were drawn from stipulated ex-
hibits which included the Press’ ‘Situation
Wanted’ columns from Sunday, June 1, 1975 to
Thursday, June 26, 1975:

‘COLLEGE GRAD—Born again Christian
with Bachelor’s Degree and seven yrs. sales and
marketing mgmt. experience secking work with
Christian business or organization, . . .’

‘White woman—desires day work, office

cleaning.’
‘Parolee—White needs employment to be re-

leased. Licensed steam boiler and engineer. , , .’
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‘Salesman—Age 30, looking for career in Pitis-
burgh, start immediately, 15 years sales experi-
ence. ...’

‘“What can I do for you? Recent college grad,
good looking, twenty-five years old, B.S. in Bus-
iness Administration, seeks entry level manage-
ment position.’

‘Man-—mature, accounting, bookkeeping, of-

fice management, desires position in these or

related fields.’
It is obvious at a glance that the contents of these
advertisements are in contravention of the letter
of Section 5(g) .”

(Footnotes omitted.)

31 Pa. Commonwealth Ct. at 223, 376 A.2d at
265,

The Press did not contend otherwise before the Com-
monwealth Court, nor does it so contend here, The
Press argues, however, that Section 5(g) unlawfully
infringes on First Amendment rights. We agree with
the Commonwealth Court that the advertiser’s rights,
as guaranteed by the First Amendment to the United
States Constitution, are improperly restricted by the
prohibition of Section 5(g). We therefore affirm the
order of the Commonwealth Court.

The Press did not contend before the Common-
wealth Court that the state may not prohibit discrimi-
natory employment practices. It argued, however, that
the restriction on freedom of expression contained in
Section 5(g).is not necessary to promote that legiti-
mate state objective. We agree with the Press that the
Commission has not shown that the prior restraint of
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T Smﬁﬁom_ rather than stated within the four cor-
ners & the advertisement.

The illegality in this case may be less overt, but
we see no difference in principle here. Sex dis-
crimination in nonexempt employment has been
declared illegal. . ..

413 U.S. at 388 (emphasis in original) (cita-
tions omitted) .

The Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, supra, an-
nounced unequivocally that the practice or policy of
discrimination in employment by reason of race, color,
religious creed, ancestry, age, sex or national origin is
violative of the public policy of this Commonwealth.
Section 5 of the Act specifies those practices which
have been declared illegal in an effort to eradicate the
evils of discrimination. Section 5(g) prohibits an in-
dividual seeking employment from attempting to in-
fluence the employment decision by supplying infor-
mation relating to those factors or qualities which have
been proscribed in making such a judgment. Section 5
(e) prohibits a third party from aiding and abetting
the transmittal of the prohibited information for the
purpose of influencing the employment decision. It is
conceded that the ads which form the basis of this law-
suit were in violation of Sections 5 (g) and (e) and
therefore illegal under the law of this Commonwealth.
Notwithstanding the fact that it has been conceded
that the publishing of these ads was illegal commercial
activity under the terms of the Act, the majority seeks
to support its result by finding that the advertiser’s
rights, as guaranteed by the freedom of expression
- amendment of the federal constitution, have been im-
properly curtailed by the mandate of Section 5(g).

B

.
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While recognizing that a state may prohibit discrim-
inatory employment practices, the majority argues
that the restriction of freedom of expression accom-
plished by Section 5 (g) ““is not necessary to promote
that legitimate state objective.” (Slip op. p. 6) This
position ignores the holding and supporting rationale
of Press I. In that case, the United States Supreme

Court clearly sanctioned the restriction of the adver-

tiser’s right to freedom of expression to effectuate a
legitimate regulation of an unlawful activity. More-
over, in its latest decisions the United States Supreme
Court has reaffirmed the right to restrain commercial
advertising that is inimical to the public welfare. Bates
v. State Bar of Arizona, 433 U.S, 350, 97 S.Ct. 2691,
53 L.Ed. 2d 810 (1977); Virginia Pharmacy Bd. v.
Virginia Consumer Council, 425 U.S. 748, 96 S.Ct.
1817,48 L.Ed. 2d 346 (1976).

The First Amendment, as we construe it today,
does not prohibit the State from insuring that the
stream of commercial information flow cleanly as
well as freely. (citation omitted)

Also, there is no claim that the transactions
proposed in the forbidden advertisements are
themselves illegal in any way.

Va. Pharmacy Bd. v. Virginia Consumer Coun-
cil, 425 U.S. at 771-72. (citations omitted) .

Here the transactions proposed in the forbidden ad-
vertisements are in themselves illegal. The ads encour-
age the employer to make the employment decision
based upon the prohibited considerations. The com-
mercial speech being restrained is simply a solicitation

~for discriminatory hiring. The majority seeks to dis-
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“If government can dictate the layout of a
newspaper’s advertising pages today, what is
there to prevent it from dictating the news pages

‘tomorrow? ., ,
~ [T]he constitutional guarantee of a free press
is more precatory. . . . [1]t is a clear command

that government must never be allowed to lay its

heavy editorial hand on any newspaper in this

country,”
Pittsburgh Press Company v. Pittsburgh Commission
on Human Relations, 413 U.S. 376, 403-4, 93 S.Ct.
2553, 2568 (1973) (Stewart, J., dissenting, joined by
Douglas, J. and specially joined by Blackmun, ].). See
generally, William Goldman Theatres v. Dana, 405
Pa. 83, A.2d (1961) (Pa. Const. art. I, §7 bars prior
restraints) . The Commonwealth Court properly re-
versed the order of the Pennsylvania Human Relations
Commission. I therefore join the Court’s affirmance.

[ Caption Omitted ]
DISSENTING OPINION

NIX, J., Filed Jan 24 1979:

In Pittsburgh Press Co. v. Human Relations Com-
mission, 413 U.S. 376, 93 S.Ct. 2553, 37 L.Ed. 2d 669
(1973) (Press 1), the United States Supreme Court
held an order prohibiting a newspaper from publish-

Mmmmmﬁm.gam or any bhranch of m%ﬁ.:imuﬁ 1o law shall

ever be made to restrain the right thereof. The free com-

munication of thoughis and opinions is one of the in-
valuable rights of man, and every citizen may freely
speak, write and print on any subjeet, being responsible
for the abuse of that liberty. ...
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ing sex-designated advertisements by employers offer-
ing employment not to be violative of the first amend-
ment of the federal constitution. Today, a majority of
this Court has found the prohibition of situations
wanted advertisements identifying the race, color, re-
ligious creed, age and sex of the applicant under cir-
cumstances prohibited by the Human Relations Act,
Act of Oct. 27, 1955, 43 P.S. §951, et seq. (Supp.
1978-79), P.L. 744, as amended, to be impermissible
under the first amendment. To reach this startling re-
sult, the majority has given Press I an unwarrantedly
narrow interpretation and has read into the tecent de-
cision of the United States Supreme Court in the com-
mercial speech area unjustified implications. The ma-
jority in its zeal %o extend the protection to. be given
commercial speech, fotally ignores this Common-
wealth’s strong comumitment to an egalitarian society.
See e.g. Pa. Const. Art. I §28. I therefore must express
my most vehement disagreement.

In Press I, the United States Supreme Court avoided
the level of protection commercial speech should be
accorded by noting:

[9] Whatever the merits of this contention
may be in other contexts, it is unpersuasive in this
case. Discrimination in employment is not only
commercial activity, it is illegal commercial ac-
tivity under the Ordinance. We have no doubt
that a newspaper constitutionally could be for-
bidden to publish a want ad proposing a sale of
narcotics or soliciting prostitutes. Nor would the
result be different if the nature of the transaction
wete indicated by placement under columns cap-
tioned ‘Narcotics for Sale’ and . ‘Prostitutes
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aided and abetted such employers™ practice of sex
based employment discrimination., Indeed, the Press
did not challenge the illegality of the underlying acts
in Press I. In the present case, the “situation wanted”
ads propose no illegal transactions, they simply ask
that prospective employers hire the respective indi-
vidual advertisers. The prospective employees’ use of
prohibited employment criteria in an advertisement
cannot reasonably be said to aid an employer who
might be predisposed to utilize such forbidden criteria.
Knowledge of such forbidden criteria—age, sex, race,
color, etc.,—is readily obtainable by the employer
simply by scheduling a pre-employment interview, or
by requesting submission of an employment resume.
Any effect that enforcement of Section 5(g) might
have on reducing employment discrimination made
illegal by Section 5 (e) is thus too speculative to justify
Section 5(g)’s direct restriction on the advertiser’s
freedom of expression.

As was stated by the United States Supreme Court
in Linmark Associates, Ine. v. Willingboro, 431 U S.
85,92 ft. n. 6, 52 L.Ed. 2d 155, 161 ft. n. 6, 97 S.Ct.
1614, (1977) :

“After Virginia Pharmacy Bd, [y. Virginia
Consumer Council, 425 U.S. 748, 48 L.Ed. 24
346, 96 S.Ct. 1817 (1976) ] it is clear that com-
mercial speech cannot be banned because of an
unsubstantiated belief that its impact is detri-
mental.” |

In Linmark, the record failed to support the town-
ship’s assumption that proscribing the placement of
“for.sale” signs in front of township homes would re-
duce public awareness of realty sales and thereby de-
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crease public concern over selling, Likewise, in the
instant case, the record fajls to establish the statutory
assumption contained in 5 (g) that because of the reve-
lation of supposed illegal employment criteria con-
tained in the prohibited “situation wanted” ads, em-
ployer would be more likely to base their hiring de-
cisions on such illegal criteria.

Order of the Commonwealth Court is affirmed.

Former Justice Pomeroy did not participate in the
decision of this case.

Mr. Justice Roberts filed a concurring opinion,
Mr, Justice Nix filed a dissenting opinion.

[Caption Omitted ]
CONCURRING OPINION
ROBERTS,]., Filed: Jan 24 1979:

In my &oé_ Section 5 (e) of the Human Relations
Act," 43 P.S. §955¢ (1964) ? insofar as it authorizes
the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission’s or-
der directing the Pittsburgh Press to cease and desist
publication of “‘situation wanted” avertiscments, is
unconstitutional under article I, section 7 of the Penn-
sylvania Constitution." As Mr. Justice Stewart ob-
served:

1 Act of October 27, 1955, P.L. 744, as amended.

2 §5(e) makes it unlawful *‘[f]or any person . . . to aid,
abet, incite, compel or coerce the doing of any act deelared by
this section to be an unlawful discriminatory praetice. . . .”’

3 Pa. Const., Art. I, §7, provides: )

““[T]he printing press shall be free to every person
who may undertake to examine the proceedings of the
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Section 5 (g) is necessary to promote this legitimate
state interest. The Commission argued that this case
is controlled by Pittsburgh Press Co. v. Pittsburgh
Commission on Human Relations, 413 U.S. 376, 37
L.Ed. 2d 669, 93 S.Ct. 2553 (1973) (Press I). The
Press argues that in light of more recent pronounce-
ments of the United States Supreme Court, Press I is
no longer viable law. We need not decide this point,
however, because unlike the situation in Press I, what
the Commission secks to do in this case is to restrict
the expression of the advertiser itself, rather than to
restrict the unlawful activity of employment discrimi-
nation. While it held that legitimate regulation of an
unlawful activity may incidentally effect an adver-
tiser’s right to freedom of expression, Press I does not
stand for the proposition that prior restraint may be
imposed on commercial speech even though that
speech does not propose an illegal transaction.

The United States Supreme Court has, of course,
said that it is permissible to regulate commercial ad-
vertising in some ways: “[a]dvertising that is false,
deceptive, or misleading . . . is subject to restraint”
Bates v. State Bar of Arizona, 433 U.S. 350, 383, 53
L.Ed. 2d 810, 835, 97 S.Ct. 2691, (1977); Vir-
ginia Pharmacy Board v. Virginia Consumer Council,
425 U.5. 748,48 L.Ed. 2d 346, 96 S.Ct. 1817 (1976) ;
as is purely commercial advertising concerning trans-
actions that are themselves illegal, Bates v. State Bar of
Arizona, supra; Press I, supra. Similarly, reasonable
restrictions may be placed upon the time, place, and
manner of advertising Virginia Pharmacy Board, su-
pra; and special restrictions. may be allowable with
regard to advertising on the electronic broadcast me-
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dia, ¢f. Capital Broadcasting Co. v. Mitchell, 333 F.
Supp. 882 (D.C. 1971), aff’d sub nom Capital Broad-
casting Co. v. Acting Attorney General, 405 U.S.
1000, 31 L.Ed. 2d 472,92 S.Ct. 1289 (1972),

The restriction imposed by Section 5 (g), however,
goes directly to the advertiser’s right to freely exXpress
his or her job qualifications, abilitics, personal ex-
perience, or educational history. In Press I, the em-
ployer’s placement of “Help-wanted” containing sex
preference designations constituted an act of illegal sex
discrimination in the hiring of personnel, As a result,
the Supreme Court said in Press I, that

“[alny First Amendment interest which might
be served by advertising an ordinary commercial
proposal and which might arguably outweigh the
governmental interest supporting the regulation
is altogether absent when the commercial activity
itself is illegal and the restriction on advertising is
incidental to a valid limitation on economic ac-
tivity.”

413 U.S. at 389,37 L.Ed. 2d at 679, 93 5.Ct. at

In contrast to the advertising employer’s illegal, sex-

based, employment discrimination in Press I, in the -

instant case the advertisers are prospective employees
proposing commercial transactions—their own em-
ployment—which are not illegal. By its terms, the Act
applies to employers, and those who aid and abet em-
ployers to practice employment discrimination. In
Press I the Act clearly proscribed the underlying ac-
tivity——sex based discrimination by the employer—
and by providing sex-designated Help-wanted columns
in its classified advertising section, the Press directly
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aided and abetted such employers” practice of sex
based employment discrimination. Indeed, the Press
did not challenge the illegality of the underlying acts
in Press 1. In the present case, the “situation wanted”
ads propose no illegal transactions, they simply ask
that prospective employers hire the respective indi-
vidual advertisers. The prospective employees’ use of

prohibited employment criteria in an advertisement
cannot reasonably be said to aid an employer who
might be predisposed to utilize such forbidden criteria.
Knowledge of such forbidden criteria—age, sex, race,
color, etc.,—is readily obtainable by the employer
simply by scheduling a pre-employment interview, or
by requesting submission of an employment resume.
Any effect that enforcement of Section 5(g) might
have on reducing employment discrimination made
illegal by Section 5 (¢) is thus too speculative to justify
Section 5(g)’s direct restriction on the advertiser’s
freedom of expression.

As was stated by the United States Supreme Court
in Linmark Associates, Inc. v. Willingboro, 431 1.8,
85,92 ft. n. 6, 52 L.Ed. 2d 155, 161 ft. n. 6, 97 S.Ct.
1614, (1977) :

“After Virginia Pharmacy Bd. [v. Virginia
Consumer Council, 425 USS. 748, 48 L.Ed. 2d
346, 96 S5.Ct. 1817 (1976) ] it is clear that com-
mercial speech cannot be banned because of an
unsubstantiated belief that its impact is detri-
mental.” _

In Linmark, the record failed to support the town-
ship’s assumption that proscribing the placement of
“for sale”” signs in front of township homes would re-
duce public awareness of realty sales and thereby de-
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crease public concern over selling. Likewise, in the
instant case, the record fails to establish the statutory
assumption contained in 5 (g) that because of the reve-
lation of supposed illegal employment criteria con-
tained in the prohibited “situation wanted”” ads, em-
ployer would be more likely to base their hiring de-
cisions on such illegal criteria.

Order of the Commonwealth Court is affirmed.

Former Justice Pomeroy did not participate in the
decision of this case.

Mr. Justice Roberts filed a concurring opinion.
Mr. Justice Nix filed a dissenting opinion.

[Caption Omitted ]
CONCURRING OPINION
ROBERTS,J., Filed: Jan 24 1979:

In my view, Section 5 (e) of the Human Relations
Act,' 43 P.S. §955¢ (1964),* insofar as it authorizes
the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission’s or-
der directing the Pittsburgh Press to cease and desist
publication of “situation wanted” avertisements, is
unconstitutional under article I, section 7 of the Penn-
sylvania Constitution.® As Mr. Justice Stewart ob-
served:

b Act of October 27, 1955, P.L. 744, as amended.
® §5(e) makes it unlawful ‘““[flor any person . . . to aid,
abet, incite, compel or coerce the doing of any act declared by
this section to be an unlawful diseriminatory practice. , . "
3 Pa. Const., Art. I, §7, provides: .
“[T}he printing press shall be free to every person
who may undertake fo examine the proceedings of the
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“I government can dictate the layout of a
newspaper’s advertising pages today, what is
there to prevent it from dictating the news pages

tomorrow? . ..
[T ]he constitutional guarantee of a free press
Is mote precatory. . . . [1]t is a clear command

that government must never be allowed to lay its

heavy editorial hand on any newspaper in this

country,”
Pitisburgh Press Company v, Pittsburgh Commission
on Human Relations, 413 U.S. 376, 403-4, 93 S.Ct.
2553, 2568 (1973) (Stewatt, J., dissenting, joined by
Douglas, J. and specially joined by Blackmun, J.). See
generally, William Goldman Theatres v. Dana, 405
Pa. 83, A.2d (1961) (Pa. Const. art. I, §7 bars prior
restraints) . The Commonwealth Court properly re-
versed the order of the Pennsylvania Human Relations
Commission. I therefore join the Court’s affirmance.,

[ Caption Omitted ]
DISSENTING OPINION
NIX, J., Filed Jan 24 1979:

In Pitisburgh Press Co. v. Human Relations Com-
mission, 413 U.S. 376, 93 S.Ct. 2553, 37 L.Ed. 2d 669
(1973) (Press I), the United States Supreme Court
held an order prohibiting a newspaper from publish-

legislature or any branch of government, no law shall

ever be made to restrain the right thereof. The free con-

munication of thoughts and opinions is one of the in-
valuable rights of man, and every citizen may freely
speak, write and print on any subject, heing responsible
for the abuse of that liberty. ...”
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ing sex-designated advertisements by employers offer-
ing employment not to be violative of the first amend-
ment of the federal constitution. Today, a majority of
this Court has found the prohibition of situations
wanted advertisements identifying the race, color, re-
ligious creed, age and sex of the applicant under cit-
cumstances prohibited by the Human Relations Act,
Act of Oct, 27, 1955, 43 P.S. §951, ef seq. (Supp.
1978-79), P.L. 744, as amended, to be impermissible
under the first amendment. To reach this startling re-
sult, the majority has given Press I an unwarrantedly
narrow interpretation and has read into the recent de-
cision of the United States Supreme Court in the com-
mercial speech area unjustified implications. The ma-
fority in its zeal to extend the protection to be given
commercial speech, totally ignores this Common-
wealth’s strong commitment to an egalitarian society.
See e.g. Pa. Const. Art. I §28. 1 therefore must express
my most vehement disagreement.

In Press I, the United States Supreme Court avoided
the level of protection commercial speech should be
accorded by noting:

[9] Whatever the merits of this contention
may be in other contexts, it is unpersuasive in this
case. Discrimination in employment is not only
commercial activity, it is illegal commercial ac-
tivity under the Ordinance. We have no doubt
that a newspaper constitutionally could be for-
bidden to publish a want ad proposing a sale of
narcotics or soliciting prostitutes, Nor would the
result be different if the nature of the transaction
were indicated by placement under columns cap-
tioned ‘Narcotics for Sale’ and = ‘Prostitutes
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- Wanted’ rather than stated within the four cor-
ners of the advertiscment.

The illegality in this case may be less overt, but
we see no difference in principle here. Sex dis-
crimination in nonexempt employment has been
declared illegal. . . .

413 U.S. at 388 (emphasis in original) (cita-
tions omitted) . .

The Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, supra, an-
nounced unequivocally that the practice or policy of
discrimination in employment by reason of race, color,
religious creed, ancestry, age, sex or national origin is
violative of the public policy of this Commonwealth.
Section 5 of the Act specifies those practices which
have been declared illegal in an effort to eradicate the
evils of discrimination. Section 5(g) prohibits an in-
dividual seeking employment from attempting to in-
fluence the employment decision by supplying infor-
mation relating to those factors or qualities which have
been proscribed in making such a judgment. Section 5
(¢) prohibits a third party from aiding and abetting
the transmittal of the prohibited information for the
purpose of influencing the employment decision, It is
conceded that the ads which form the basis of this law-
suit were in violation of Sections 5(g) and (e) and
therefore illegal under the law of this Commonwealth.
Notwithstanding the fact that it has been conceded
that the publishing of these ads was illegal commercial
activity under the terms of the Act, the majority seeks
to support its result by finding that the advertiser’s
rights, as guaranteed by the freedom of expression
- amendment of the federal constitution, have been im-
properly curtailed by the mandate of mmoxon.m (g).
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While recognizing that a state may prohibit discrim-
inatory employment practices, the majority argues
that the restriction of freedom of expression accom-
plished by Section 5(g) ““is not necessary to promote
that legitimate state objective.” (Slip op. p. 6) This
position ignores the holding and supporting rationale
of Press I. In that case, the United States Supreme
Court clearly sanctioned the restriction of the adver-
tiser’s right to freedom of expression to effectuate a
legitimate regulation of an unlawful activity. More-
over, in its latest decisions the United States Supreme
Court has reaffirmed the right to restrain commercial
advertising that is inimical to the public welfare. Bates
v, State Bar of Arizona, 433 U.S. 350, 97 S.Ct. 2691,
53 L.Ed. 2d 810 (1977); Virginia Pharmacy Bd. v.
Virginia Consumer Council, 425 1.5, 748, 86 S.Ct.
1817,48 L.Ed. 2d 346 (1976) .

The First Amendment, as we constirue it ioday,
does not prohibit the State from insuring that the
stream of commercial information flow cleanly as
well as freely. (citation omitted)

Also, there is no claim that the transactions
proposed in the forbidden advertisements are
themselves illegal in any way.

Va. Pharmacy Bd. v. Virginia Consumer Coun-
cil, 425 U.S. at 771-72. (citations omitted) .

Here the transactions proposed in the forbidden ad-
vertisements are in themselves illegal. The ads encour-
age the employer to make the employment decision
based upon the prohibited considerations. The com-
mercial speech being restrained is simply a solicitation
for discriminatory hiring. The majority seeks to dis-
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guise the illegality by characterizing the content of
these ads as a mere expression of the applicants “job
qualifications, abilities, personal experience, or educa-
tional history.” This gloss does not dismiss the con-
trolling fact that the qualifications sought to be com-
municated are not legitimate concerns in the employ-
ment decision and are solely for the purpose of en-
couraging discriminatory hiring decisions. It is not
simply a request to be hired as the majority contends,
rather it seeks to pollute the hiring decision by intro-
ducing the prohibited considerations.

Commercial speech is only distinguishable by its
content and the United States Supreme Court has
recognized that the first amendment protections should
not be withdrawn from it simply because it proposes a
mundane commercial transaction. IHere, however, the
restraint is not being imposed because of the com-
mercial character of the message, but rather the illegal
transaction it proposes.

The majority perceives a distinction in the nature of
the transactions here and that encountered in Press I.
I confess that I am unable to comprehend that distinc-
tion. In both instances the illegal activity condemned
was discriminatory employment. In Press I, the regu-
lation was directed to the conduct of the prospective
employer. In this appeal, the conduct of the prospec-
tive employe is being regulated. Both regulations were
directed to the same end, i.e. discriminatory hiring.
Further, both regulations did not impinge upon the
free flow of commercial information necessary to
make the employment decision. The only information
restrained was information not lawfully relevant to
the proposed commercial transaction.
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Finally, in both Press I and the instant appeal, we
are concerned with the right of the newspaper to pub-
lish the information. There is obviously no greater
right derived by the newspaper to communicate the ex-
pressions of a potential employe than its right to dis-
seminate the needs of a potential employer. I am
therefore of the view that the employe’s rights of free-
dom of expression under the first amendment have not
been abridged by the state’s legitimate exercise of its
police power in an attempt to eradicate one of the most
pervasive and elusive evils in our society today.
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APPENDIX D

TEXT OF PERTINENT PROVISIONS OF §5 OF
THE PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS
ACT, 43 P.S. §955

It shall be an unlawful discriminatory practice, un-
less based upon a bona fide occupational qualification,
or in the case of a fraternal corporation or association,
unless based upon membership in such association or
corporation or except where upon applicable security
regulations established by the United States or the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

(a)  For any employer because of the race, color,
religious creed, ancestry, age, sex, national origin, or
non-job related handicap or disability of any individ-
ual to refuse to hire or employ, or to bar or to dis-
charge from employment such individual, or to other-
wise discriminate against such individual with respect
to compensation, hire, tenure, terms, conditions or
privileges of employment, if the individual is the best
able and most competent to perform the services re-
quired. The provision of this paragraph shall not ap-
ply to (1) termination of employment because of the
terms or conditions of any bona fide retirement or pen-
sion plan, (2) operation of the terms or conditions of
any bona fide retirement or pension plan which have
the effect of a minimum service requirement, (3) op-
eration of the terms or conditions of any bona fide
group or employe insurance plan.
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(b)  For any person, whether or not an employer,
employment agency, labor organization or employe, to
aid, abet, incite, compel or coerce the doing of any act
declared by this section to be an unlawful discrimi-
natory practice, or to obstruct or prevent any person
from complying with the provisions of this act or any
order issued thereunder, or to attempt, directly or in-
directly, to commit any act declared by this moo:os to
be unlawtul discriminatory practice.
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I. STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

Jurisdiction is based upon Section 204(a) of the
Appellate Court Jurisdiction Act of 1970, Act of July 31,
1970, P.L. 673 No. 223, Article II, 17 P.S. §211.204(a)
which provides for discretionary allowance of appeals from
orders of the Commonwealth Court and upon the order entered
by the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania on Appellant's
Petition for Allowance of Appeal; "April 7, 1978. Petition

granted. Per Curiam.".




IT. STATEMENT OF QUESTIONS INVOLVED

Did the legislature in enacting Section 5(g) of
the Human Relations Act create an unconstitutional

infringement on speech?

(Answered in the affirmative by the court below)




ITI. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from the decision and order of
the Commonwealth Court of Pennsylvénia appearing at 31 Pa.
Cmwlth 218, 376 A.2d 263 (1977), which reversed the order
of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission (hereinafter
"the Commission") entered on June 27, 1976 at Commission
docket number E-8528 (R. 67a-76a).

On March 11, 1975 the Commission initiated a
complaint (Docket No. E-8528) charging that the respondent,
Pittsburgh Press Company (hereinafter "Press™), "maintains a
pattern and practice of aiding and abetting the doing of an
unlawful discriminatory act" in violation of Section 5(e),
of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act through publication
of advertisements alleged to be unlawful under Section 5(g)
of the Act.

An investigation by the Commission determined
that there‘was probable cause to credit the allegations of the
- complaint whereupon the Commission endeavored to eliminate the
unlawful pattern and practice complained of by conciliation.
Conciiiation having failed, the Commission convened a public
hearing on August 6, 1975. Counsel for the parties agreed to
written stipulations which were entered into the record of the
public hearing along with Exhibits A-1 thru A-33 and B-1 thru
+ B-7. The hearing panel, upon consideration of oral argument,
the record and the brief sﬁbmitted subsequent to the hearing,
unanimously recommended that the full Commission find that the

Press' acceptance and publication of situation wanted ads referring
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to and making use of race or sex violated Section 5(e)

On June 27, 1975, the full Commission adopted and
issued Findings of Facf, Conclusions of Law, and Decision in
favor of thé complainant as well as a Final Order requiring the
Press to cease and desist from publishing "situation-wanted"
advertisements, the coﬁtents of which are prohibited by Section
5(g).

The Commonwealth Court by its opinion of July 21,
1977, reversed the Final Order of the Commission. The Court
ruled that Section S(g) of the Act did not significantly further
the Commonwealth's concededly substantial interest in eradicating
employment discrimination and necessarily had the effect of
significantly impairing the flow of legitimate and truthful
commercial information. Thus, the Court reasoned that the
Commission was without power to prohibit the Press from
publishing such advertisements. The Commission appeals from

this Opinion and Order.




IV. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Court below struck down the Commission's authority
to enforce that portién of Section 5(g) of the Human Relations
Act which prohibits an individual seeking employment from
specifying their race, color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex
or national origin. It is respectfully submitted that the
Commonwealth Court's decision is based upon an overly broad.reading
of recent decisions of the U.S. Supreme Court in the commercial
speech area. The Commonwealth Court failed to recognize the
continuing vitality of the principle that commercial speech which
attempts to achieve an illegal purpose is not given First Amend-

ment protection. The activity inter alia which the legislature

proscribed under Section 5(g) is speech designed to facilitate
illegal employment discrimination contrary to the Penmsylvania
Human Relations Act.

The rule of law enunciated in the ﬁ.S. Supreme Court
recent decisions is that the First Amendment protects some forms of
commercial speech. However, none of the considerations present
in cases extending First Amendment protection to commercial
speech are present here. Recent decisions have stressed the
public's right to know important commercial information and
have struck down restrictions on commercial speech which
significantly limit the speaker's ability to propose a lawful
commercial transaction. There is no public right to know the
race or sex of job seekers, nor does Section 5(g) limit
the ability of individuals to seek employment by advertising

actual job qualifications.




The decision below gives inadequate weight to the
clear governmental interest and policy underlying Section 5(g)
by holding that individuals may, in proposing a commercial
transaction, encourage and assist employers to violate the Human
Relations Act. The Commonwealth Court gives insufficient
deference to the legislature's perception that Section 5(g) was
an important tool necessary to combat unlawful discrimination.
The Court's invalidation of Section 5(g) also rests
on its abstract perception of abuses possible in future
epplications of this section. None of the examples contained
in the Commission adjudication approach the examples seized
upon by the Court in reversing the Commission. Courts may
appropriately review and restrain unreasonable administrative
applications of a statute without striking down the statute
as unconstitutional. The appropriate response to a statute
applied reasonably by the lower tribunal, but possibly
subject to abuse,is to clarify the areas of prohibited

application on an actual case or controversy basis.




V. ARGUMENT

THE HOLDING OF PITTSBURGH PRESS I, THAT COMMERCIAL
SPEECH AIDING AN ILLEGAL PURPOSE IS UNPROTECTED,
IS AFFIRMED BY RECENT DECISIONAL LAW.

The Commission in its final order found the
Pittsburgh Press Company guilty of a violation of Section 5(e)1
of the Human Relations Act (hereinafter '"the Act”)zwhich
provides that:

It shall be an unlawful discriminatory practice...

(e) "For any person whether or not an employer,
employment agency, labor organization, or employee
to aid, abet, incite, compel or coerce the doing
of any act declared by this section to be an
unlawful discriminatory practice, or to obstruct
or prevent any person from complying with the
provisions of this Act or any order issued there-
under or to attempt directly or indirectly to
commit any Act declared by this Section to be

an unlawful discriminatory practice."”

The Commission found that by accepting and printing
the advertisements as submitted by job applicants, the Press
had clearly aided and abetted the unlawful practice proscribed
by Section S(g)3 of the Act which provides in pertinent part:

It shall be an unlawful discriminatory practice...

(g) for an individual seeking employment to publish

or cause to be published any advertisement which

specifies or in any manner expresses his race, color,

religious creed, ancestry, age, sex or natiomal
origin.. .4

43 P.S. §955(e)
Act of October 27, 1955, P.L. 744, as amended, 43 P.S.§§951,

et seq.

43 P.ST §955 (g)

The last clause of Section 5(g) prohibiting individuals from
"expressing a preference as to the race, color, religious
creed, ancestry, age, sex or national origin of any prospective
employer,” is not an issue in this litigation, 31 Pa. Cmwlth
218, 234, 376 A. 24 263, 270, n. 31.

W NS




The Court below recognized that the advertisements

sub judice are clearly in contravention of Section 5(g) of

the Act, 31 Pa. Cmwth 218,223, 376 A. 2d 263, 265 (1977)°
andthe Press has not challenged this fact. However, the
Court proceeded to find that Sectien 5(g) does not further
the Commonwealth's strong interest in encouraging hiring
based on qualifications as oppossed to classifications such as
race and sex, 31 Pa. Cmwlth 219, 233, 376 A. 2d 263, 270.
Thus, the Court reversed the Commission's order in an unneces-
sarily broad opinion invalidating Section 5(g) of the Act as
an unconstitutional legislative infringement upon a job
applicant’s freedom of speech and holds the Commission powerless
to order the Press to cease publishing the advertisements
in question, 31 Pa. Cmwlth 218, 235, 376 A. 24 263, 271.

The Court below in considering the difficult issues

raised in this case found Pittsburgh Press Co. vs. Pittsburgh

Commission on Human Relations, 413 U.S. 376, 93 S. Ct. 2553,

37 L. Ed. 24 669 (1973), (hereinafter "Pittsburgh Press I')

inapposite. It is the Commission's wview that Pittsburgh Press I

is controlling in this litigation.

Pittsburgh Press I, involved "help wanted" advertise-

ments which were placed in sex-designated columns in the Press.
The participation of the Press in a practice which facilitated

unlawful employment discrimination was found to be unprotected

5 The Commonwealth Court Opinion is attached (as it appears in
the Atlantic Reporter, Second Series) as Appendix A to this
brief.




commercial speech. Thus, the statute's restriction upon
commercial speech was deemed incidental to a valid limitation
on economic activity,413 U.S. 376, 389. Similarly, the
publication by the Press of the advertisements in this case
which propose a commercial transaction which encourages and
facilitates illegal job discrimination must be held to be un-
protected. Clearly, the Press in this case aids and abets in the
commission of an illegal act by the same act; publication df
advertisements in contravention of Section 5(g) of the Act.6
The Court below notes correctly that recent Supreme
Court decisions indicate that commercial speech is entitled to
some First Amendment7 protection in furtherance of lawful ob-

jectives 376 A. 2d 263, 266-268. However, it fails to distinguish

those cases from Pittsburgh Press I and from the facts of the

instant case. It is submitted that the holding of Pittsburgh Press

I has not been diluted by the more recent decisions of the U.S.
Supreme Court in the area.

Bigelow vs. Virginia, 421 U.S. 809, 95 S. Ct. 2222,

44 L. Ed. 600 (1975), relied upon by the Commonwealth Court,
did not involve speech which encouraged illegal activity but
rather the advertisement in Virginia of abortion referral
services available in the state of New York; characterized by

the Supreme Court as important lawful commercial information.

6 Other cases regulating speech in commercial settings include:
Ohralik v. Ohio State Bar Association, U.Ss. (46 U.S.L.W.

4511, May 30, 1978) solicitation of clients; National Societ
of Professional Engineers v. U.S. U.S. (46 U.S.L7W. 4T,
April 25, 1978) restriction on advertisements regarding the
ethics of competitive bidding; Williamson v. Lee Optical Co.
348 U.S. 483 (1955), advertisement for dental services

7 U.S. CONST. amend. I.




The Supreme Court was careful to point out that the State of
Virginia was powerless to prohibit the conduct which was ad- -
vertised in its newspapers. Thus, it could not "under the
guise of exercising internal police powers, bar a citizen of
another state from dissemenating information about an activity
that is legal in that state." 421 U.S. 809, 826.

It is the Commission's view that Bigelow reaffirms
the vitality of the holding of Rittsburgh Press I that advertising,
like all public expression, may be subject to reasonable regu-
lation that serves a legitimate public interest. 1In Bigelow
the interest of the advértiser clearly coincided with the public
interest in access to information regarding abortions. 421 U.S.
809, 826. There was no claim by the state of Virginia that the
advertised services were illegal in Virginia, or that the adver-
tisement furthered any illegal scheme, or that it would invade
the privacy of citizens or infringed on any other rights. In
Bigelow the central issue is the public's right to access to
lawfully disseminated commercial information without interference
by the Government.

The public's right to know was also ecrucial to the

Supreme Court's decision in Virginia Board of Pharmacy vs.

Virginia Citizen's Consumer Council 425 U.S. 748, 96 S. Ct.

1877, 48 L. Ed. 2d 346 (1976) also mentioned in this Commonwealth
Court's decision. 1In that case the Supreme Court reaffirmed

the holding of the Pittsburgh Press I case that commercial speech

is not totally lacking in First Amendment protection and found
that the Virginia statute prohibiting advertisements of the
prices of prescription drugs could not be supported in light

of the public's right to know. In its opinion the Supreme Court
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notes several cases which allow some regulation of advertising
for professional services but found a strong controlling interest
in the free flow of important commercial information which
furthers articulated social policies (i.e. price competition).
Where, as in this case, advertisers publish their race or sex

in seeking employment there is no public right to know such as

articulated in Virginia Pharmacy and in Bigelow.

Further the Supreme Court in Virginia Pharmacy points

out that despite the fact that the First Amendment provides

some protection for commercial speech, such speech is not wholly |
undifferentiable from other forms of speech. 1In Virginia
Pharmacy there was no claim that the advertisements in question
were false or misleading in any way or that they were themselves

illegal within the meaning of Pittsburgh Press I. Clearly, the

advertisements in this case, which facilitate illegal employment
discrimination, are not entitled to protection under the

Virginia Pharmacy rationale.

Of recent Supreme Court decisions, Linmark vs. Township

of Willingboro, 431 U.S. 85, 97 S. Ct. 1614, 52 L. Ed. 2d 155

(1977), is most closely related to the facts of this case. The
Supreme Court agains recognized the substantial public interest

in the free flow of commercial information. In Linmark, homeowners,
successfully challenged an ordinance prohibiting the use

of "for sale'" signs enacted to stem "panic" selling. The Court
held that the public's right to know could not be abridged by

the township when no suitable alternative for advertising the

sale of property was available. The Court explicitly reaffirmed

the holding of Pittsburgh Press I that commercial speech is

not wholly undifferentiable from other speech and noted that:
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"Laws dealing with false or misleading signs

or laws requiring such signs to appear in such

a form or include such additional information

as (is) necessary to prevent (their) being deceptive

...would raise very different constitutional

questions. 431 U.S. 85, 98

Thus, the Supreme Court provides an indication of
how situation-wanted advertisements should be treated. The
Commission in this case has not restricted the ability of job
applicants to seek employment, nor has it denied them the
opportunity of advertising their actual lawfully relevant
qualifications. The restriction imposed by the legislature
in section 5(g) is directed against the encouragement and

facilitation of illegal employment discrimination by adver-

tising race and sex of the applicant.8

8 The effect of Section 5(g) in reference to the advertisements
cited by the Commission in its adjudication (70a) would be
to allow the individuals to place ads such as: "'College grad-
Bachelor's Degree with 7 years sales and marketing experience,"”
(A-1, 27a); '"Desire day work, office cleaning," (A-1, 27a):
Parolee needs employment to be released, Licensed steam boiler
and engineer," (A-1, 27a); 'Salesperson, looking for a career
in Pittsburgh, start immediately, 15 years sales experience",
(A-1, 27a); "What can I do for you ? Recent college grad,
good looking, B.S. in Business Administration, seeks entry
level management position," (A-8, 34a); '"Mature, accounting,
bookkeeping, office management, desires position in these or
related fields," (A-23, 34a). Due to the missplacement of an
exhibit in the original stipulation of facts which is corrected
in the printed record, the designation of the exhibits from
A-15 to the end of the "A" exhibits does not coincide in the
two records. For example A-23 in the original record will
appear as A-22 on page 48a of the printed record. The exhibit
references herein are from the original record, but the page
in the printed record is also included.

-12-




B. A CORRECT BALANCE BETWEEN A PROSPECTIVE EMPLOYEES
RIGHT TO SEEK EMPLOYMENT UPON LAWFUL MERIT-BASED
CONSIDERATIONS AND THE COMMONWEALTH'S STATE POLICY
OBJECTIVE OF ELIMINATING UNLAWFUL DISCRIMINATION
REQUIRES THAT THE PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATTONS
COMMISSION'S DECISION BE AFFIRMED.
The decision below fails to give appropriate
weilght to the legitimate purpose of the legislature in enacting
Section 5(g) as part of a comprehensive scheme to combat
9

employment discrimination. The Court recognizes the Common-

wealth's substantial interest in preventing job discrimination

but substitutes its own judgment for the legislature in

finding Section 5(g) unrelated to this substantial interest.
It is unquestionable that the legislature saw a

clear connection between Section 5(g) and the policies and

goal of equal employment opportumity.

9 Section 2, 43 P.S. §952 of the Act provides in pertinent
part: (a) The practice or policy of discrimination against
individuals or groups by reason of their race, color,
religious creed, ancestry, handicap or disability, use of
guide dogs because of blindness of the user, age, sex, or
national origin is a matter of concern to the Commonwealth.
Such discrimination foments domestic strife and unrest,
threatens the rights and privileges of the inhabitants of
the Commonwealth, and undermines the foundations of a free
democratic state. The denial of employment...because of
such discrimination, and the consequent failure to utilize
the productive capacities of individuals to their fullest
extent, deprives large segments of the population of the
Commonwealth of earnings necessary to maintain decent
standards of living, necessitates their resort to public
relief and intensified group conflicts, thereby resulting in
grave injury to the public health and welfare...(b) It is
hereby declared to be the public policy of this Commonwealth
to foster the employment of all individuals in accordance
with their fullest capacities regardless of their race, color,
religious creed, ancestry, handicap or disability, use of
guide dogs because of blindness of the user, age, sex or
national origin, and to safeguard their right to obtain and
hold employment without such discrimination.
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A review of the legislative history of the Pennsylvania Human
Relations Act supplies the connection that the legiglators
perceived between such advertisements and employment discrimination.
The following comments of Mr. Readinger, Majority Leader of

the House, indicate the reason for the inclusion of Section

5(g):

"You would have no right to profess it (a person's
religion) for the purpose of seeking employment
because the very statement of your creed, your
color, and so forth, is specifying a part of you
which is the basis for this discrimination which
we are trying to eliminate. If you are going

to stop employers from discriminating because

of race, color and creed, you have to stop the
people seeking employment from saying I want
employment because I am White, or because I am
Colored, or because I am a Jew, or a Catholic,
or something else. You do not stop it at one
end, you stop it at both ends.

Rk

...We are not telling anybody that he cannot
profess to be a Christian, or that he is a
Communist, or something of that kind; but when
it comes to advertising for employment we are
saying, "you can't do it," because as long as you
do, you are going to foster and spawn more dis-
crimination on the part of certain people who
are looking for an opportunity to discriminate
against a certain religion person or a certain
color of person and so forth." Volume 1, House
Legislative History, February 21, 1955, pp 442-3
(emphasis added).
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The Commonwealth Court propounds several reasons for
the substitution of its judgment for that of the legislature 10
in finding there to be no connection between Section 5(g) and
illegal discrimination. The court asserts that because all
groups of job applicants seek to promote the reliance of
employers on illegal criteria there is no easy avenue of dis-
crimination. 31 Pa. Cmwlth 218, 231, 376 A 24, 263, 269 n.

19. This finding of the court supports the need for regulation
in this area. The fact that both black and white, young and old,
and male and female encourage employment decisions based on
reasons other than qualification does not diminish the Common-
wealth substantial interest in eliminating to the extent possible,
these factors from employment decisions.

Further, the Courts speculative supposition that
allowance of such advertisements may actually foster affirmative
action by certain employers is not a valid reason to ignore
the illegal abuses to which the advertisements are subject. It
is submitted that the legislature perceived the evils inherent
in an atmosphere fraught with appeals to employers to rely on

illegal considerations.11

10 See e.g.; Dennis v. United States, 341 U.S. 494, 539-40
(1951) (Frankfurter; J., concurring): (W)e are not
legislators...How best to reconcile competing interests
1s the business of legislatures, and the balance they
strike is a judgment not to be displaced by ours, but to
be respected unless outside the pale of fair judgment;

11 There can be little doubt that some applicants who obtain
employment through appeals to the prejudices of employers
will themselves make employment decisions based on suspect
criteria.
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In opposition to the governmental interest reflected in
the statute,the Court posits the right of the individual to seek
employment.12 However, the court failed to recognize the limited
impact of Section 5(g) on job applicants and elevates the right
of an individual job applicant to encourage and facilitate vio-
lations of the Human Relations Act to a special protected status.
The Court's distinction between the interest of an individual
seeking employment and an employer's interest in filling a job
vacancy, in order to avoid the holding of Pittsburgh Press I, is
unpersuasive. Neither interest may serve as a basis upon

which to override the Commonwealth's interest in equal opportunity;,

the very interest upheld in Pittsburgh Press I. The observation

of rhe court below that finding a job may be a matter of
economic survival does not warrant the creation of a right
to encourage and facilitate discrimination; especially where
the statute allows the non-invidious pursuit of economic

survival. (See footnote 8, supra.)

12 As emphasized in Truax v Reich, 239 U.S. 33,41, 36 S.
Ct. 7, 60 L. Ed. 131 (1915) a case involving discrimination
against aliens: if employment "could be refused solely upon
the ground of race or nationality, the prohibition of the
denial ... of equal protection of the laws would be a
barren form of words.™
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C. THIS HONORABLE COURT SHOULD NOT STRIKE DOWN SECTION 5(g)
OF THE PENNSYLVANTA HUMAN RELATIONS ACT WHICH MAY BE,
AND WAS, INTERPRETED IN A CONSTITUTIONAI MANNER.

Another basis of the Commonwealth Court's decision is
potential for abuse which it sees from future over-zealous
application of Section 5(g), 31 Pa. Cmwlth 218, 234, 376, A.2d
263, 270. 1Indeed, the Court below describes such possibilities
as suggesting the "imposed linguistic conformity of an
Orwellian nightmare.”l3 However, the Commission, in its
adjudication, indicated generically the types of advertisements
which it viewed as being in violation of Section 5(g), such
white woman desires day work" 14 "{M)an, mature...desires
position...l5 The recitation of the lengths to
which application of 5(g) could reach goes far beyond the

case or controversy actually before the Commonwealth Court.

13 Id. The requirement that ads state "college graduate,”
'experienced in the field", '"cleaner seeks employment"
bears scant resemblance to the linguistic abuses
saterized "War is Peace,' '"Freedom is Slavery', "Ignorance
is strength" G.0Orwell, Nineteen Eighty-Four (1949).

14 A-1, 27a

15 A-23, 48a
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The court below would apparently have held Section 5(g)
unconstitutional even if it found some connection between it
and the goal of the Act because of its speculation l6that part
of Section 5(g) might prohibit the mention of one's name in

an advertisement-l7

Should this Honorable Court perceive the possibility
of unconstitutional application of that part of Section 5(g) which
prohibits expressing,”in any manner? one's race color, religious
creed, ancestry, age, sex or national origin, the proper

response is to strike down only this offensive applications

of the statute.18

The requirement of the overbreadth doctrine that the
19
degree of overbreadth be substantial is necessary in light

of the potential of most statutes for some missapplication.20

16 Any uncertainity on the part of the Press as to which
advertisements fall within Section 5(g) does not raise
to the level of a prior restraint. The inability of the
Commission to penalize by contempt, 43 P.S. §960, and the
comcomitant appellate review prior to any injunction in
future cases adequately protects the paper from any chilling
of legitimate editorial freedom. In this regard see Pittsburgh
Press I, 413 U.S. 376, n. 14.

17 376 A.2d 263, 270. A review of the record indicates that
fewer than 5% of the advertisements include the job seeker's
name.

18 Section 13, 43 P.S. §963, provides for the separability of
all provisions of the Act.

19 Thornhill w. Alabama, 310 U.S5. 88, 98, 60 S. Ct. 236, 84
L. Ed. 2d 1093 (1940)

20 See, 93 Harv. L. Rev. 844, 859 (1970)
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Similarly, the dangers of overbroad application are normally
‘ 21
not present in the area of commercial speech. Even if present
in the commercial context the danger resulting from overbroad
application must:
"...not only be real, but substantial as well,
judged in relation to the statutes plainly
legitimate sweep." 22
In light the reasoned adjudication of the Commission in this

case, focusing on advertisements clearly within Section 5(g),

the danger of overbroad application is speculative at best.

21 Bates v State Bar of Arizona, 433 U.S. 350, 380, 97 S. Ct.
2691, 53 L. Ed. 24 810 (1977).

22 Broadrick v. Oklahoma, 413 U.S. 601, 613, 93 S. Ct. 2908, 37 L.
Ed. 2d 830 (1973).
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VI. CONCLUSION

The Court below fails to recognize the relationship
between advertisements which encourage and facilitate unlawful
employment discrimination and the purposes of the Human Relations
Act. The precedent cited by the Commonwealth Court in
extending First Amendment protection to the Pittsburgh Press
involve considerations not present in this litigation. There
is no public right to know the race or sex of a job seeker
nor does the Commission's order preclude job seekers from ad-
vertising their bona fide occupational qualifications.

Even if this Honorable Court perceives a possibility
of unreasonable application of portions of Section 5(g); the
Court need not strike down the entire provision but rather
should proscribe any area of impermissable application.

Accordingly, and for the reasons set forth above, the
order of the Commonwealth Court must be reversed and the Final

Order of Commission reinstated in its entirety.

Respectfully submitted,

Robert Mirin

General Counsel

Pennsylvania Human Relations
Commission

John E. Benjes

Assistant General Counsel

Pennsylvania Human Relations
Commission
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